1	TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY	1		INDEX	
2	PLANNING BOARD	2	NAME OF WITNESS		PAGE
3	IN THE MATTER OF:	3	CHIEF KARIN Dim	ICHELE	5
4	SOUTH SEASIDE PARK HOMEOWNERS AND VOTERS ASSOCIATION DE-ANNEXATION PETITION HEARING	4			
5	DE-ANNEXATION PETITION HEARING	5			
6	Pinewald Keswick Poad	6			
7	Pinewald Keswick Road Bayville, New Jersey Thyrsday, November 3, 6:50 p.m.	2016			
8	6:50 p.m.	8			
9		9			
10	BEFORE:	10		EXHIBITS	
11	Robert Winward, Chairman John Bacchione, Councilman Domenick Lorelli, Member Richard Callahan, Member Nick Mackres, Member Frederick Bell, Member Jack Wiegarter, Member	11	NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	PAGE
12	Domenick Lorelli, Member Richard Callahan, Member	12	A-63	Invoices from Remington & Vernick	49
13	Nick Mackres, Member Frederick Bell, Member	13	A-64	Annotated transcript	60
	Jack Wiegartner, Member Brian Gingrich, Member	14	A-65	Annotated transcript	62
15	•	15	A-66	Curriculum vitae of Mr.	71
16		16	Marrie 23	Moore	111
17		17	Township-3A	E-mail from Melanie Parks	111
18 19		18			
20		19 20			
21		21			
22		22			
23		23			
24	LINDA SULLIVAN-HILL & ASSOCIATES CERTIFIED COURT REPORTERS	24			
25	LINDA SULLIVAN-HILL & ASSOCIATES CERTIFIED COURT REPORTERS 46 SOUTH LAKEVIEW DIVE JACKSON, NEW JERSEY 08527 (732) 833-0001	25			
1		2		MR. WINWARD: So, our next	
2	APPEARANCES:	2	business would l	oe the South Seaside Park H	omeowners
3	DASTI MURPHY MCGUCKIN, ULAKY, CHERKOS & CONNORS, ESQS. 620 W. Lacey Road Forked River, New Jersey 08731 BY: GREGORY MCGUCKIN, ESQ.	3	and Voters Asso	ciation. So, we'll take a	quick 10,
4	620 W. Lacey Road Forked River New Jersey 08731	4	15 minute break	till all the parties have	arrived
5	BY: GREGORY'McGÜCKIN, ESQ. Attorneys for the Board		and are notified		
6		6		(Recess was taken.)	
7	O'MALLEY, SURMAN & MICHELINI, ESQS. 17 Beaverson Blvd. Brick New Jersey 08723 BY: JOSEPH MICHELINI, ESQ. Attorneys for the Petitioners	7		MR. WINWARD: Okay. We'd l	
8	BY: JOSEPH MICHELINI, ESO. Attorneys for the Petitioners	_		ing. We're now going to pr	
9		9	cross-examination	on by the South Seaside Par	K
10		1 ^		procentations of and Beal-	
11	ALSO DRESENT	10	de-annexation re	epresentatives of our Berke	ley
	ALSO PRESENT:	11	de-annexation re Township Police	Department. You may proce	ley ed.
12		11 12	de-annexation re Township Police	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evenin	ley ed. g, members
12 13		11 12 13	de-annexation re Township Police I of the board.	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evenin Joseph Michelini appearing	ley ed. g, members
12	ALSO PRESENT: Ernie Peters, Engineer Kelly Hugg, Secretary Stuart B: Wiser, Planner Nicholas Dickerson, Planner Rodney Haines, CPA	11 12 13	de-annexation re Township Police I of the board. of of the petition	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evenin Joseph Michelini appearing signers.	ley ed. g, members
12 13 14		11 12 13 14	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evenin Joseph Michelini appearing	ley ed. g, members on behalf
12 13 14 15		11 12 13 14 15	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evening Joseph Michelini appearing signers. (Off the record.)	ley ed. g, members on behalf
12 13 14 15 16		11 12 13 14 15	de-annexation re Township Police I of the board. of the petition I Start over.	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evening Joseph Michelini appearing signers. (Off the record.)	ley ed. g, members on behalf ter?
12 13 14 15 16		11 12 13 14 15 16	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition ! Start over.	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evenin Joseph Michelini appearing signers. (Off the record.) MR. MICHELINI: Is that bet	ley ed. g, members on behalf ter?
12 13 14 15 16 17 18		11 12 13 14 15 16 17	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition Start over.	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evening Joseph Michelini appearing signers. (Off the record.) MR. MICHELINI: Is that bet Good evening. Joseph Miche	ley ed. g, members on behalf ter? lini s of South
12 13 14 15 16 17 18		11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition Start over. appearing on bel Seaside Park Hor	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evening Joseph Michelini appearing signers. (Off the record.) MR. MICHELINI: Is that bet Good evening. Joseph Michemalf of the petition signer	ley ed. g, members on behalf ter? lini s of South tion.
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition Start over. appearing on bel Seaside Park Hor We'll proceed was Chief DiMichele	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evening Signers. (Off the record.) MR. MICHELINI: Is that bet Good evening. Joseph Miche half of the petition signer meowners and Voters Associath the chief first. So, i would come up.	ley ed. g, members on behalf ter? lini s of South tion. f
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23		11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition Start over. appearing on bel Seaside Park Hor We'll proceed wo Chief DiMichele	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evenin Joseph Michelini appearing signers. (Off the record.) MR. MICHELINI: Is that bet Good evening. Joseph Miche half of the petition signer meowners and Voters Associa ith the chief first. So, i would come up. And I think we're sharing t	ley ed. g, members on behalf ter? lini s of South tion. f his mic.
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	de-annexation re Township Police of the board. of the petition Start over. appearing on bel Seaside Park Hor We'll proceed wo Chief DiMichele So, I'm just goo	Department. You may proce MR. MICHELINI: Good evening Signers. (Off the record.) MR. MICHELINI: Is that bet Good evening. Joseph Miche half of the petition signer meowners and Voters Associath the chief first. So, i would come up.	ley ed. g, members on behalf ter? lini s of South tion. f his mic. here. If

```
5
1 I'm sure we'll make our voices heard.
                                                                                 And in each of those municipalities,
2 CHIEF KARYN DiMICHEL, recalled.
                                                                2 before you gave testimony, you were sworn as a
3 EXAMINATION BY MR. MICHELINI:
                                                                3 witness, correct?
                  Chief, in the beginning of your
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 That's correct.
5 presentation at the September meeting, you began to
                                                                                 And it wasn't sufficient for you to
 6 talk. And I stood up and I suggested to you as a
                                                                6 simply be a sworn officer? You had actually had to
7 witness that you, quote, probably should be sworn.
                                                                7 be sworn in each of those occasions; isn't that
8 At which point, you turned to me and said, we're all
                                                                8 right?
9 sworn officers. Do you recall that?
                                                                9
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 That's correct.
10
          Α
                                                               10
                                                                                 And also, on each occasion in which
                  Yes.
                  Your comment suggested that there is
                                                               11 you testified in Superior Court, it was not
12 no need to swear you in as a witness in this
                                                               12 sufficient for a sworn officer? You had to be
13 hearing. But I'm sure, are you aware that there is
                                                               13 separately sworn to tell the truth, the whole truth
14 a difference between the Oath of Office that an
                                                               14 and nothing but the truth, so help you God, correct?
15 officer takes and the oath that one takes when they
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 That's correct.
16 testify?
                                                                                 And that's different than the Oath of
                                                                         Q
                  Yes, but you must know that this is
                                                               17 Office that you took to fulfill your duties as a
                                                               18 police officer; isn't that right?
18 the first time we've been -- we have gone through
19 this, so I'm not familiar with this process.
                                                               19
                                                                         A
                                                                                 That's correct.
                  Okay. But you knew you were coming
                                                                                 So, being sworn as a police officer
21 here to give testimony, correct?
                                                               21 does not qualify you simply to give testimony
                                                               22 without having to take the oath to tell the truth;
          Α
23
          Q
                  Okay. And you've testified before,
                                                               23 isn't that right?
24 haven't you?
                                                               24
                                                                         A
                                                               25
                                                                                 Okay. And, in fact, the failure to
          Α
                  Yes.
                                                                         Q
          Q
                  Okay. In what courts have you
                                                                1 tell the truth after you've taken the oath is a
```

2 testified? 2 significant crime, is it not? 3 Α Municipal court, county court. Α Yes, it is. 3 Okay. In fact, there's two crimes. 4 County court, being the Superior Q Q 5 Court in Toms River? 5 Are you aware of the two crimes that are associated 6 Α 6 with not telling the truth under testimony? Yes. 7 Any other county? Q Α Perjury. 8 Α Not that I can recall, no. 8 Q Yep. And I don't know the other one. 9 How many times have you testified? 9 Α 10 Α I don't have that number. 10 Q False swearing. 11 More than ten? 11 Q Α False swearing, yes. 12 Α I would say. 12 Correct. Okay. And perjury is 13 0 More than 20? 13 pretty significant because, as I recall, the perjury 14 I don't have the number. 14 statute, and you can correct me if I'm wrong, 15 Okay. I'm not asking you if you have 15 indicates that if you are testifying in an official 16 the number. I'm asking if it's more than ten. 16 capacity and you perjure yourself, that is, you I don't know what the number is. 17 intentionally say something which isn't true, then 17 Α 18 0 Okay. All right. And you can't 18 that's an offense that's indictable, correct? 19 reasonably estimate? 19 Α Uh-hum. A No, I can't. Yes? 20 20 Q 21 Okay. So, in those occasions that A Yes. 22 you testified in municipal court, was that here in 22 You have to keep your answers verbal 23 Berkeley Township? 23 so that Linda can take them down. Yes, Berkeley Township, Beachwood, And do you know that that's a third degree Α

25 offense?

25 couple other municipalities.

```
I don't know if it's a third or
                                                                1 wasn't going to tell the township how to testify.
2 fourth. But if you're saying it's a third, then --
                                                                2 Those were his words. And I would appreciate it if
3
          Q
                  I'll represent to you it's a third.
                                                                3 I would not be instructed how to conduct my
 4
                  Okay. Then it's a third.
                                                                4 cross-examination. If there's a follow-up question
          Α
                  And that's punishable by what? Do
                                                                5 that somebody wants to ask, that's perfectly okay.
 6 you know?
                                                                6 But it's not appropriate, in my opinion, to let
                  No, I don't.
                                                                7 somebody, quote, clarify under cross-examination.
                  You don't. Because you testified
                                                                8 That's not what cross-examination is for. If
9 before that you act as an attorney. You act as a
                                                                9 somebody wants to recross or ask additional
                                                               10 questions, they certainly can do that. So, my
10 counselor. You act as a police officer. You act in
11 all different capacities in your position as a
                                                               11 objection is on the record.
12 police officer. Do you recall that?
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: I just want to make a
13
                  Yes. I was trying to state the \operatorname{--}
                                                               13 comment, too, though. I believe the issue at hand
                                                               14 was maybe the lack of police resources,
                  I didn't ask you what you were trying
15 to state. I asked you --
                                                               15 representation, response time in South Seaside Park.
                  I think I'm allowed to answer the
                                                               16 Not, you know, the opportunity to embarrass one of
17 question.
                                                               17 our, you know, esteemed police officers.
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: I'm not --
18
                  No, you're not. This is
                                                               18
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: That's all. There's a
19 cross-examination. You did answer the question by
                                                               19
20 saying yes, you recall that testimony.
                                                               20 fine line here. That's all I'm saying.
                  I don't have the right to clarify my
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: Okay. And I
21
          Α
                                                               22 appreciate the comment. What I'm saying is, the
22 answers?
                  Excuse me. I did not ask you to
                                                               23 manner in which the petitioners have been treated in
                                                               24 not being able to conduct proper cross-examination,
24 clarify or explain.
                  MR. McGUCKIN: It's up to the
                                                               25 also crosses a line in my book. Maybe not in the
```

10

12

Well, I'm asking the question if I 3 have the right to clarify. This is cross-examination. And if 5 you will recall --6 (Off the record.) MR. WINWARD: I think it would be 8 appropriate for her to at least have an opportunity 9 to briefly respond. 10 MR. MICHELINI: Well, let me just 11 state my objection on the record. When we began 12 these proceedings, specifically with the police 13 officers, I had indicated that I thought that it 14 would be appropriate if I were to cross-examine 15 after each police officer testified. And I really 16 did that for two reasons. Number one, that's the way it's 18 always done in every proceeding I've ever been 19 involved in the 32 years as a lawyer. And I think 20 probably Mr. McGuckin also in any proceeding. But 21 perhaps not for him, but definitely for me. That's 22 the normal way. That's what I expected. That's 23 what I was prepared for. And secondly, when I objected to

25 that, Mr. McGuckin specifically indicated that he

1 chairman.

2 crosses a line in my book. And if you --MR. WINWARD: Well, for that, I 4 apologize. This also is my first de-annexation. MR. MICHELINI: Okay. But it's not 6 the first hearing in which testimony has been given. Secondly, I would indicate that when 8 the chief began, I very politely stood up and said, 9 I think the witness should be sworn. And I believe 10 those were my words. At which she turned to me in 11 a -- and said, all of us -- in a certain tone that I 12 will not characterize -- said, all of us are sworn 13 officers. And that's -- the reason that I'm asking 14 this line of questioning is because it goes to the 15 very heart of how these proceedings have been 16 conducted and how I believe the police simply think 17 that they can come in here and presume to tell the 18 board and tell me and tell all of us how things are. 19 And I don't think that's appropriate, honestly. I 20 don't think it's respectful to all of us. Not just 21 to me, but to all of us. And so, I'm asking these questions 23 because I'm pointing out that in every other 24 proceeding, the chief is aware that she is sworn.

25 And yet, in this proceeding, things were different.

1 book of some of the people here, but it definitely

1 Eventually, she was sworn, but only because I I'll represent to you, I think there 2 are 20 or close to 20 transcripts. You looked at 2 requested it. 3 MR. McGUCKIN: So, after eight 3 all of them, to the best of your knowledge? 4 minutes, we've established she was sworn. And your I think I did. But I'm not --Α 5 question now is, did she testify as to the different Okay. Did you -- how did you get 0 6 roles she plays as the chief of police? And her 6 those transcripts? 7 response was yes. And she was about to explain what 7 Α From the business administrator. That would be who, Mr. Camera? 8 she meant by that. And I would agree that there 8 Q 9 will be some limits on what the witness can do as 9 A 10 far as cross-examination; that is, you're supposed 10 0 Okay. And do you know how he got the 11 to answer the questions that are proffered. But 11 transcripts? 12 this is an administrative hearing, not a trial. And 12 A No, you'd have to ask him. And whose idea was it that you would 13 I don't think it's inappropriate for the witness to 13 Q 14 give a brief explanation, if necessary. But to that 14 receive those transcripts before you testified here? 15 question, I agree with Mr. Michelini, you know, just 15 Α I inquired about them. 16 simply indicate, you know, is that what you said. You inquired about it? 16 Q 17 Because I think that's what he said. That was the 17 Α Yes, I did. 18 question that he asked. 18 Q Who did you inquire initially? The question was, that's what you 19 For the transcripts? Q Α 20 said, correct? 20 Q Yes. 21 Α 21 Α Mr. Camera. Yes. Thank you. Now, I notice you have a 22 Okay. How did you know to inquire of Q Q 23 number of documents in front of you. Are those 23 him? 24 documents that you previously had in front of you 24 Because he's the business Α 25 when you testified? 25 administrator and I did sit in on a couple of the

14

13

16

1 hearings.

25 else.

They're all the documents that I A 2 supplied for you. 3 Q So, they are the exhibits? 4 A Okay. Are those the only documents 6 that you reviewed before you testified in this 7 matter? 8 A What do you mean? 9 Did you look at any other documents Q 10 before you came in and testified? 11 Α Transcripts. 12 Q You looked at transcripts? 13 Α 14 Q Transcripts of the hearings here? 15 Α 16 Q Do you know what dates of the 17 transcripts? 18 Α All of them. 19 Q You looked at all of them? 20 Α Uh-hum. 21 Q Yes? 22 Α Yes. 23 Q Okay. Do you know how many there 24 were? 25 Α No, I don't know.

2 Q Okay. And you assumed that he would 3 have the transcripts? I would assume he would know how to Α 5 get the transcripts or where to get the transcripts 6 or if I'm entitled to the transcripts. But I think 7 those questions would be better answered by the 8 business administrator. All right. So, Mr. Camera gave you 0 10 the transcripts. He gave you the full transcripts, 11 not annotations or partials? 12 Α No. They were just questions, 13 answers. Were they -- what kind of format were 15 they? Were they in booklet form? 16 A I don't know. I don't know what 17 booklet form is. Well, I'm asking that because when I 18 19 was here and I was watching you testify the first 20 time that you were here, it appeared that you were 21 testifying not from regular transcripts or looking 22 at regular transcripts, but that you were looking at 23 annotations. In other words, portions of 24 transcripts that had been put together by someone

```
17
                                                                                MR. MICHELINI: I don't know what her
                  No, I don't think so.
 1
 2
                  You don't think so?
          Q
                                                               2 notes say. I want to see what they say.
 3
          Α
                                                               3
                                                                                MR. McGUCKIN: For what purpose?
                  You've never seen annotated
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: Because she was
          Q
                                                               5 obviously making notes of what she saw. And I want
 5 transcripts?
                  Tell me what annotated transcripts
                                                               6 to see what they say. I mean, I think I'm entitled
 7 are. Meaning something with notes from the business
                                                               7 to.
 8 administrator?
                                                                                MR. McGUCKIN: Why would you be
                  No. I mean, something where the
                                                               9 entitled to her personal notes? I don't understand
10 transcript has been manipulated such that, on one
11 side, it may have -- it's split in -- it's split
                                                                                MR. MICHELINI: I'm entitled to it
12 into parts. Maybe --
                                                              12 because she's -- it relates to the testimony that
                                                              13 she gave in this case. That's why I'm entitled to
13
          Α
                  It looked like it went by date.
14
                  Okay. Let me show you a transcript
15 in this matter. Did it look something like what I'm
                                                                                MR. McGUCKIN: I would disagree. She
16 showing you right now --
                                                              16 gave testimony. You have her transcript of her
                                                               17 testimony. You have the exhibits she referred to
17
          Α
                                                               18 during that testimony. I don't see why you would be
18
          Q
                  -- which is --
19
          Α
                  Yes.
                                                              19 entitled to her personal notes.
                  And it was in this format?
                                                                                MR. MICHELINI: Because she has those
20
21
          Α
                  It was two pages, like this page and
                                                              21 in front of her right now as she is testifying.
                                                              22 That's why.
22 this page. Copy that.
          Q
                  All right. So, did you read all the
                                                              23
                                                                                 MR. McGUCKIN: Did she -- have you
24 transcripts?
                                                              24 indicated that she needed to refer to them for any
                  I tried to. I breezed through a lot
                                                              25 reason?
          Α
                                                 18
                                                                                                                20
```

2 to them.

MR. MICHELINI: She may need to refer

1 of it that didn't pertain to the PD. Q Did you take notes? I just wrote down the cases that Α 4 pertained to us that I presented. Okay. And did you keep those notes? 6 Do you have them with you? Α Yes, I do. 8 Do you have those notes with you? 9 Yes. I went word-for-word. I 10 wrote -- read right down this right here 11 (indicating). 0 Let me take a moment to see what you 13 have in front of you. THE WITNESS: Is he allowed to do 15 that? MR. McGUCKIN: I'm not sure. These 17 are notes that you prepared? THE WITNESS: Yeah, it's pretty much 19 exactly what I said at the meeting. MR. McGUCKIN: The attachments to 21 that are the exhibits that have been presented? THE WITNESS: Yes, the attachments

MR. McGUCKIN: Why would you need her

23 are the exhibits.

25 notes if she's already testified?

MR. McGUCKIN: I'm sorry? 3 MR. MICHELINI: She may need to refer 5 to them. She has them there for reference. MR. McGUCKIN: She hasn't yet, so --7 Did you refer to any of your notes Q 8 when you testified at all in the last two hearings? The first hearing, yes. 9 Α 10 Q Okay. Well, can I see your notes, 11 then? MR. McGUCKIN: Chief, if you wish to 13 give them to him, it's up to you. I don't think 14 you're required to. 15 I don't see why she would be required 16 to give you her notes. MR. MICHELINI: I think I'm entitled 18 to them, Mr. McGuckin. 19 MR. McGUCKIN: Why? MR. MICHELINI: Because she referred 20 21 to those notes during her testimony. MR. McGUCKIN: She testified. 22 23 MR. MICHELINI: It's relevant. MR. McGUCKIN: If you have some facts

25 that somehow are different than what she testified

```
23
                                                                1 themselves. Taking notes either for or against any
1 to, maybe that would be a different --
                  MR. MICHELINI: I don't know without
                                                                2 application, waivers or variances or anything like
                                                                3 that. So, you know, at what point do we open, you
 3 looking at the notes.
                  MR. McGUCKIN: Well, you don't need
                                                                4 know, can we ask for the people of South Seaside
5 the notes to know what she testified to. You have
                                                                5 Park, the petitioners, their notes as well? How
 6 the transcript.
                                                                6 much further does this go down the rabbit hole?
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: There is no request
                  MR. MICHELINI: I need to look at the
8 notes to know.
                                                                 for the notes of the board. This is a witness.
                  MR. WINWARD: I actually take
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: Now, will she be able
10 exception to this, too, because, basically, the
                                                               10 to ask for your notes?
11 reason she is here is because there were residential
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: If you -- if the
12 allegations of insufficient services and response
                                                               12 witnesses were testifying from notes and you wanted
13 time by the Berkeley Township Police Department.
                                                               13 to see them, I think you could have asked for them.
14 And she read, obviously, had to read the
                                                                                 MR. GINGRICH: Through the Chair,
                                                               14
15 transcripts. That was her concern. She's not
                                                               15 please, if I may.
16 involved in the politics of the matter. She only
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: Yes.
                                                               16
17 wanted to address the questions regarding the
                                                                                 MR. GINGRICH: I would really like to
18 Berkeley Township Police Department. And any notes
                                                               18 know how any of this is going to get us and where
19 she made was probably as she went through the
                                                               19 we're supposed to be going.
20 transcripts and found those areas.
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: Well, I think it's
                  MR. MICHELINI: Well, I don't think
                                                               21 important to know how it came about that the chief
22 we can -- with all due respect, Mr. Chairman, I
                                                               22 testified here today or in the last two times that
23 don't think we can speculate about why she made the
                                                               23 she was here. And that's where it's going.
24 notes, what the notes were that she made, or what
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: You know --
                                                               24
25 her motivations were in terms of testifying.
                                                                                 MR. GINGRICH: So, it's a case of,
                                                               25
```

22 24

24 board can make the ruling.

MR. WINWARD: I just think that

```
1 she armed herself to be able to answer questions
                  MR. MICHELINI: I think I'm entitled
                                                               2 that you were going to ask. And now you want to
3 to explore all of that.
                                                               3 know where she got her notes?
                  MR. McGUCKIN: I would disagree with
                                                                                MR. MICHELINI: I don't know what the
5 Counsel. I don't believe he's entitled to the notes
                                                               5 answers are, Mr. Gingrich.
 6 of a witness, nor did any of the witnesses presented
                                                                                MR. GINGRICH: Yeah, you do. You
                                                               7 asked the questions. You asked the questions.
7\, by the applicant present their notes, other than
8 what they testified to.
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: Mr. Gingrich, with
                  MR. MICHELINI: They weren't asked.
                                                               9
                                                                 all due respect, I'm not sure if what you're saying
9
10
                  MR. McGUCKIN: There's no reason.
                                                               10 is true in terms of, she armed herself or --
11 This is not a trial, as I said. It's not discovery.
                                                                                MR. GINGRICH: That's just my
12 This is a hearing and testimony. She's presented
                                                              12 assumption. I mean --
13 that testimony by transcript. You have the
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: That's your
14 transcripts. I don't see any reason for her to
                                                              14 assumption. Exactly.
15 provide her notes.
                                                              15
                                                                                MR. GINGRICH: Right.
                  MR. MACKRES: Mr. McGuckin.
                                                                                MR. MICHELINI: Exactly. That's your
16
17 Mr. Chairman.
                                                              17 assumption. I'm here to find out information, so
18
                  MR. WINWARD: Yes.
                                                              18 I'm asking questions.
                  MR. MACKRES: I'd like to take it a
                                                                                MR. GINGRICH: I don't see that
20 step further. What about the notes of the board
                                                               20 it's -- why it's anybody's business other than the
21 members? I mean, we all take notes.
                                                               21 person that's answering the questions. Just my own
                  MR. WINWARD: I'm hiding mine as we
                                                              22 belief.
23 speak.
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: Okay. Well, the
                  MR. MACKRES: I always consider that
```

MR. McGUCKIN: Mr. Chairman --

25 deliberative. It's a deliberative document amongst

25 1 that's going a little too far, because we often make Okay. Did he tell you why you should 2 be here? 2 notes to respond. Her basic job is to justify the, you 3 A To listen to the testimony of the 4 complaints from South Seaside Park pertaining to the 4 know, the accusations about the lack of response 5 time, the lack of services. And I think she did an 5 police department. 6 excellent job in presenting that. But to Q And when did Mr. Reed tell you to do 7 that? 7 assassinate her character, I think you're getting a I don't recall. 8 little bit too -- it's not, like Greg says, it's not 8 A 9 a trial. 9 Was that months ago? Q MR. MICHELINI: I'm not trying to 10 It was when this initially started. 10 Α 11 assassinate her character. I think the chief is 11 I don't know. 12 actually a very fine person. I think she made a Okay. So, how many of these meetings 12 Q 13 mistake when she said she didn't have to be sworn. 13 have you actually attended? 14 But I think she is a fine person. So, don't take it Two or three. 14 Α 15 that way. 15 0 Two or three? MR. McGUCKIN: Mr. Chairman, I don't 16 A Yeah. 17 think it's appropriate for the witness to have to 17 And --18 give up personal notes in a hearing such as this. 18 A One, I know you and I spoke. And I MR. WINWARD: And there's no jury. 19 think there was one other. So, maybe there was two. 20 There's no trial. There's not going to be guilty or 20 I don't really know. I don't know. 21 not guilty. So, I think that's -- we should just Q When Mr. Camera talked to you, was 22 move on and continue the questioning. 22 that the first time that anybody -- other than Mr. 23 BY MR. MICHELINI: 23 Reed, was that the first time that anybody had

26

Chief, how did it come about that you

25 were to bring testimony here today, in the last two

1 hearings? How did that come about?

28

I knew about it.

When did you first find out about it?

24 talked to you about de-annexation?

Α

0

25

1

2 Α I was told I had to be here. 3 Who? Who told you that? The business administrator. 4 Α 5 Q Mr. Camera told you that? 6 Α 7 Why? Why did he tell you to be here? 8 Α To defend the police department. 9 Okay. And what did he -- when did 0 10 this discussion occur? I think it was actually two or three 11 Α 12 days prior to the first meeting. So that would have been when? Two or 14 three days prior to the September meeting when you 15 testified? 16 Α 17 0 Okay. And he told you to be here 18 then because -- now, you were here at the prior 19 meetings, were you not? 20 A Yeah. Not all of them. 21 Why were you here at prior meetings? 22 Because the prior business A 23 administrator told me to be here. Who was that? 24 Q

Chris Reed.

Q

25

Α

I don't know. This has been going on 3 for quite some time. But I know the beach cars 4 started letting us know that there were signs on 5 people's properties. You know, and just from the 6 word of the -- the officers were actually coming 7 back and letting us know how many signs were on 8 people's properties and that they were saying they 9 liked the police coverage, but they wanted -- they 10 wanted lower taxes. 11 Q Who said that? 12 If you're going to ask me specifics, 13 I don't know specifics. This has been going on for 14 a very long time. 15 Q I want to clarify that. That's an 16 important statement. So, the police told -- the 17 police that were over there --18 Α The officers were advising me, yes. 19 Yes, that the people --Q 20 Α That they --21 Excuse me. Let me finish. Q 22 Α Okay. 23 The officers over there were telling Q 24 you that the people over there, that is, the people 25 in South Seaside Park, were -- they would like the

1 police coverage, but they were dissatisfied and All right. Just that they wanted Α 2 wanted lower taxes? 2 more police presence. 3 Α Yes. 3 Q Right. 4 Okay. Which officers told you that? 4 Α 0 5 I don't recall. Okay. And that was around the time 0 6 You don't know? 6 that they were talking about de-annexation also? Q No. But I do know that, maybe this 7 7 I think it was before they were 8 will clarify it, there was a meeting at the 8 talking. 9 Tri-Boro. I think it was Tri-Boro. And there --9 You think it was before? 0 I don't want you to speculate, so 10 I think but I don't know. 0 Α 11 please don't speculate. 11 Q You don't know? Okay. There was a website with 12 I don't know, no. Α 13 meetings from -- a meeting from -- what's it called, When did the program start? 13 Q 14 with the signs? I forget the name of it. 14 They started the class one officers Α South Seaside Park Homeowners and 15 in South Seaside Park on loan from Seaside Park Q 16 Voters Association? 16 where we paid Seaside Park, that was in 2011. And Yes. And that was on the website. 17 then we started the program, which was up and 18 And I do recall reading some of the information 18 running 2015, '14. '14. I would have to check on 19 there also. 19 that for you. 20 20 Q Okay. Would you be surprised to learn that 21 Α But if you're going to ask me how 21 the de-annexation efforts started around 2011? 22 long ago that was, I don't know. I don't know when they started. A Q Probably years ago, right? 23 Q So, it wouldn't surprise you to learn 24 Could have been. Α 24 that, correct? 25 Q Yes? 25 Α I don't know when they started.

30

32

1 Α Yes. And did you understand that they were 3 also upset about other issues, from reading the 4 website and talking to people? 5 Α They wanted more police protection. 6 0 Right. That is true. Just like I told, and 8 I testified to back in, I think it was 2011, don't 9 quote me, it was a meeting with the residents, 10 myself, the mayor was there, I believe some council 11 people. I don't remember at the time. Because now 12 we're talking years ago. And they discussed the 13 displeasure with how many officers. We started a 14 program. Like I said in my testimony, that those 15 kind of programs can't be born overnight. And that was a program for class one Q 17 and class two officers, correct? 18 Α That is correct, yes. And so, that program started in part 20 as a result of the dissatisfaction of the people in 21 South Seaside Park; is that correct? Is that what 22 you're saying? Α Maybe not dissatisfaction with the

Correct. I agree with that.

24 officers that were over there.

Okay. I'm asking if it would Q 2 surprise you. Would it surprise you? You told me not to speculate. 3 Α Okay. Well, if you can't answer it, Q 5 say, I can't answer. Now, so, the first knowledge that you were to 7 testify in this matter was from when Mr. Camera told 8 you? No. And when Chris Reed had told me Α 10 to, you know, start showing up at the meetings, 11 because there will become a time where I will have 12 to give testimony. Q Okay. And you would be giving that 14 on behalf of the township, correct? 15 Α Yes, as it pertains to the police 16 department. 17 Q Right. Because you're an employee of 18 the township, correct? 19 Α That is correct. 20 Q And you're here in your official 21 capacity? 22 Α I am. 23 Q You're wearing your uniform, correct? 24 Yes, I am. Α 25 Q Okay. And Chris Reed was the then

35 1 administrator. Did you have -- how many discussions 1 representative. 2 did you have with Mr. Reed about the matter? MR. McGUCKIN: He's not testifying. 3 Α I don't recall. 3 You want to cross-examine her on her testimony, Did you discuss testifying with 0 4 cross-examine her on her testimony --5 Mr. Reed on more than one occasion or you don't MR. MICHELINI: She can --6 know? MR. McGUCKIN: -- not what she thinks I don't recall. This is -- this is 7 the mental impressions of somebody else are. It's 7 8 years ago. 8 absolutely inappropriate. 9 Okay. So, then, did you discuss it MR. WINWARD: I think you'd be asking 0 10 recently with Mr. Camera? 10 her to speculate. 11 Α MR. MICHELINI: No, I'm not. I'm Q Okay. And when was that discussion? 12 asking her if she had an understanding as to whether 12 13 Couple of days before the September 13 or not Mr. Camera was in favor or against 14 meeting, I was told we had to be here. 14 de-annexation. She can testify --Q Okay. We meaning whom? MR. McGUCKIN: It's completely Me and whoever was going to testify. 16 irrelevant to her testimony before this court. 16 Α MR. MICHELINI: She can -- first of 17 Q Who told you that? Mr. Camera? 18 Α 18 all, it's not a court, but --19 19 MR. McGUCKIN: I agree. Q Okay. Anybody else? Where did he MR. MICHELINI: -- yes, she can 20 tell you that? 20 21 Α I believe it was on the phone. I 21 testify to that, as to what her impressions are. It 22 don't know. 22 goes to the motivations of her testimony here. Okay. And what did he say? Just 23 MR. McGUCKIN: You want to ask her 24 that we needed you to testify? 24 her motivations, that's fine. Don't ask her what Yeah, and that there were a couple of 25 other people told her as to --Α

34

36

1 cases that, you know, the residents had brought up 2 about the response times and if we looked into them. 3 And you have the documentations on them. Anything else he tell you? No. To be quite honest, there wasn't 6 a whole lot of guidance when it came to this. We're 7 flying solo here. Okay. All right. And did you 9 understand that the township was not necessarily in 10 favor of de-annexation? MR. McGUCKIN: Hold on. Hold on.

12 That's absolutely inappropriate for this witness. 13 You want to cross-examine her on her testimony, 14 that's fine. You want her -- you want her to give 15 an opinion as to what township officials think or 16 the township as a whole, I think that's absolutely Well, let me ask it more 19 specifically. Did you get any impression whatsoever 20 from Mr. Camera about whether or not he was in favor

21 of de-annexation? Α It was --MR. McGUCKIN: Hold on. What's his 24 opinion have to do with anything? MR. MICHELINI: He's a township

17 inappropriate.

0

18

22

MR. MICHELINI: I can certainly ask 2 her what she understood her impressions were of 3 Mr. Camera, his understanding about de-annexation, 4 whether or not he had a preference for it. I can 5 ask --MR. McGUCKIN: I disagree. I 7 disagree, Mr. Chairman. MR. MICHELINI: Well, I think it's 9 very relevant. She's here as a township employee. MR. McGUCKIN: She is the Chief of 10 11 Police of the Township of Berkeley. MR. MICHELINI: Yes, but she's here 13 as a township employee. She indicated that. MR. McGUCKIN: Yes, she's a township 15 employee. She's the Chief of Police of Berkeley. MR. MICHELINI: That's correct. That 17 is correct. And I think she has the ability -- look 18 if she -- if she can answer the question and say, 19 yes, I understood he was against de-annexation. How 20 do you know that? This is because he told me this 21 or thus or so. Or no, he's in favor of the 22 petitioners. Or he didn't express an opinion. 23 There's any number of ways she can answer the

MR. McGUCKIN: You're asking her for

24 question.

1 an appropriate level of service counter to what the

2 allegations may have been. And I know there was, I

4 minutes. Records were read that this one incident

5 was only four minutes, not 20 minutes. Just one

6 example. And I think that's why the police were

10 what, you know, and what she testified regarding

11 that. And I think we should keep the answers to

13 you what the business administrator thinks.

15 didn't ask what he thinks. I'm asking if she

17 he said to her. That's the question.

7 here. That's my impression. They're here to answer

8 whether or not they're providing adequate service to

9 the residents of South Seaside Park. I think that's

12 that. You can't ask her. I mean, I can't even tell

16 understood what his impressions were based upon what

MR. MICHELINI: I'm entitled to -- I

3 think, discussion about response time being 20

```
1 her mental impressions of another person who's not
 2 testifying. You want to cross-examine her on her
 3 testimony, absolutely appropriate. I don't think
 4 it's appropriate to ask her what other people may
 5 have thought or said.
                  MR. MICHELINI: I can ask her what
 7 people said. I can ask her what people said.
8
                  MR. McGUCKIN: We'll see. We'll see.
9
                  Did Mr. Camera indicate to you at all
10 whether or not he was in favor of de-annexation?
                  There wasn't a whole lot of
12 conversation. And no, I don't know what his
13 personal opinion of this case is.
                  Do you know what his opinion is as an
15 employee of the township?
                  For what?
16
          A
17
                  For or against de-annexation?
18
          Α
                  I don't know. That's a question you
19 need to ask him.
                 MR. BACCHIONE: Mr. Chairman, through
21 the Chair. I think Mr. Michelini should keep his
22 questions to the testimony that she gave, and no
```

23 other questions. This witness is not here to be

MR. MICHELINI: I'm not badgering --

24 badgered.

25

MR. McGUCKIN: Absolute speculation.

MR. BELL: Does that matter?

MR. MICHELINI: Yes, I think it

would. Yes, I think it would.

MR. BELL: He's got her coming here

because he knows somebody said something about the

police department. And he said, go listen so you

25 have a firsthand hearing of it. Now she did. And

38

25

MR. BACCHIONE: Yes, you are. My 2 opinion, you are. So, I'll go on record as saying 3 that. I think you should keep your 5 questions, through the chair, to the testimony that 6 she gave, period. And any other questions, in my 7 opinion, are inappropriate. MR. WINWARD: And we can also decide 9 another evening if the township officials get to be 10 questioned, but I think if they are, at that point, 11 I think that would be appropriate. MR. MICHELINI: Well, this is a 13 situation where a township administrator asked her 14 to testify. I think I'm entitled to ask her what 15 her impressions were as to why --MR. McGUCKIN: How many times are we 17 going to go back and forth? Mr. Chairman, it's an 18 inappropriate question. MR. WINWARD: I think --20 MR. MICHELINI: May I finish my 21 question?

MR. WINWARD: I think the whole

23 situation was, there was residential allegations

24 made of improper services. And the police were

25 asked to testify to show that maybe we are providing

40 1 she's answering questions. MR. MICHELINI: I think it matters. MR. BELL: We didn't say, go there 4 and tell them what I think. 5 MR. MICHELINI: I think it matters. MR. WINWARD: I think we're wasting a 7 lot of time in debating. This happened a meeting I 8 missed. I had to suffer through the transcript of 9 20 minutes of a two-hour period of about a sign and 10 whether it was five feet from somebody's property 11 line. And we didn't have a surveyor to tell us 12 whose property it actually was on and all that kind 13 of stuff. So, I think we're just getting a little 14 bit too far. I think we should keep the testimony 15 to what the police chief and her department has 16 testified regarding levels of service. I mean, 17 that's the most appropriate thing at this time. MR. MICHELINI: Chief -- so I 19 understand, you're asking me to move on and not to 20 ask those questions, correct? Correct? 21 MR. McGUCKIN: The questions are 22 inappropriate. 23 MR. MICHELINI: So, you're asking me 24 not to ask them --

MR. WINWARD: Yeah. Ask her what she

```
41
                                                                                                                 43
                                                                                  MR. McGUCKIN: Absolutely disagree.
 1 thinks --
                  MR. MICHELINI: -- correct?
                                                                2 What her impression what the board -- what the
                                                                3 planning board's legal obligations are, it's
                  MR. McGUCKIN: You already asked.
 4 They're in the record.
                                                                4 absolutely inappropriate for what she testified to.
                  MR. WINWARD: -- the police
                                                                5 She had absolutely made no such --
 6 department. Not the township administration.
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: I don't --
 7 That's not -- because you're going to get her --
                                                                                  (Off the record.)
 8 it's going to open all kinds of cans of worms and,
                                                                                 MR. McGUCKIN: I think you did ask
 9 you know.
                                                                9 the question. And that's when I raised the
10 BY MR. MICHELINI:
                                                               10 objection to it. And I don't think it's appropriate
          Q
                  You're appearing here voluntarily,
                                                               11 to have the Chief of Police testify as to what the
12 correct?
                                                               12 legal role of the planning board is.
13
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: I didn't ask her to
                  MR. BELL: That was just a bit of
                                                               14 testify as to what the legal role is. I asked her
14 humor, right?
                  THE WITNESS: I think so.
                                                               15 to testify as to what her understanding of what the
          Q
                  You're not subpoenaed, correct?
                                                               16 board was doing in this proceeding.
16
17
                  No, I'm not.
                                                                                 MR. McGUCKIN: I think it's the same
                  And --
18
                                                               18 thing. You're asking her what the board's role is
19
                                                               19 in the matter. I don't think that's appropriate.
                  But maybe I should be for the future.
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: And she has --
20
                  Presumably, you're getting paid for
21 your time here, correct? Not enough, but getting
                                                                                  MR. McGUCKIN: Let me finish,
                                                               22 Mr. Michelini. You want to cross-examine her on her
22 paid?
23
          Α
                  Not enough. Put that on the record.
                                                               23 testimony, then cross-examine her on her testimony.
24
                  And the other officers, they're
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: Part of
25 getting paid for their time when they testify as
                                                               25 cross-examination is exploring motivations of
```

1 people. It's done all the time. And you're not

2 going to allow me to do that, that's fine. I just

```
1 well, correct?
          Α
                  That is correct.
                  MR. GINGRICH: We're not. Just put
 4 that on.
5
                  MR. WINWARD: Well noted, Brian.
 6 Thank you.
                  The presentation that you put on
          0
8 without interruption or cross-examination, I found
9 to be quite unusual. Whose idea was that? Was that
10 your idea?
11
          Α
                  And did anybody instruct you in that?
13 Tell you to do that?
                  No, that's how I thought the process
15 went.
                  What do you understand the role of
17 the planning board to be in this proceeding?
                  MR. McGUCKIN: Hold on.
18
19
                  I have no idea.
                  MR. McGUCKIN: Hold on. What's the
20
21 relevance of what the police chief thinks the
22 planning board's role is?
                  MR. MICHELINI: It's relevant to the
24 process and to the motivations of people that are
25 testifying in this matter.
```

3 want to make it clear on the record that that's what 4 I'm trying to do, okay. And part of that is what 5 her understanding of what this proceeding is all 6 about. And that's what I think is relevant. Now, you don't think it's relevant, 8 you're not going to allow me to proceed, that's 9 fine. Let me just make it clear that I am making an 10 attempt to get information that I believe is 11 relevant, because it goes to the motivation of the 12 party -- of the witness. I'm sorry. Thank you. 13 THE WITNESS: Do I answer? MR. WINWARD: You don't have to. If 15 you want to, it's up to you. You don't really have 16 to answer. 17 THE WITNESS: You want to know what 18 my motivation here is? No. I asked what you understood the 20 role of the planning board to be in this action. 21 Mr. McGuckin does not want you to answer that. MR. McGUCKIN: I believe it's an 23 inappropriate question to ask this witness. If she 24 wants to answer the question, it's completely up to 25 her.

45 47 What do you understand the role of 1 any of your testimony, correct? 2 the planning board to be in this matter? That's correct. Not pertaining to 2 A 3 this. Α Do I answer that question or not (Off the record.) 4 answer that question? MR. McGUCKIN: It's your decision, You didn't speak to any of the Q 6 Chief. 6 planning board members pertaining to this matter? 7 I have no idea what their role is. (Off the record.) Α 8 Have you discussed the de-annexation 8 Your preparation and testimony was 9 matter with anybody besides Mr. Camera or Mr. Reed? 9 really done by the police alone, correct? Yes, numerous staff. That is correct. Α And that -- would that be in Q You didn't have the influence of 12 conjunction with providing testimony? 12 anybody else? 13 Would it be what? 13 Α No, we were not provided an attorney 14 What was the purpose of your Q 14 or any guidance. 15 discussing? Q You didn't meet with any of the board Because we had to, you know, divvy up 16 professionals, correct? 17 who was going to discuss what parts and who was the Α Nope. Nope. 18 subject matter expert in this. Who would be able to 18 Q Have you met with any of the board 19 delivery testimony the most effective way in that. 19 professionals for any other matter? 20 That's what it was. I mean, I know them, but what other Α Okay. Have you talked to anybody 21 matter do you mean, like --22 else besides Administrators Reed and Camera about Any matter. In the last -- since you Q 23 the matter and the members of your department who 23 started testifying here, have you met with them? 24 were to testify? A Nope. I see Councilman Bacchione at A No, I don't think anyone else cares. 25 council meetings. 46 Okay. And you don't talk to him Q So, you never talked to the mayor Q 1 2 about it? 2 about de-annexation, I take it, correct? 3 Α No, we --3 Α 4 Never talked to any members of the 4 You avoid that? Q Q 5 council about it? 5 A Yeah. We can avoid that and --6 Α 6 0 And you haven't spoken to -- you Never talked to Mr. McGuckin about 7 haven't met with Mr. Wiser, correct? 8 it? I assume he doesn't represent you, correct? 8 Α Oh, Mr. Wiser. Hello. I'm sorry. 9 No, he does not. 9 MR. WISER: That's okay. 10 Q Did you examine any of the 10 No. Α 11 plaintiffs' exhibits before you testified? 11 How about Mr. Peters? I think he's Q No. What are the plaintiffs' 12 here. Mr. Peters, have you met with him? 13 exhibits? 13 Α Mr. Peters, no, not on this matter. How about Mr. Dickerson? The petitioners' exhibits. 14 15 Petitioners' exhibits. You didn't look at any of MR. DICKERSON: Dickerson. 15 16 those? MR. MICHELINI: Dickerson. I got it 16 A No. I was here the one day that 17 right. 18 Don Whiteman was talking. But I sat in the back. I 18 Α Nope, not Mr. Dickerson. 19 didn't really see. I think he had a map or 19 Q How about Mr. Oris? He's not here. 20 something up. 20 You don't know him, right? And I take it you did not speak to 21 I do know him. He has to come to the Α 22 council meetings. 22 any of the planning board members before you

23

25

Q

Α

No.

24 him either?

All right. But you haven't met with

23 testified in this matter, correct?

Α

Q

25

That's correct.

And you haven't spoken to them after

```
Q
                  What about Stan? I can't say his
                                                               1 zoning board and the planning board and some of the
 2 last name.
                                                                2 other boards.
3
                  MR. DICKERSON: Slachetka.
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 Okay. So, let me -- let me show you
 4
                  MR. MICHELINI: What is it?
                                                                4 a notation that's highlighted from 9/28/2016. Do
                  MR. DICKERSON: Slachetka.
                                                               5 you see that?
                  MR. MICHELINI: Thank you.
 6
                                                                6
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 I do.
7
                  Who's Stan?
                                                               7
                                                                                 And it says Peters, Ernest?
                                                                         0
8
                  Stan Slachetka. He's the planner.
                                                               8
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 Right.
9 You haven't met with him, correct?
                                                               9
                                                                         0
                                                                                 He's one of the professionals here at
                 I don't even know who Stan is. We
                                                              10 the board --
11 try and keep all our business in that building over
                                                              11
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 He is.
12 there. And we try not to come over here as much as
                                                              12
                                                                                 -- correct? And it says, review
                                                                         Q
13 possible.
                                                              13 previous transcripts with police chief. Do you see
                                                              14 that? One hour, $140. Do you see that?
14
                  So, you didn't meet with any of the
15 professionals to review the transcripts, correct?
                                                              15
                                                                         Α
                                                                                I do see that.
                  No, we did not. And we didn't have
                                                              16
                                                                                 Did that happen?
                                                                         Q
17 much notice on that either.
                                                              17
                                                                         A
                                                                                 Did he review transcripts with me?
                                                                                Yeah --
                  MR. MICHELINI: Could you mark this
                                                              18
                                                                         Q
19 as an exhibit, please.
                                                              19
                                                                         Α
                                                                                No.
                  (The Invoices from Remington &
                                                              20
                                                                                -- that's what it says.
21 Vernick was marked as A-63 for identification.)
                                                              21
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 What I'm saying is, nobody -- and
                  (Off the record.)
                                                              22 quite frankly, the township didn't provide us an
                  MR. MICHELINI: I'll identify it for
23
                                                              23 attorney. We have done all of this on our own. We
24 the record. A-63 is invoices from Remington &
                                                              24 were notified a couple of days prior to the
25 Vernick that were obtained by way of, with time
                                                              25 testimony. And I'm sorry, Mr. Camera, but, you
```

```
1 records, by way of an OPRA request, open public
 2 records request, okay.
                  Is that what this appears to be? Do
 4 you see Remington & Vernick at the top?
          Α
                 Yes, it does say Remington & Vernick
 6 at the top.
          0
                  It appears to be time records, it
8 says Wiser, Stuart --
                  I've never seen a report like this,
9
10 so --
                 Okay. But do you see the name? Do
          Q
12 you see the name Stuart Wiser?
          Α
                  Yes, I do.
                  Okay. And you see time records where
15 it says -- and it's got a column for a date, right?
16 A column for hours? A column for rate, as in rate
17 of pay? Do you see that?
                  I thought I'm here to testify on my
18
          Α
19 testimony.
20
          Q
                  You are.
                  This is not in my spectrum. I don't
22 pay -- I don't pay the Remington & Vernick bills. I
23 don't know why the question on the bills.
```

MR. WINWARD: They don't represent

25

25 the police department. They only represent the

2 been afforded an attorney to guide us through this. 3 And maybe if that did occur, maybe, you know, they 4 would have been able to explain the process to me. 5 But, like I said before, I thought this was, you 6 know, we gave testimony and then you, you know, 7 cross-examined us. I thought that's what the 8 process was. So, you're asking me --Excuse me. My question is -- I just 10 showed you an exhibit. The exhibit says that 11 Mr. Peters --12 Α I don't have appointments with --13 0 Excuse me. 14 -- Remington Vernick. Please let me finish the question. 15 Q 16 The exhibit says that Mr. Peters --MR. GINGRICH: Through the Chair. 17 MR. MICHELINI: Excuse me. 18 MR. WINWARD: Hold on. 19 20 Q The exhibit says that Mr. Peters met 21 with you on 9/28. MR. WINWARD: It doesn't say that. 22 23 MR. MICHELINI: Well, let me read it 24 exactly.

MR. WINWARD: It says, review

1 know, we're kind of left out here. We should have

```
1 previous transcripts with police chief. It meant, I
                                                               1 up and the reason why I'm actually here?
 2 would think this meant, the transcripts of the
                                                                                Excuse me. This is not a time for
                                                                        Q
 3 meeting from September where the police chief
                                                               3 you to ask questions. This is a time for you --
 4 started testifying. That's what I would think.
                                                               4 with all due respect -- and I do respect you. I
                 MR. MICHELINI: Okay. Well, that's
                                                               5 know you've got a tough job.
 6 what I'm asking.
                                                                        Now, are you personally as the police chief,
                 MR. WINWARD: There's no reason for
                                                               7 concerned about de-annexation?
8 an engineer to meet with a police chief otherwise.
                                                                        Α
                                                                                In reference to what?
                 MR. MICHELINI: Well, I don't know.
                                                               9
                                                                        0
                                                                                In reference to your police budget
10 That's why I'm asking her the question, okay.
                                                              10 for, let's say. Are you worried that if
                  So this says, review previous
                                                              11 de-annexation occurs, your budget will be cut?
12 transcripts with police chief, okay. That's what it
                                                                                I don't think my budget will be cut.
                                                                        A
13 says. I'm asking you the question. Did you meet
                                                              13
                                                                        Q
                                                                                So, you're not worried about that?
14 with Mr. Peters?
                                                              14
                                                                                I don't want to lose that section of
                                                                        Δ
          Α
                 And review transcripts?
                                                              15 town.
16
                 Did you meet with him at all?
                                                                                But you're not thinking your budget
                                                              16
                                                                        Q
                                                              17 will be cut? You're not concerned with that?
                 I see him when we go to what we call
18 Meet the Mayor meetings.
                                                              18
                                                                        A
                                                                                I don't think my budget would be cut.
          Q
                 Okay. Did you meet with him on
                                                              19
                                                                                Have you had meetings with anyone
                                                              20 within the department about de-annexation and what
20 September 28, 2016?
                  No, I didn't meet with anyone
                                                              21 the impact of that could be on the police
          A
22 reference this. We were kind of left in the cold
                                                              22 department?
23 with this. And I'm trying --
                                                              23
                                                                        Α
                                                                                Not one.
24
                 I want to be very --
                                                              24
                                                                        Q
                                                                                So you are not concerned at all that
          Q
25
                  Well, I'm trying to be very specific
                                                              25 if de-annexation --
          Α
```

54

```
1 to you. Now, our problems started because you're
                                                                                I'm, I'm --
                                                               1
                                                                        Α
 2 saying I'm doing the process wrong. I'm telling you
                                                                                Go ahead. Go ahead.
 3 that nobody helped us with this.
                                                                                No, you go ahead.
                                                               3
                                                                        Α
                  I understand that. I understand
                                                               4
                                                                                No, I'll let you answer.
                                                                        Q
 5 that. Maybe you should have gotten some help. I
                                                               5
                                                                        Α
                                                                                No, I'm good.
 6 understand that. I appreciate that.
                                                                                MR. McGUCKIN: Ask your question.
                  And I agree. I agree with you when
                                                                                MR. GINGRICH: Through the Chair.
          Α
 8 it comes to that, but --
                                                               8 Isn't -- when do we a draw line here? Isn't this --
                  Right now I'm just trying to figure
                                                               9
                                                                                MR. WINWARD: We're getting close.
10 this out.
                                                              10 This is appropriate.
                                                              11
                 Well, then I think you need to figure
                                                                                MR. GINGRICH: It is? You're asking
12 that out with somebody who has the authority to make
                                                              12 for her opinion.
13 an appointment with the engineers. I don't have
                                                                                MR. WINWARD: Do you have -- you're
14 that authority.
                                                              14 not on trial here. So you have a choice if you want
15
          Q
                  I didn't ask you if you had the
                                                              15 to be a cooperative witness --
16 authority. What I'm asking you is, did you meet
                                                              16
                                                                                THE WITNESS: I'm trying to be --
17 with Mr. Peters to review transcripts or go through
                                                                                MR. WINWARD: -- or a hostile
                                                              17
18 transcripts?
                                                              18 witness.
         Α
                  I did not meet with Mr. Peters to go
                                                              19
                                                                                THE WITNESS: -- a cooperative
                                                              20 witness. But I do feel like he is attacking.
20 through transcripts.
          Q
                  Did you meet with him at all about
                                                              21
                                                                                MR. WINWARD: Yeah, he is.
22 de-annexation?
                                                                                THE WITNESS: Now, we haven't
                                                              22
                  De-annexation, no.
                                                              23 addressed any issues --
          Is there any point where we're going to go
                                                                                MR. MICHELINI: I'm not attacking.
                                                              24
25 over the transcript or the cases that were brought
                                                              25
                                                                                THE WITNESS: -- that I have given
```

```
1 testimony on --
                                                                                  I don't think this is the place for
                  MR. MICHELINI: Well --
2
                                                                2 my personal opinions.
                  THE WITNESS: -- where I thought
                                                                                  Do you think that they have the
 4 that's where we were here today.
                                                                4 capacity to influence you on the issue of
                  MR. MICHELINI: With all due respect,
                                                                5 de-annexation?
6 having this time record which is very, says on its
                                                                          Α
                                                                                  When I gave testimony, I was very
7 face it would appear to be a meeting. Maybe it
                                                                7 factual, very case oriented.
8 wasn't, okay. But it appears that way. Now do you
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  So, I'll ask the question again. Do
9 understand why I was asking questions about
                                                                9 you think that your personal opinions have the
10 motivation.
                                                               10 capacity --
11
                  MR. WINWARD: Okay.
                                                                         Α
                                                                                  I don't think my personal --
                  THE WITNESS: My motivation here is
                                                               12
                                                                                  Excuse me. Let me finish the
12
                                                                          Q
13 to defend the police department. And I'm very clear
                                                               13 question.
14 in the fact that the testimony that was given by the
                                                               14
                                                                                  MR. BACCHIONE: Mr. Michelini, how
15 residents made us look bad. That's my motivation.
                                                               15 many times are you going to ask the same question?
16 My motivation is to clear our name and not look bad
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: Until I get the
17 for the police department in the eyes of the
                                                               17 answer.
18 township and for the residents to have the clear
                                                               18
                                                                                  MR. BACCHIONE: Well, you're not
                                                               19 going to do it here on this board.
19 facts.
20 BY MR. MICHELINI:
                                                                                  Through the Chair, I think you
          Q
                  You began to say that you were
                                                               21 should --
22 concerned. What are you concerned about if
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: Maybe you should give
23 de-annexation occurs?
                                                               23 him brief -- keep your answers brief and succinct.
24
          Α
                  I don't know.
                                                               24
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: If I --
25
                  Are you concerned --
                                                               25
                                                                                  MR. WINWARD: No opinions, whatever.
          Q
                                                  58
                                                                                                                 60
1
          Α
                  I don't know.
                                                                1 You know, you're here for facts. I think that's
                  -- that your -- you live in Berkeley
                                                                2 very important. Facts, not motivations and
3 Township?
                                                                3 speculations and --
                                                                                  MR. McGUCKIN: She's testified that
                  I do. I do.
          Α
 5
          Q
                  Are you concerned that your taxes
                                                                5 her personal opinions did not in any way interfere
 6 will go up?
                                                                6 with the factual testimony before the board. That's
                  I don't know enough about this
                                                                7 her testimony here tonight. Let's move on.
          Α
8 process to know whether or not that would occur.
                                                                                  (Off the record.)
                  So, you're not concerned about it?
                                                                9
                                                                                  MR. McGUCKIN: Ready anytime soon?
10
          Α
                  I have questions, but no one seems to
                                                               10
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: I'm just looking for
11 have any answers.
                                                               11 something.
          0
                  What are your questions?
                                                               12
                                                                                  MR. GINGRICH: Through the Chair.
                  I'm not -- I'm not here to ask
                                                               13
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: If we can have this
14 questions. You told me that.
                                                               14 marked.
15
                  What are your questions about --
                                                               15
                                                                                  (The Annotated transcript was marked
16 about the impact of de-annexation?
                                                               16 as A-64 for identification.)
                  I don't think that -- my personal
                                                               17 BY MR. MICHELINI:
18 opinions as a resident of Berkeley Township have no
                                                               18
                                                                          0
                                                                                  Chief, I'm going to show you A-64,
19 pertinent facts here. I don't think I should be
                                                               19 which I will represent is an annotated transcript or
20 questioned on my personal opinions. We went through
                                                               20 a transcript that's been -- portions of a transcript
21 the fact that I am here on duty in my uniform, as
                                                               21 have been pulled out, then there's comments.
22 you stated, as the Chief of Police of Berkeley
                                                               22 Actually, there's portions --
23 Township.
                                                                          Yes. The chief would like a short break.
```

24 That's fine with me.

(Recess was taken.)

And your personal opinions you don't

25 think would influence you?

63 MR. WINWARD: I see all board members 1 type of transcript, with portions -- and, actually, 2 are back in their seats. 2 they're divided into two columns, the testimony. 3 Let's proceed. 3 One says petitioners' assertion and the other says 4 township cross and redirect. Do you see that? 4 BY MR. MICHELINI: Back on the record. I'm going to 0 Α Yes. 6 show you what's been marked, Chief, as A-64, which Okay. And I believe A-64 is the same 7 is a transcript with -- not in the same format that 7 way -- excuse me. I can't read without taking my 8 you described before, but there is -- it is a 8 glasses off. And these -- A-65, did you also see 9 portion of the transcript. Have you seen that 9 A-65 before you testified? 10 before? 10 Α It was --11 Α Yes. MR. McGUCKIN: Let's be very clear. Okay. And where did you get A-64? 12 You're talking about the annotated version with 12 Q 13 It actually is coded by -- it's coded by issues. 13 those notes on it? 14 So, you'll see at the top of A-64 is a gray bar. It 14 MR. MICHELINI: Yes, correct. 15 says Sandy? 15 MR. McGUCKIN: Had she seen that 16 before she testified? 16 Α Yes. MR. MICHELINI: Yes. 17 Q So, where did you get that? 17 18 From the business administrator. 18 Q To the best of your knowledge. 19 19 The business administrator gave you It looks like the same wording. A So, it looks similar to what you saw? 20 that? 20 21 A 21 A Girl and guy were fighting in front. Yes. Are those the transcripts that he 22 Yes. 23 gave you or did he give you the full booklets as 23 And, in fact, if you look at this Q 24 well? 24 one, A-65, which deals with police, references all 25 25 the things that you or your officers testified to, A I didn't have a booklet like you're

62

64

```
1 showing me as a booklet. It was like this, front
 2 and back and maybe even a little bit longer.
          0
                  But it was in this format?
3
 4
                  It was in this format there.
          Α
 5
          0
                  And was it --
 6
                  And some of them were in that format.
                  Okay. And was it coded by issue, by
8 where -- like this, this is coded by Sandy. It says
9 Sandy, okay?
10
          A
                  I don't recall. It might have been.
11 I don't recall.
                  MR. MICHELINI: Okay. Let me show
13 you what I'll mark as A-65.
14
                  (Off the record.)
15
                  (The Annotated transcript was marked
16 as A-65 for identification.)
                  The first annotated transcript marked
18 A-64 is the Sandy one, correct? And each page
19 refers to Super Storm Sandy up at the top --
20
          A
                  By the date.
                  -- in the left side. And that has
22 dates and excerpts of testimony, correct? The best
23 that you can tell?
24
          Α
                  I -- yes, yes.
```

All right. And A-65 is a similar

25

Q

2 answer that question. 3 Α Deals with crossing guards. Q You don't have to answer out loud. 5 Just read it to yourself and ask, tell me whether or 6 not --Α You want me to read this whole thing 8 while I'm standing here. I want you to scan it for a moment 10 and tell me if it relates to the issues that you and 11 your officers testified to. 12 Α You got me a bigger copy? 13 Q Unfortunately, I do not. It's the 14 only way it would print out. Α Without going through, you know, this 15 16 20 pages -- How many pages? 17 Q Less than 20, I'm sure. Twelve. 18 A Twelve pages. It looks like a lot of 19 the topics that we discussed. 20 Okay. And so, these two transcripts, 21 to the best of your knowledge, did you see them 22 before you testified? Α It was a lot more than this. I don't 24 know if it had these things on it.

These things referring to the --

1 correct? You can go through it. Take a moment and

```
1
                  Meaning, saying police or Sandy or --
                                                                1 you hadn't read all his testimony, correct?
2
                  You don't know?
          Q
                                                                                 Correct.
                                                                         Α
3
          Α
                  No, I don't know. But it's mostly
                                                                          Q
                                                                                 And much of what he testified to, you
 4 all the same topics.
                                                                4 would accept was highly technical in nature as an
                  Okay. So, you may have received
                                                                5 expert, correct?
          0
 6 these but you're not sure; is that accurate?
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 Yes. I would say the money was off.
                  Yes, I'm not sure. But I did receive
                                                                                 Well, you say the money was off.
                                                                          0
8 transcripts.
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 I testified to the overtime where I
                                                                9 believe he stated it was one number and I stated it
9
          Q
                  I will represent to you --
                  Are those not full transcripts? Is
                                                               10 was another.
          Α
11 that what you're --
                                                                                 Well, let's talk about -- you didn't
                  These are not full transcripts. I
                                                               12 look at his expert's report. You didn't read all of
13 will represent to you that we received these from
                                                               13 his testimony. Can you explain to us the municipal
14 Remington & Vernick about ten days ago. But
                                                               14 finance methodology that he used to come to his
15 whatever you got, you got from the administrator?
                                                               15 conclusions? You can't explain that, right?
                  I got from John Camera.
                                                                         A
                                                                                 No, I cannot.
16
          Α
17
                  And so, if you received these
                                                               17
                                                                          Q
                                                                                 You're not an expert on financial
18 annotated transcripts, you would have gotten them
                                                               18 matters?
19 from Mr. Camera if you got them, correct?
                                                               19
                                                                         A
                                                                                 No, I cannot.
          Α
                                                                                 Okay. What was your degree in? It
                  Yes.
                                                               20
21
          Q
                  Did you talk to Mr. Peters or
                                                               21 wasn't in finance, right?
22 Mr. Wiser about transcripts?
                                                                         A
                                                                                 No, it was not.
                  No, I went through the chain of
                                                               23
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 You do have a degree from Monmouth,
24 command, which was the business administrator.
                                                               24 correct?
                  Now, during your testimony, you
                                                               25
                                                                                 I have a master's degree, yes.
          Q
                                                                         Α
```

66

68

But that's probably in something

Q

2 police related?

25 now.

```
1 talked about Mr. Moore. Do you know who Mr. Moore
 2 is?
3
                  Was he the finance guy?
          Α
                  He was our finance expert. Did you
 4
          Q
 5 read his report?
 6
          Α
                  No, I did not.
                  So, all you did was read some of his
          Q
8 testimony, correct?
9
          Α
10
          Q
                  Did you read all of his testimony?
                  I read -- I didn't really go through
          Α
12 the finance too much. I was going after the police
13 response more.
14
          Q
                  So, you -- so, the answer is --
                  But I did -- I did the --
15
          A
                  -- you didn't read all of his
          Q
17 testimony, then, correct?
18
          Α
                  No, I wouldn't say I did.
                  And I believe the only thing -- in
20 fact, when you were testifying, I think you actually
21 didn't realize who he was. You said Moore. Who is
22 Moore, correct? Do you remember that?
23
                  I thought maybe he was someone on the
24 board.
          Q
                  So, you didn't know who he was, but
```

3 Α Yes, it is. Okay. Now, Mr. Moore talked about a Q 5 number of 102 officers. You recall that, right? 6 Α Yes, I do. And did you think about possibly Q 8 calling Mr. Moore to say, where did that number come 9 from? 10 A No, I did not. 11 Q Were you here when he made the 12 invitation to everybody that if anybody had any 13 questions about his report or his testimony that he 14 would be happy to meet with them? Were you here 15 when he testified to that? 16 Α No, I don't believe so. So, you weren't made aware of that 17 18 invitation? 19 Α 20 Can you tell us how many police 21 employees there were in the year 2014? Not off the top of my head, no. 22 Α 23 Q Can you tell us in 2015? 24 I can tell you right now, 2016, right Α

```
All right. So, when you testified to
                                                                 1 they?
 2 the number of employees that the police have, you
                                                                 2
                                                                                  No, only salary.
                                                                          A
 3 did testify to that, didn't you?
                                                                 3
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  Only salary?
 4
          Α
                  Yes, I did.
                                                                          Α
 5
                  You were talking 2016 numbers?
                                                                                  Can the benefits be calculated?
          0
                                                                          0
 6
          Α
                  Yes, I was.
                                                                          A
                                                                                  Yes, but they're not calculated by
 7
                  What year basis is Mr. Moore's report
                                                                 7 the police department. They're calculated by the
          0
 8 based on?
                                                                 8 finance guy.
                                                                                  Okay. So, a finance person like
 9
          Α
                  We've never had 102 officers.
                                                                 9
                                                                          Q
                  I'm asking you what year his report
                                                                10 Mr. Moore could calculate those benefits, correct?
10
          0
11 is based on.
                                                                11 Yes? You have to answer. You're shaking your head
12
                  I don't know.
                                                                12 yes but you have to give a verbal answer.
          A
13
                  Okay. And have you ever had 102
                                                                13
                                                                          A
                                                                                  I quess so.
                                                                14
14 employees?
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  Do you know who Mr. Moore is?
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: Let me --
15
          Α
                  Employees?
                                                                15
16
                  Yeah.
                                                                                  MR. WINWARD: I don't know if she
          Q
                                                                16
17
          Α
                  We have more than 102 employees. If
                                                                17 even knows who you're talking about.
18 you're asking specific, is there ever 102 employees?
                                                                18
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: She knows.
19 I don't have the answer to that question.
                                                                19
                                                                                  THE WITNESS: He was the finance quy
                  You don't know.
                                                                20 that gave the report. That's about the extent of my
          Q
          So, you don't know what the purpose was that
                                                                21 knowledge of Mr. Moore.
22 Mr. Moore was using that number 102 for, do you?
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: Let's have this
                  No, but I -- I believe he stated 102
                                                                23 marked as an exhibit.
24 officers.
                                                                                  (The Curriculum vitae of Mr. Moore
25
                                                                25 was marked as A-66 for identification.)
          Q
                  Okay. But you don't know what his
```

70 72

Q

25

Q

```
1 purpose was in using the number, correct?
 2
          Α
                  No. No, I don't.
                  Let's assume, for example, that
 4 Mr. Moore only used the number 102 in determining
 5 the amount of benefits that would be paid for a
 6 police officer. And that's the only reason he used
 7 it, okay? In other words, assume he used that to
 8 spread the cost of the benefits over 102 officers
 9 and divide, essentially, to determine a per officer
10 cost, okay.
11
                  MR. McGUCKIN: Mr. Michelini, I'm
12 sorry. I missed that.
                  MR. MICHELINI: Benefits. Police
14 benefits.
15
                  MR. McGUCKIN: All right.
16
                  MR. MICHELINI: Okay.
17
                  So, assume --
          Q
18
                  I'm not following you.
          Α
19
          Q
                  Okay. You're not following that?
20
          Α
21
22
          Α
                  That might be a better answer for the
23 CFO.
                  All right. Well, if Mr. Moore -- the
25 benefits are broken out in the police budget, aren't
```

2 marked as an exhibit. I think it was already marked 3 previously but it was easier to remark it than to go 4 find it. It would have taken ten minutes. So, this 5 is A-66. And that's a curriculum vitae which is, 6 essentially, a resume. You're familiar with that? Α Yes. And it's Mr. Moore's curriculum 9 vitae, which would indicate that he's a certified 10 public account, a registered municipal accountant, a 11 licensed public school accountant, a certified 12 financial planner, certified municipal finance 13 officer. And then he has lots of experience listed 14 over many, many pages, which was the subject of some 15 probably 15 minutes of testimony when he testified. 16 So, you would understand from that that 17 Mr. Moore is a qualified municipal finance expert, 18 right? That's what you would assume looking at 19 that? 20 A He looks very educated. 21 Okay. In municipal finance, correct? He's in accounting. Finance planner. 23 He would have knowledge of finance. You're asking 24 me a question --

I'm just trying to get you to

I'm going to show you what's been

Q

A

Α

Q

Α

Q

A

Q

18

19

20

22

24

25

21 that.

I guess so, yes.

There's 66.

I don't know --

No, I'm not.

You're not a CPA?

Okay.

Okay. So, what I'd like you to

And how many were there in 2015?

We've had retirements. I don't know.

So, assuming there were 66 in 2015,

I'm going to say no, I don't follow

Okay. That's fine. You're not a

76

73 1 understand who he is in response to what the 1 2 Chairman said. 2 So, if Mr. Moore took the benefits for the 3 assume is that if Mr. Moore used the 102 number to 4 police and divided them by 102, assuming he thought 4 determine the cost per officer, for benefits, and it 5 there were 102 officers, that's more than there are, 5 turns out there's less officers -- how many are 6 correct? 6 there? 7 Α Yes. Then the number for the benefits that 8 9 he would determine would actually be less than what 9 10 they actually are, because the number of officers 10 I could get the number for you. I don't have it 11 are less, correct? Do you follow that? 11 right now. I think all of these questions need 12 Α 13 to be answered by the person that does finance. 13 if you were to take the total cost of the benefits Well, except that you brought it up 14 and divide by 66, it would give you the cost of the Q 15 in your testimony. 15 benefits per officer, right? And that would be a No, I brought up about the overtime 16 greater number than if you divided by 102. You Α 17 don't follow that?

17 and the amount of officers. Q Right. And the amount of officers, 19 what I'm asking you is if the amount -- I'd like you 20 to assume that he only used those officers, the

21 number 102, to determine the per officer cost for 22 benefits. And if there are less officers than 102,

23 then the cost that he came up with was actually low,

24 because he divided it by a greater number. Do you

25 follow that?

74

23 municipal accountant, correct?

MR. McGUCKIN: Hold on. She didn't 2 testify to anything about the benefit packages or 3 how many people get benefits during her direct 4 testimony. 5 MR. MICHELINI: I would like her to

6 assume that that's what the number was used for.

7 And using that assumption, I would like to ask her 8 to answer the question. It's very simple.

MR. McGUCKIN: She answered the

10 question. And that was that she used that number

11 for purposes of his testimony regarding overtime. 12 You want to ask her about that testimony, that's

13 fine.

MR. MICHELINI: No, no. She did not 15 use it for overtime. She also has testimony about

16 overtime.

17 Isn't that correct? So, 102 wasn't 0 18 about overtime; isn't that right?

102 was stating that we did not have 20 102 officers, right.

21 So, it wasn't about overtime, Q

22 correct?

And I also testified --

That was a separate thing, correct?

25 Yes?

1 Α No, I'm not.

2 Not a certified finance person?

3 No, I'm not. A

And you don't know what Mr. Moore Q

5 used that 102 number for, correct?

Α No, I do not.

So, it may or may not have had any 0

8 impact whatsoever on his opinion, correct? Correct?

9 Because you don't know, correct?

10 Α I have no idea why he used the 102

11 number.

Okay. Thank you. And I would submit

13 to you that if he used it only for the determining

14 of benefits, that he understated the cost of

15 benefits per officer.

MR. McGUCKIN: The witness has

17 testified twice she does not know the answer to that

18 question.

19 All right. Now, overtime. Let's

20 talk about overtime for a minute.

Let me show you what's been marked

22 Township-13, which is an exhibit that you put into

23 evidence last time. Do you see that?

24 Α Yes.

25 Q That's the exhibit about which you

			_	
1	testified what	t the overtime was for		five column document but two of the columns are
2	A	Yes.	2	blank. Do you see that?
3	Q	South Seaside Park?	3	A Yes.
4	A	Yes.	4	Q And, presumably, that would show
5	Q	And you	5	information for 2013 and 2012, because there's five
6		(Off the record.)	6	columns?
7	Q	Exhibit Township-13, you have three	7	A No, not at all.
8	years of over	time on there. What are those years?	8	Q Okay. Do you know what the numbers
9	A	'14, '15 and '16.	9	were from 2012 and 2013?
10	Q	Okay.	10	A I don't think we went live with our
11	A	And the document seems to be	11	POS system. We would never be able to track that.
12		(Off the record.)	12	Q You wouldn't be able to track that?
13	Q	The document seems to where did	13	A No. And this was just created, I
14	you get that	document? Did you create it or did it	14	believe, by
15	come from ano	ther document that it was part of?	15	(Off the record.)
16	A	We created it, the spread sheet.	16	MR. McGUCKIN: If you don't know the
17	Q	When you say, we created it, was that	17	answer, just say you don't know the answer.
18	you created is	t or somebody else created it?	18	THE WITNESS: I don't know the answer
19	A	Captain Santucci is my numbers man,	19	to that.
20	so he did it.	-	20	MR. McGUCKIN: Thank you.
21	Q	So, Captain Santucci created it?	21	Q So, you haven't verified the accuracy
22	A	Yes.	22	of the information set forth on Township-13
23	Q	But you testified to it? Do you	23	yourself, correct? You haven't verified that?
24	know yes?		24	A What do you mean, I haven't verified
25	A	Yes. Yes.	25	that?

80

```
1
                  Do you know where he got the numbers
                                                                                   Have you gone back into the system to
          Q
                                                                  2 check it to see if it was right, comparing the hours
2 from?
                                                                  3 worked and the schedules and the shifts to make sure
 3
                  From our system.
          Α
 4
                                                                    it's correct?
          Q
                  From your system?
 5
          A
                  Our POS system.
                                                                  5
                                                                           A
                                                                                   Captain Santucci.
 6
          0
                   What is the POS system?
                                                                  6
                                                                           0
                                                                                   But you didn't do it, is what I'm
 7
                   Captain Santucci would be the best
                                                                    saying.
8
   person to answer all questions related to POS.
                                                                                   No, I did not do that, no.
                   What is POS?
9
                                                                                   Thank you. On this document you're
                                                                           Q
10
          A
                   It's just how we track our -- it's a
                                                                   simply relying upon what Captain Santucci told you,
11 scheduling system.
                                                                    correct?
                                                                12
12
          Q
                  Scheduling system?
                                                                           A
                                                                                   That is correct.
13
                                                                13
                                                                           Q
                                                                                   You don't have any personal
14
                  Can I look at the scheduling system?
                                                                14 knowledge, correct?
                                                                15
15
                  No.
                                                                           A
                                                                                   Correct.
16
                  Okay. Why not?
                                                                16
                                                                                   Now, you made a lot of statements in
17
                  Because it shows where the officers
                                                                    your testimony, I think you said it three times,
18 are located, what they're working on.
                                                                    that an officer over in South Seaside Park is not
                  Now, are these numbers specifically
                                                                    simply a cop and a car. Do you remember that?
20 in the POS system or do you have to calculate those
                                                                20
                                                                           A
                                                                                   Yes, I do.
21 numbers from hours and things of that nature, if you
                                                                21
                                                                                   I think you actually said it three
                                                                22 times.
22 know?
                  I don't know. Those questions would
                                                                 23
                                                                           Α
                                                                                   I did.
24 be better for Captain Santucci.
                                                                24
                                                                                   So, what did you mean by that?
                                                                           Q
25
                   What was -- I notice that this is a
                                                                25
                                                                           A
                                                                                   I meant back -- because I know
```

L 83

```
1 everyone might think that it's just -- what I meant
 2 by a cop and a car, it's like not 1970. It's not
                                                                                  You have to pay for -- those benefits
                                                                          Q
 3 just an officer and a car to look out for the
                                                                3 would include medical benefits which are expensive
                                                                4 for everybody nowadays, correct?
                  The amount of what? The cost?
          0
                                                                5
                                                                         Α
                                                                                  Yes.
 6
          Α
                  The cost, yes.
                                                                6
                                                                         Q
                                                                                  The officer also gets a pension,
 7
                  Okay. So, let's talk about it. If
                                                                7 correct?
8 it's not just a cop and a car, what is it?
                                                                8
                                                                         Α
                                                                                  Yes.
9
          Α
                  It's a lot of equipment. It's a lot
                                                                9
                                                                          0
                                                                                  And then, do they get any other
10 of training.
                                                               10 benefits than I've described?
          Q
                  What else?
                                                                         Α
                  Experience.
                                                               12
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  And then there's training which you
12
          Α
13
                  Does experience cost more?
                                                               13 indicated. They all have to go through training,
14
                  Experience is more valuable.
                                                               14 right?
15
                  Well, we're talking about cost. You
                                                               15
                                                                          A
                                                                                  That's correct.
16 were talking about money, right? When you said it's
                                                               16
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  And that training involves weapons
17 not just a cop and a car, you were talking about
                                                               17 training, right?
18 financial cost to having an officer in South Seaside
                                                               18
                                                                         A
                                                                                  That's correct.
                                                                                  Involves EMS training, correct?
19 Park?
                                                               19
                                                                          Q
20
          A
                                                               20
                                                                                  That's correct.
                  Uh-hum.
                                                                         Α
21
          Q
                  That's my understanding; is that
                                                               21
                                                                                  And that's an annual thing? You have
                                                                          Q
22 correct?
                                                               22 to be recertified in that --
23
                  Not just in South Seaside Park.
                                                               23
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 That's correct.
24 Anywhere.
                                                               24
                                                                                 -- right? And there's also other
                  Anywhere, okay. But particularly in
                                                               25 types of training. Tell me, what other types of
          Q
```

82 84

Α

1 training does an officer have to do each year?

According to the attorney general

```
1 South Seaside Park, I think you were referencing
 2 that it's not just a cop and a car over there?
 3
          Α
                  Correct.
 4
          Q
                  Is that right?
 5
          Α
                  Yes.
                  This is all about South Seaside Park.
 7 So, you were talking about the cost of having an
 8 officer or officers in South Seaside Park, it's not
 9 just a cop and a car?
10
          Α
                  I wasn't just talking about South
11 Seaside Park. I was talking about the -- that it's
12 not just a cop and a car. And the fact that the
13 projects we do over here and infrastructures that we
14 build for the police department, meaning the
15 computer software --
16
          Q
                  Go ahead.
17
          Α
                  That it's not just, you know, one
18 person and one car.
                  All right. So, for instance, for an
20 officer let's take this a little further. For an
21 officer, then, you have -- the officer, you have to
22 pay for his salary, correct?
23
          Α
                  Yes.
```

You have to pay for his benefits,

Q

25 correct?

3 guidelines, there are numerous --Q Numerous? 5 A -- trainings. 6 0 All right. And that's true whether 7 you're an officer in Berkeley or an officer in 8 Seaside Park or Toms River --That is correct. Α 10 Q -- right? And all that training 11 costs money, right? 12 Α That is correct. 13 Q Okay. And then you talked about 14 equipment. Tell me what kind of equipment an 15 officer keeps in a police car or has with him. 16 You want me to go through the entire Α 17 trunk? 18 0 Well, give me a rough idea. 19 Α You've got first aid equipment. 20 Q 02 tanks? 21 A 02 tanks. You have also a first aid 22 kit. You have flares. You have -- and maybe this 23 question would be best for my traffic safety boss 24 who equips all the cars. But then you have license

25 plate recognition cameras. You have a mobile data

1	unit in the	car to do the reports. I'm sure I'm	1	today?
2	2 missing a ton of equipment that might be clarified		2	-
3	later on.		3	Q Do you have any idea what the cost of
4	Q	Okay. And you have the car itself?	4	the equipment is in the police car?
5	A	That's correct.	5	A Like I said, we have a gentleman
6	Q	What do those cars cost, if you know?	6	standing right there that's going to be able to
7		MR. McGUCKIN: If you know, Chief.	7	answer all those questions.
8	Q	If you know.	8	Q Just simple. The answer is no,
9	A	I don't have the exact number.	9	right? The answer is no, you don't know? Is that
10	Q	I'm not asking for	10	correct? You have to do it for the record. She's
11	A	But the lieutenant, the lieutenant	11	typing the answers.
12	will be able	to	12	A No, that would be better answered by
13	Q	Can you tell me approximate number?	13	Lieutenant Ryan Roth.
14	\$100,000 or m	more?	14	Q What account is utilized in the
15	A	I'm going to let him answer that	15	budget to pay for infrastructure? In other words,
16	question.		16	are the infrastructure costs taken out of the
17	Q	You don't know?	17	capital account? Are they taken out of some other
18	A	I don't have an exact answer.	18	fund?
19	Q	You don't know?	19	A A capital account if it's a big
20	A	No.	20	project there.
21	Q	And then you have the infrastructure	21	Q And if it's a capital account, is
22	of the build:	ing, the headquarters, right? Your	22	there an ordinance number that relates to the
23	training area	as, right?	23	capital account?
24	A	Correct.	24	A I believe there is.
25	Q	That's an additional cost. If you	25	Q So, all the big capital accounts

86 88

```
1 were to divide up a cost per officer, you'd have
 2 those costs as well, right? Yes? The lights? The
 3 staff? That's all --
                  Well, if there's one officer there,
 5 there's ten officers there --
                  Is that all part of your --
 6
          0
 7
                  -- the lights are going to be on.
          A
8
                  Okay. So, are there any other costs
9 to having an officer, other than a cop and a car?
10
                  Not off the top of my head.
11
                  Do you know what the pay range is for
12 an officer in Berkeley Township?
13
          A
                  I do.
14
                  What do they -- what do they start
15 at? What do they top out at?
16
                  I can get a copy of the contract so I
          Α
17 can speak clearly and --
18
          0
                  Do you have it with you?
19
          Α
20
                  Do you know, approximately, what they
21 start at?
22
          Α
                  Thirty something.
23
          0
                  And what do they top out at?
24
          A
                  One 0 something.
```

And do you know what the average is

25

1 would be the result of, or capital projects, would 2 be the result of an ordinance being passed by the council, correct, the governing body? I believe so. A 5 Q You're not sure? 6 A No, that would be better answered by the CFO. 8 Q Who's your CFO? A Fred Ebenau, E-b-e-a-n-u. Correct? I write it. One second. E-b-e-n-a-u. 11 Do you know what the costs are for Q 12 the benefits per police officer? 13 I do not know that. 14 You don't have any idea? 15 A I would say maybe -- I'm not supposed 16 to speculate. 17 Q Is it more than 20,000, if you know? 18 Once again, I don't do the benefits. A 19 So, the answer is, you don't know? 20 A I don't have a specific number. No, 21 I do not. 22 Q Do you have a general number? 23 Α I do. But I was told not to give 24 general answers. 25 That's okay. I'm going to ask you

That is correct. 1 for your general number. Α MR. McGUCKIN: Don't speculate. If 2 When did that start? Q 3 you know, you know the answer. If you don't, you 3 A That has been always. Before 2011? 4 don't. 0 5 Do you know approximately what it is? 5 Absolutely. 0 A MR. MICHELINI: If she knows 6 6 But the class one and class two 7 officers, that did not start, that program didn't 7 approximate --8 MR. McGUCKIN: If you know --8 start until 2011, right? 9 MR. MICHELINI: I'm asking for an 9 Α 2011 is when they employed South 10 Seaside -- Seaside Park class one officers until we 10 approximation. MR. McGUCKIN: If you know what it is 11 got our own program. 12 approximately, you can answer. If you don't, that's What about before 2011? 12 Q 13 fine, too. 13 A No, there was none. 14 I think approximately, it's around 20 14 So, 2011, you paid South Seaside Α 0 15 something. 15 Park -- paid Seaside Park? I'm sorry. Twenty something? A Seaside Park, yes. 16 Q 16 17 Α 17 Q 2012, you paid Seaside Park, right? 18 And I know you don't know the cost to 18 A Yes. 19 operate a fully equipped police car on an annual 19 Q 2013, you paid Seaside Park, right? 20 basis, correct? 20 Α 21 Α To operate it on an annual basis? 21 Q 2014, you paid some money to Seaside 22 Q 22 Park class ones and class twos, correct? You mean maintenance of the vehicle? 23 Α Yes, I believe 2015 was the first 24 We'd have to break that down. 24 year. Correct. Q 25 Q Okay.

90 92

1 Α No, that's not broken down that way. Do you maintain individual logs for 3 individual police cars? Individual logs. If there's an Α 5 issue, there's a maintenance sheet filled out. Do you maintain any other kind of log 6 0 7 for a police car? 8 Α 9 How many police cars do you have? 10 I would say it's in the 60 mark, but 11 I don't know the exact number. 0 And how many officers are typically 13 assigned to a car? 14 Between one and two. Α 15 Q Between one and two. Sometimes more if they're broken down Α 17 and we have to reassign. South Seaside Park, one or two? Can 0 19 you tell me that, whether it's one or two? Depends on who's over there.

So, sometimes it's one? Sometimes

And you have 24/7 coverage over

21

23

Q

Α

24 Q 2 25 there, correct?

Yes.

22 it's two?

1 Α I'd have to go back and look at the 2 numbers. All right. But for a number of 4 years, you relied upon Seaside Park class ones and 5 class twos? 6 Α Yes. Did they do a good job? 0 8 A They did a good job. Every officer 9 does a good job. 10 Q And you would expect, then, that if 11 de-annexation occurred and Seaside Park were to take 12 over this area as their responsibility -- that is, 13 South Seaside Park -- they would do a good job, you 14 would expect, right? Yes? 15 A I would expect. You would expect them to do an Q 17 excellent job, correct? Yes? I would expect an officer to do their 18 Α 19 job, yes. 20 And you would expect them to do it in 21 an excellent way, correct? That's what you demand? I don't supervise them, so --22 Α 23 Yeah, but you observed the class ones 24 and the class twos. Did they do an excellent job 25 from Seaside Park from 2011 through 2014?

Any issue we had, we would contact 1 than ten? 2 their chief. 2 Oh, yes, it's more than ten. Α 3 Q Did they do an excellent job, in your Q It's an epidemic, so it's probably a 4 pretty high number, right? 4 opinion? They did an okay job. 5 Α Α 6 So, they didn't do an excellent job; 6 Q How many of those were in South 7 is that what you're saying? 7 Seaside Park? 8 Α I said they did an okay job. 8 Α I don't know if there were any. But 9 Q You paid them, right? 9 I couldn't say that with 100 percent confidence. 10 We paid them. 10 But I will look into it and I will get back to you. In your opinion, is crime on the Now, the shift is an eight-hour 12 upswing or the downswing in the township, generally? 12 shift, correct? Eight-hour shift? I know you have Well, there's a heroin epidemic all 13 24/7 coverage. 14 over, which is affecting call volume. 14 Yes. We don't give out anything Α 15 pertaining to shifts, how we staff, hours of All right. How is crime over in 16 South Seaside Park as compared with -- and I say 16 operation. 17 crime, I mean everything, in terms of criminal Well, you talked, and I believe 18 acts -- in South Seaside Park as compared with the 18 Captain Santucci talked, about the numbers that 19 rest of the township? 19 Mr. Whiteman came up with. And he didn't dispute 20 them, correct? Α Minimum. 21 And why is that, do you think? It's 21 A Captain Santucci is right there. He 22 a small area, right? 22 can testify --Excellent policing there. 23 MR. McGUCKIN: Are you asking her to 24 It's also a small area, right? 24 comment --25 It's a small area. 25 Q Do you dispute the --Α

94

1

Α

Q

The average age over there, I think

MR. McGUCKIN: She's not going to 4 comment on other people's testimony. You want to 5 ask a question what she testified to, go ahead. MR. MICHELINI: She testified about 7 Mr. Whiteman. Did you read Mr. Whiteman's testimony 9 about the counting of police cars and police 10 officers over in South Seaside Park? 11 Α Yes, I believe he kept a log. 12 Right. Did you find that to be 13 inaccurate when you read it or do you think it was 14 accurate, to the best of your knowledge? 15 Α I probably should not comment on 16 that. It's protected. MR. McGUCKIN: Would answering the 18 question lead you to be disclosing how many cars 19 were over there? 20 THE WITNESS: Yes. 21 MR. McGUCKIN: Thank you. Does the police department man any 23 cars that are not police cars? MR. McGUCKIN: I'm sorry. What do

25 you mean by police cars, Mr. Michelini.

I didn't give testimony to that.

Well, did you hear him testify?

96

2 was testified to, is about 63, 64 years old. That's 3 not a population with high crime generally, correct? I wouldn't say that. 4 Α 5 Q You wouldn't say that? 6 Α No, I would not. Okay. But over there, the 63 and 8 64-year-olds are not committing too many crimes, 9 correct? 10 Α There's nobody over there that's 11 committing that many crimes in South Seaside Park. Township's a little different than 13 that, isn't it? 14 Demographics wise, yes. 15 There's a lot more serious crime in 16 the township in the mainland part, right? There is heavier calls. Heavier call 18 volumes. So, for instance, you get a lot of 20 overdoses. How many overdoses did you have this 21 year or last year, let's say -- or you can actually 22 say this year, 2016. How many overdoses did you 23 have --24 I don't have that number. Α 25 Q You don't. Do you know if it's more

		•			••
1		MR. MICHELINI: Non non-cruisers.	1	trip over th	nere, in the summer or at rush hour, can
2	Q	What do you have that's not a	2	be a very di	ifficult and long trip? You have to go
3	cruiser? Do y	you have Humvees?	3	through five	e or six towns, correct? Isn't that
4	A	We do have Humvees, yes.	4	right?	
5	Q	Okay. What else?	5	A	That is correct.
6	A	We have a five-ton vehicle. And	6	Q	And you have to go through a number
7	everything els	se is assigned to officers.	7	of traffic 1	lights, correct?
8	Q	Do you have quads?	8	A	That is correct.
9	A	Oh, there's quads, yes.	9	Q	Okay. And if it's at the wrong time
10	Q	How many quads do you have?	10	of day, you	really can get jammed up with that,
11	A	Three.	11	correct? We	e've all experienced that, right?
12	Q	Okay. So, you have three quads?	12		MR. McGUCKIN: Are you talking
13	Three Humvees,	right? How many cruisers?	13	emergency ca	alls or are you talking about
14	A	I'm going with the number around 60.	14		MR. MICHELINI: I'm talking just
15	But, once agai	n	15	${\tt generally.}$	
16	Q	Okay. Around 60?	16		MR. McGUCKIN: just driving over?
17	A	we'll find out the exact number	17	Q	Generally, going over there.
18	for you.		18	Correct?	
19	Q	And where are those vehicles	19	A	There's traffic sometimes, yes.
20	physically ker	t?	20	Q	You would agree that trip over there
21	A	When they're not being utilized?	21	from here ca	an take up to 40 minutes sometimes,
22	Q	Yes.	22	depending up	oon traffic, in the summer?
23	A	At headquarters.	23	A	I don't know about 40 minutes. But,
24	Q	At headquarters?	24	yeah, in the	e summer it's going to be
25	A	That is correct.	25	Q	Pretty long?

```
So, do you have any four-wheel drive
                                                                                    -- more lengthy than in the winter.
 1
          Q
                                                                           A
 2 vehicles?
                                                                                    All right. And then once you get
 3
                                                                  3 over there, if you obey the speed limit, it's only
          Α
                   Yes.
                   Which are those?
                                                                    25 miles an hour in the whole town?
          Q
 5
          A
                   We have Explorers. We have Tahoes.
                                                                           A
                                                                                    Yes, it is.
                   Okay. Are any of them given over to
                                                                                    And in Seaside Park, I think it's all
 6
          0
                                                                  6
                                                                            0
 7 the beach?
                                                                    25 also.
                   Everyone is -- who works the beach is
                                                                                    In the winter, they change it to --
                                                                            A
                                                                  9
 9 at headquarters prior to going to their sectors.
                                                                                    Thirty?
                                                                            Q
10
                   But all those vehicles, right, any
                                                                 10
                                                                            A
                                                                                    -- 30 or 35.
11 vehicle that has four-wheel drive is over here,
                                                                 11
                                                                                    And the Heights is also 25, is it
12 correct, at this, the headquarters right next door
                                                                 12 not?
13 here?
                                                                            A
                                                                                    I'm not a hundred percent sure, but I
                                                                 14 would believe so.
14
                   All vehicles are maintained at
15 headquarters.
                                                                 15
                                                                                    You have -- how many communications
                                                                    workers do you have?
16
                   Maintained meaning they're parked
                                                                 16
17 there? They're kept there, correct?
                                                                 17
                                                                           A
                                                                                    Give me a minute.
18
                   That's correct.
                                                                 18
          A
                                                                            0
                                                                                    Fourteen; is that right?
                                                                 19
19
                   And that's a pretty long way. I
                                                                           A
                                                                                    Thirteen.
   think everybody agrees it's little over 16 miles?
                                                                 20
                                                                            Q
                                                                                    Thirteen?
21
                                                                 21
          A
                   15.1.
                                                                           A
                                                                                    Well, actually, 12 and one
22
                   Well, I think some of the testimony
                                                                 22 supervisor.
23 was 16.1, but whatever.
                                                                 23
                                                                            Q
                                                                                    And how many work each shift? Can't
24
          A
                                                                 24 imagine that's private.
25
          Q
                   And the -- you would agree that that
                                                                 25
                                                                           Α
                                                                                    It is.
```

1 department doesn't pay the officers, the town does. 1 0 That's private? 2 I believe it is. All staffing is. MR. MICHELINI: Okay. Thank you for Α 3 Okay. What portion of the police 3 the answer, Mr. McGuckin. MR. McGUCKIN: You're welcome. 4 budget do those costs show up in or are assigned to? 5 Where are they in the police budget? 5 Anytime. 6 Under salary. 6 MR. MICHELINI: Very good testimony. 7 Q They're just generally under salary? 7 And do you know if the town gets paid Q 8 Α 8 in that scenario that we were just talking about for 9 Q Is that where they are? They're not 9 the officer and also for the car or just for the 10 under any other category? 10 officer? Α The township does have a fee in 12 there, but I don't know how much the fee is. Does the township have a program 12 Q 13 where officers are assigned to work for private 13 Q And is that for the car also or --14 contractors or individuals? 14 Α Α Yes, if they enter into an agreement 15 Do you know if they get paid anything 16 with the township. 16 else besides for the officer and car --I don't know that. And the township receives a fee for Α 18 that, right, for those services --18 Q Do you know how many individual 19 A Yes. 19 summonses were issued in South Seaside Park 20 -- that are provided? So, if a 20 generally versus the rest of the township? Q 21 construction job requires a police officer to stop 21 Α I don't have that number. If that's 22 traffic so that a road could be dug up to put in 22 something you want, we can see if we can pull it up. 23 something for a building or what have you, the 23 I don't know if our system would help. 24 police department gets paid for that, right? Is it -- is it less than ten percent 24 The police officer gets paid, yes. 25 of the overall tickets, if you know, or you don't

102

The police officer gets paid. Does 2 that -- and that comes from the private contractor, 3 let's say --4 Α Yes. 5 Q -- or the owner? 6 Α Where does that show up in the 0 8 budget? 9 Α That doesn't show up in the budget. 10 Q It doesn't show up in the budget? No. You would have to ask the CFO as 12 to how he maintains that line. It's not something I 13 have control over. And how does the payment get made 15 from the private individual in a company to the 16 officer? 17 MR. McGUCKIN: Objection. 18 MR. MICHELINI: If you know. MR. McGUCKIN: I object. I think 20 you're asking a legal question. It's certainly 21 beyond her skill, her abilities. MR. MICHELINI: Well, she doesn't --MR. McGUCKIN: And number two, that's 24 not how it's working legally. The company pays the

25 town. The town pays the officer. The police

1 know? Α I don't know. If it's something that 3 you truly want, we'll see if we can find the answer 4 for you. 5 Q So, if you didn't have to police 6 South Seaside Park, isn't it possible that some of 7 the costs that are associated with policing South 8 Seaside Park could be used for the mainland? In 9 other words, reallocate it? Is that possible? 10 A Yes. Q Is it possible that some of those 12 costs would also be saved and not spent? That's 13 possible, too, isn't it? I'm not a hundred percent sure on Α 15 that one. 16 Q You don't know? 17 I don't know. Α 18 The police department budget does not Q 19 break out the cost of policing South Seaside Park; 20 isn't that right? 21 Α That is correct. Is there any documentation that 22 Q 23 you're aware of that does that? 24 Α 25 Q Okay. So, township number three is,

```
1 I believe you testified to it as a CAD report or
                                                                1 believe it's for this one, contact MONOC, because
 2 somebody testified to it, I think it was you, as a
                                                                2 MONOC is the paramedic units that are used for the
 3 CAD report for the Viturello call. Do you recall
                                                                3 state or for the county. And they e-mailed it to
                                                                4 me. So --
 5
          Α
                  Yes, I do.
                                                                          0
                                                                                  I see.
                  So, the last name is Viturello,
                                                                6
                                                                          A
                                                                                  -- if you want that e-mail, I can get
 7 beginning with a V, correct?
                                                                7 that for you.
 8
          Α
                  Yes.
                                                                ۵
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  I'm just trying to figure it out.
 9
          Q
                  And this was the situation where the
                                                                9 Because when I looked at it, it didn't show that
10 man had a heart attack and died, unfortunately, or
                                                               10 they came 20 minutes later. I'm not doubting your
11 he died. We don't know. I'm not sure we know why.
                                                               11 testimony that they came 20 minutes later. I'm
12 But he died, correct?
                                                               12 just -- it didn't show in the report, correct --
13
          Α
                  Yes.
                                                               13
                                                                          A
                                                                                  That is correct.
14
                                                               14
                                                                                  -- in the exhibit?
                  And you had indicated that the call
                                                                          Q
15 came in at 11:37, but I think it came in at 11:36,
                                                               15
                                                                                  But I can get you the e-mail. Maybe
                                                                          A
                                                               16 I have it here.
16 correct?
17
                  That is correct.
                                                               17
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  You have it in your notes?
18
                  Okay. Is that p.m. or a.m.?
                                                               18
                                                                          A
                                                                                  No, I have it in the documents that I
19
                  That would be a.m.
          A
                                                               19 provided you.
                  And your officer showed up at 11:42,
                                                               20
20
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  Okay.
21 correct?
                                                                                  MR. McGUCKIN: You mean so the
22
                  That's correct.
                                                               22 question he asked you earlier he gave before he had
                  So, that would be approximately six
                                                               23 the answer. Just kidding.
24 minutes later, right?
                                                               24
                                                                                  Chief, so, what is this MICU on this
                                                               25 report? What do those initials mean?
          A
                  Yes.
```

106 108

```
2 sometimes people in these situations, because their
3 loved one -- this man was -- the report was that he
 4 was -- he had fallen and he was unresponsive, I
5 believe. In that -- that's a serious situation,
 6 correct?
7
          Α
                  And in that serious situation, people
9 often, in their own minds, the amount of time that
10 it takes is exaggerated or not accurate because
11 they're so concerned for their loved one?
          Α
                  That's, that's correct.
13
          0
                  That's a normal response?
14
                  That is.
15
                  So, tell me, between 11:36, when did
16 the paramedics show up? Not the first aid but the
17 paramedics. Because I think you said the paramedics
18 showed up about, it was about 20 minutes later. But
19 I don't see it on there.
          Α
20
                  It is not on here.
                  Do you know why it's -- where you got
22 that information? Because my recollection is, you
```

23 said the paramedics showed up 11:56 in your

I had to -- okay. I had to, I

24 testimony, which would be 20 minutes.

25

Okay. And you indicated that

```
1
          Α
                  The paramedics.
 2
                  That's the paramedics?
3
          Α
          Q
                  And this shows that paramedics were
 5 dispatched at 11:37 --
          Α
7
                  -- is that correct?
          0
8
                  Well, you got to remember, this is
 9 coming from the Ocean County radio room. We do not
10 dispatch paramedics. And we do not dispatch the
11 first aid.
12
          0
                  Okay.
          Α
                  That's all done through Ocean County
14 radio room.
15
                  All right. But this, what is the
16 next -- this is MICU is for MONOC. What is that
17 for? What does MICU mean?
                  I don't know what the initials --
18
          Α
19 it's the paramedics.
20
          Q
                  But it's the paramedics?
21
          Α
                  Yes.
22
                  And next to the paramedics says
23 8-5-9, being the date, August 5 --
24
          Α
25
          Q
                  -- 2009? And then it's got 12:51: --
```

```
1
                                                                                 Okay. But not the exhibit itself.
          Α
                  Yes.
                                                                         Q
 2
          Q
                  -- 53. There's a code 20. And then
                                                                2
                                                                                 No. So, why don't I just submit it
                                                                         Α
 3 there's a code by way of a number that says 20. And
                                                                3 so we don't have an issue.
 4 then it says available.
                                                                                 MR. McGUCKIN: What number are we up
                  Correct.
 5
          Α
                                                                5 to on the township?
 6
          Q
                  What does that mean?
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: Why don't you make it
 7
                  That means that they're clearing the
                                                                7 part of Township-3, because it belongs to Township-3
                                                                8 or 3A.
 8 scene.
 9
                  Okay. So, they left at 12:51?
                                                               9
                                                                                 MR. McGUCKIN: 3A would be fine.
          Q
10
                                                               10
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: 3A. Make it
          Α
                  Correct.
          Q
                  But this doesn't tell you when they
                                                               11 Township-3A.
                                                               12
                                                                                 (The E-mail from Melanie Parks was
12 got there?
13
          Α
                  No.
                                                               13 marked as Township-3A for identification.)
14
                  And is my recollection of your
                                                               14
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 Okay. So, 3A, Township-3A, is an
          Q
15 testimony, to the best of your knowledge, accurate
                                                               15 e-mail that you received from Melanie Parks,
16 that they got there at 11:56? That's -- we can look
                                                               16 correct?
17 it up if we have to.
                                                               17
          A
                  Whatever I testified. I will get the
                                                               18
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 And she's with MONOC, the paramedics?
19 e-mail from --
                                                               19
                                                                                 No, she is my secretary.
                                                                         Α
          0
                Let me see if we can find it. Hold
                                                                                 Oh, and it's to you.
                                                               20
                                                                         Q
21 on a minute. If you find the e-mail, that's great.
                                                               21
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 She was instructed to contact them
22 I'll look for your testimony in the meantime.
                                                               22 and find out their times.
                  I have it right here.
                                                               23
                                                                                 So, this is your secretary's e-mail
                                                                         Q
                  Okay. So, what time did the
                                                               24 to you --
24
25 paramedics arrive?
                                                               25
                                                                         A
                                                                                 Yes.
```

```
1
          Α
                  11:56.
                                                                1
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 -- saying the times that the --
                  Okay. So, the memory is not totally
                                                                2
                                                                         A
                                                                                 That she spoke to this person right
3 shot.
                                                                3 here.
                  Do you need a copy of this e-mail?
                                                                4
                                                                                 Crystal London?
                                                                         Q
 5 Should I be submitting this?
                                                                5
                                                                         A
                                                                                 Correct.
6
                  MR. McGUCKIN: He already has it.
                                                                6
                                                                                 Okay. And that person would be from
                                                                          Q
7
                  MR. MICHELINI: I don't need it. I
                                                                7 MONOC?
8 don't think we do have it.
                                                                8
                                                                         A
                                                                                 Yes.
                  MR. McGUCKIN: Okay.
                                                                9
                                                                                 And this would set forth the times
9
                                                                          Q
10
                  MR. MICHELINI: We didn't -- we
                                                               10 that MONOC told them that they received a call?
                                                               11
11 didn't get that.
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 Yes.
                  MR. McGUCKIN: All right.
                                                               12
                                                                         0
                                                                                 And that they were dispatched,
13
          Α
                  Should I be submitting this?
                                                               13 en route, at the scene and when they left,
14
                  MR. McGUCKIN: You can.
                                                               14 essentially, correct?
                  MR. MICHELINI: I don't need it. I
15
                                                               15
                                                                         A
                                                                                 Yes.
16 mean, I'm --
                                                               16
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 All right. And that is the -- where
                  MR. McGUCKIN: Hold it for now.
                                                               17 the 11:56 number comes from?
17
18
                  MR. MICHELINI: Yeah, you can hold on
                                                               18
                                                                         A
                                                                                 Yes.
19 to it.
                                                               19
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 And the time that they received the
                  MR. WINWARD: You don't need it now.
20
                                                               20 call says 11:39, but the CAD, Township-3, says
                  THE WITNESS: Decision. Okay.
21
                                                               21 11:37, right?
                  But that's in the documents that are
                                                                         Α
          Q
                                                               22
                                                                                 Yes.
23 in front of you that --
                                                               23
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 There's a discrepancy there, right?
                  It's attached to the document that
                                                               24
                                                                                 Yes, there is.
                                                                         Α
25 you have.
                                                               25
                                                                          Q
                                                                                 Do you know why that exists?
```

```
Discrepancy, we do not monitor or we
                                                                1 response time. And I think you said that the
 2 do not dispatch for MONOC, nor do we dispatch for
                                                                2 national response time was about 11 minutes. Do you
 3 the first aid. So, we try and do the best times we
                                                                3 recall that?
 4 can. The only thing we can say that we're actually
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 Yes.
 5 documenting and with full honesty is the officers.
                                                                         0
                                                                                 Yeah, this is Township-14. What are
          Now, keep in mind, the first aid and the
                                                                6 the years for this report?
 7 paramedics, whether this succession goes through or
                                                                                 '96. '97. '98. '99. 2000 through
                                                                         Α
 8 not, is the same medics and first aid that will be
                                                                8 2007. '96 through 2007.
 9 responding to the same calls, so --
                                                                9
                                                                                 Okay. And do you have this report
                                                                         Q
          0
                  I'm not sure you answered my
                                                               10 for --
11 question. I'm not trying to be disrespectful to
                                                               11
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 I just point to the --
                                                                                 -- anything current? I mean, this
13
          Α
                                                               13 only goes to 2007. That's nine years ago.
                  Yes.
14
                                                                                 Agreed. This is not my report. This
          Q
                  Is it fair to say you don't know why
                                                               14
                                                                         Α
                                                               15 is what we found on the internet --
15 there's a discrepancy between the two times that it
16 appears that the paramedics were dispatched, whether
                                                                                 Where did it come from?
                                                                         Q
17 it was 11:36 or 11:39?
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 -- through -- what was the name of
                                                               18 the site? Give me a second. I'd have to go back
                  No, I don't know. I would say that
                                                               19 and refresh. It was a New Jersey -- I mean, the
19 maybe it's from the county radio room. You have to
20 ask somebody up there.
                                                               20 board of -- what? What was it?
                  And the 20 minute period between the
                                                                                 LIEUTENANT ROTH: Am I allowed to
          Q
22 time that the call came in, we know the call came in
                                                               22 say? Bureau of Justice Statistics.
23 at 11:36, and the paramedics got there at 11:56, we
                                                               23
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 Bureau of Justice Statistics.
24 know that from the e-mail, right?
                                                                                 Apparently, their statistics are nine
25
          Α
                  Uh-hum.
                                                               25 years out of date, because they didn't have anything
```

114 116

1 current, right?

```
That 20 minutes, do you think
 2 Ms. Viturello could have been confused, given the
3 circumstances, about the response time between the
 4 police and the paramedics? One being 20 minute --
 5 being a 20-minute time frame that the paramedics
 6 showed up, not the police?
 7
          Α
                  Yes.
8
          Q
                  That's quite possible, correct?
9
          Α
10
                  And she was, obviously, in extreme
11 stress?
12
          Α
                 Yes.
                  You don't think she came here and
14 lied about when the police showed up? She was
15 probably misunderstanding based upon the
16 circumstances, correct, to the best of your
17 knowledge?
18
          Α
                  Possibly, yes.
19
          Q
                  Well, okay.
20
          Α
                  Yes.
                  All right. And her husband did pass
22 away, unfortunately, correct?
23
          Α
                  Yes.
                  Now, you had testified about another
          Q
25 document that's in evidence, that sets forth
```

2 (Off the record.) So the -- we don't know if they're 3 Q 4 accurate today, right? 5 That is the best thing I could find Α 6 on response times. So, the answer is, we don't know if 0 8 it's accurate today in 2016, correct? Correct. 9 Α 10 Q And -- but, certainly, you would 11 think that your response times in Berkeley Township 12 are at least as good as that overall, right? 13 A Yes. Q Mr. Gingrich made a comment in the 15 meeting here that, I think his house got robbed and 16 there was an alarm or something and it took 40 17 minutes for the police to show up. Do you have any 18 knowledge of that? A Forty minutes for the officers to 20 respond to you? 21 MR. GINGRICH: Forty-five. 22 Α Forty-five. 23 I understated. 0 Was it actively -- well, should I be 24 Α 25 doing this now?

```
1
                  No, you should answer my question.
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 Okay.
 2
                                                                2
                                                                                 Yes.
          Α
                                                                         A
 3
          Q
                  Do you have any information as to
                                                                3
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 All right. And, in fact, you quoted
 4 that incident?
                                                                4 Mr. Whiteman's testimony when you talked about it,
                  No, I don't. I would have to look it
                                                                5 right?
          A
 6 up and research it.
                                                                         A
                                                                                 Yes, I did.
                  MR. GINGRICH: She was not the chief
                                                                7
                                                                                 You said he had the time wrong and it
                                                                         0
 8 then.
                                                                8 was not one o'clock in the morning. It was three
 9
                  MR. WISER: How long have you been
                                                                9 o'clock in the morning or roughly that --
10 the chief?
                                                               10
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 Yes.
                  THE WITNESS: Since 2011. Just in
                                                               11
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 -- correct?
12 time for all the hurricanes.
                                                               12
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 Yes.
                                                               13
13
                  MR. MICHELINI: Good timing.
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 You don't doubt that an incident
                  MR. GINGRICH: It's funny. I was
                                                               14 occurred that Mr. -- somebody from Mr. Whiteman's
15 just looking that file over. Would you like me to
                                                               15 family called in?
                                                                                 But it just -- it just took awhile to
16 bring that to you?
                                                                         Α
                  MR. BELL: Just for the record, you
                                                               17 find the call because --
18 responded to my house in less than five minutes.
                                                               18
                                                                         Q
                                                                                 Okay. And who did the research to
19 That's after 911. You called me to tell me the
                                                               19 find that call? Did you do it or did somebody else
20 alarm went off, did I want the police to come.
                                                               20 do it?
                  THE WITNESS: Thank you.
                                                                         Α
                                                                                 I did not do it. I'm assuming that
                  MR. BELL: Thanks. I'm in Holiday
                                                               22 it was -- no. I don't know. I don't know who
23 City.
                                                               23 actually called. It might have been one of the
                  (Off the record.)
                                                               24 communication police.
24
25
                  MR. BELL: Can I just ask a question?
                                                                                 And the call was specifically what?
                                                               25
                                                                         Q
```

118 120 1 The time difference in the clock, could that just be Α Nature of call, male/female arguing, 2 the two clocks are not synchronized? 2 walking towards bay. MR. MICHELINI: I really don't know And the bay is in what direction from 4 Mr. Whiteman's house? You know where he lives, 4 why. 5 BY MR. MICHELINI: 5 right? 0 Okay. Chief, I show you what's been 6 Α Yes, he lives on the corner, make a 7 marked Township-6. Can you tell us again what that 7 left, right down there. 8 document is? So, when you say, make a left, you Q It is a CAD report from the Sheriff's 9 would be going west, correct, toward the bay from Α 10 Department, Ocean County radio room. 10 his house? And that's an incident. What's the 11 Α 12 date of the incident? 12 0 He lives on the west side of 35, 13 Α 7/26/14. 13 correct? Okay. Is that an incident that you 14 Yes. 15 testified about involving somebody from the Whiteman (Off the record.) 15 Tell me where he lives. 16 house calling in? 16 Q 17 He lives on Barnegat Avenue. Α I believe it was the call $\operatorname{\mathsf{--}}$ it was A 18 the call. But, without having a name in there, I 18 Q Okay. And toward the bay would be 19 couldn't be a hundred percent accurate. 19 going west? 20 Q Well, we --20 A Yes. Α That's the only call that matched any 21 Right? Okay. And toward the beach 22 would be going in the opposite direction, going 22 of those specifics. I think you testified that you 23 east, correct? 23 Q 24 thought it was that call. 24 Α Yes. Yes.

25

Q

Everybody refers over there,

I did -- I do think it's that call.

1 an altercation --1 generally, to the beach and the bay? 2 Α Correct. Α Bay or ocean. Or the beach, correct? Bay or ocean Q -- right? So, it's possible that 4 or beach? Yes? Do you refer to the bay as the 4 Mr. Whiteman was out on his front porch and he just 5 didn't see a police officer; isn't that right? 5 beach? 6 Α No, I refer to the bay as the bay. Α Possibility. 7 Okay. And the ocean is either the Okay. Where is the CAD for that 0 8 ocean or the beach, correct? 8 incident in Berkeley? Let's see. Where would that 9 Yes. 9 be? I'm going to let you find it, because it will All right. So, this is a call that's 10 10 be easier. 11 saying that people are going toward the --All right. So, I'm going to show you 12 Township-5. This is the CAD for the incident, the 13 -- the bay. And officers were 13 same incident. And the one, Township-6, is the call 14 from the county. That would be the 911 call, right? 14 presumably dispatched to go to the bay --Correct. 15 Is that what six is? Α -- to look for these people --Α I don't know if it came in 911. 16 Q 17 Correct. 17 Q But it came through the Sheriff's 18 -- right? And they didn't find 18 Office, correct? 19 19 anybody --Α No, I believe it came right into our 20 headquarters. But the reason that there's a 20 Α Correct. 21 -- right? 21 sheriff's report is because a Seaside Park officer Now, Mr. Whiteman testified that he waited 22 was dispatched. Seaside Park officers are 23 outside, I think on his front porch, and he didn't 23 dispatched by Ocean County radio room. So, that's 24 see anybody. He didn't see any officers show up, 24 why you have two separate entries here. 25 right? Did you go to his -- did somebody go to his Okay. So, the description was,

```
1 house?
                                                                1 somebody was going down to the bay, correct?
 2
          A
                                                                2
                                                                          A
3
                                                                3
                  Did somebody call him --
                                                                          0
                                                                                  And your CAD report says what?
 4
                                                                                  Walking towards the beach.
          Α
                                                                          A
 5
          Q
                  -- or call the person who called in?
                                                                5
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  Says something different?
 6
          Α
                                                                          Α
                                                                                  Yes.
 7
                                                                                  Okay. So, do we know whether this
          0
                  Did they knock on his door?
                                                                          0
 8
          Α
                                                                8 couple was going down to the bay or going down to
9
                                                                9 the beach? They're in different directions,
          0
                  Did they walk up to his property?
10
          Α
                                                               10 correct?
                  No.
                                                               11
11
                  And you said the caller didn't
                                                                          Α
                                                                                  It's not that big of an area.
12 provide an address. But if you listen to that tape,
                                                               12
                                                                          0
                                                                                  Yeah, but they are in different
13 isn't it a fact that the caller was never asked to
                                                               13 directions?
14 provide an address? They were never asked? They
                                                                                  I see the discrepancy. I note that
                                                                          Α
15 never said what address are you at, correct?
                                                               15 there is a discrepancy. One says bay. One says
                                                               16 beach.
16
                  That is correct.
          Α
17
                  So, the fact that the caller never
                                                               17
                                                                          Q
                                                                                  So, it's possible the officers
18 provided an address makes it sound like they didn't
                                                               18 actually went to the wrong place based on that;
19 want to give their address. But they were never
                                                               19 isn't that right?
20 asked. They might have given it if they were asked,
                                                               20
                                                                          A
                                                                                  I don't have that information.
21 correct? You don't know?
                                                               21
                                                                                  Well, is it possible?
                                                                          Q
          Α
                  I don't know.
                                                               22
                                                                          Α
                                                                                  Anything is possible. Well --
23
                  And they weren't looking for
                                                               23
                                                                                  If they got the wrong information as
24 Mr. Whiteman, right? They were looking for the
                                                               24 to where to go, that would send them in the opposite
25 people who were walking down toward the bay that had
                                                               25 direction from the bay if it says when the call came
```

```
1 in?
                                                                                  Yes.
                                                                2
2
                  What did the tape say? Because
                                                                                  Thank you.
                                                                          0
 3 there's tape recording of the conversation.
                                                                3
                                                                                  MR. WINWARD: Mr. Michelini.
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: Yes.
 4
          Q
                  Actually, honestly, I don't recall.
                                                                4
 5
                                                                                  MR. WINWARD: We normally allot two
          Α
 6
          Q
                  But we can listen to it afterwards.
                                                                6 hours. I went about two, fifteen at 9:30. So, I
                  Let's --
 7
                                                                7 was wondering how much more time questioning do you
          Α
8
                  You and I will listen to it
                                                                8 have. Are you really close to the end, or you got
9 afterwards, okay?
                                                                9 lots more?
                                                               10
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: Let's see.
10
          Α
                  Okay.
                  But there is a discrepancy in how the
                                                                                  MR. WINWARD: My guess, if I were to
12 call came in. And, therefore, the officers could
                                                               12 guess, it would be, you probably have a lot more?
13 have gone to different -- to the wrong place; isn't
                                                               13
                                                                                 MR. MICHELINI: I do, unfortunately.
                                                               14
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: Do you have any other
14 that right?
15
          Α
                  If I had to guess which --
                                                               15 topics that can be wrapped up in the next five
16
                  I'm not asking you to guess.
                                                               16 minutes?
          Q
17
                  -- record was -- okay. If I had to
                                                               17
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: I don't think so. I
18 state which record would be more accurate, it would
                                                               18 think that we can -- I just finished that topic, so
19 probably be our record because we would be the one
                                                               19 let's --
20 calling the Ocean County radio room to let them know
                                                               20
                                                                                 MR. WINWARD: That's why I wanted
21 and how they interpreted the information.
                                                               21 to --
                  So, in light of that discrepancy in
                                                               22
                                                                                  MR. MICHELINI: Yeah, that's a good
23 the two call reports or the two -- the two call
                                                               23 idea.
24 reports -- I don't know whether you call them both
                                                               24
                                                                                 MR. WISER: If I may just ask a
25 call reports; is that accurate?
                                                               25 couple questions --
```

128

```
Α
                  It's CAD reports.
                                                                1
                                                                                  MR. WINWARD: Sure.
                  CAD reports. It's possible that
                                                                                  MR. WISER: -- just to clarify on
3 Mr. -- it's quite possible that Mr. Whiteman was out
                                                                3 this call, because I'm confused.
 4 on his front porch and the police went to the wrong
                                                                                 The call came into where?
 5 place; isn't that right?
                                                                5
                                                                                  THE WITNESS: Came into Berkeley
 6
          Α
                  I'm not going to agree to that.
                                                                6 Township headquarters.
 7
          0
                  You don't know, though, right?
                                                                7
                                                                                 MR. WISER: Berkeley?
8
          Α
                  I don't know.
                                                                8
                                                                                  THE WITNESS: Yes.
9
                                                                9
                                                                                  MR. WISER: And then it gets
                  And you don't have any personal
10 knowledge as to where they went, because you weren't
                                                               10 transferred over to the sheriff?
11 there, correct?
                                                               11
                                                                                  THE WITNESS: No. What will occur
          Α
                  I was not there at three o'clock in
                                                               12 is, they will call into headquarters. The
13 the morning.
                                                               13 dispatcher in Berkeley Township headquarters will
                  So, you have no personal knowledge,
                                                               14 take the information, put the information into the
          Q
15 correct?
                                                               15 call, start the officer. And whether it's that same
                                                               16 dispatcher or another dispatcher will then be on the
                  No, I do not. Do we need to have the
17 officers that responded to this call come?
                                                               17 phone with the county, saying, hey, maybe you should
                  And Mr. Whiteman does have personal
                                                               18 send another officer to back that officer up.
19 knowledge, because he was up and outside and it's
                                                                                 MR. WISER: So, the -- so, Berkeley
20 his house, correct?
                                                               20 sent a Berkeley officer --
21
                  He lives there.
                                                               21
          Α
                                                                                  THE WITNESS: Yes.
                  Yes. So, he testified from his own
                                                                                  MR. WISER: -- is that correct?
22
                                                               22
23 personal knowledge, correct?
                                                               23 And --
                                                               24
                                                                                 THE WITNESS: Seaside Park sent --
24
          A
                  Yes.
                                                                                 MR. WISER: -- Seaside Park sent
25
          Q
                  Yes?
                                                               25
```

```
1 backup?
 2
                  THE WITNESS: That's correct. But if
 3 you want to go another step further, but I feel like
 4 we're splitting hairs here. I mean, there's not
 5 that much area over there. If we sent one officer
 6 to the beach, which is the ocean, and one officer to
 7 the bay, then it's even more covered.
 8 BY MR. MICHELINI:
          Q
                  And both of those are going away from
10 Mr. Whiteman's house, correct?
                  Just like the call said. They were
12 headed towards the bay or headed towards the ocean.
                  So, again, if he's on his front
14 porch, he might not have seen anyone?
          Α
                  That is correct.
                  MR. MICHELINI: All right. Thank
17 you. And I did learn that the tape says the bay.
18
                  (Off the record.)
                  MR. MICHELINI: Okay. All right.
20 You're not sure. I'm not going to say that. I take
21 that back.
                  We will break now. Thank you very
23 much.
24
                  MR. WINWARD: Okay. Thank you.
25
                  (Meeting adjourned.)
                                                 130
 1
 2
                  CERTIFICATE
 3
                 I, LINDA SULLIVAN-HILL, a Notary
 5 Public and Certified Court Reporter of the State of
 6 New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is
 7 a true and accurate transcript of the proceedings as
 8 taken stenographically by and before me at the time,
 9 place and on the date hereinbefore set forth.
10
11
12
13
              Notary Public of the State of New Jersey
14
              My Commission expires January 26, 2021
15
16
   Dated: November 27, 2016
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
```

\$	3	35/8 37/3 43/1 43/4 43/5 91/5
\$100,000 [1] 85/14	30 [1] 100/10	accept [1] 67/4 According [1] 84/2
\$140 [1] 51/14	32 [1] 10/19	account [6] 72/10 87/14 87/17
ı	35 [2] 100/10 120/12	87/19 87/21 87/23
'14 [3] 31/18 31/18 77/9	3A [7] 111/8 111/9 111/10 111/11 111/13 111/14 111/14	accountant [3] 72/10 72/11 75/23
15 [1] 77/9	4	accounting [1] 72/22
'16 [1] 77/9		accounts [1] 87/25
'96 [2] 115/7 115/8 '97 [1] 115/7	40 [3] 99/21 99/23 116/16 46 [1] 1/24	accuracy [1] 79/21
98 [1] 115/7	5	accurate [10] 65/6 96/14 106/10 109/15 116/4 116/8
'99 [1] 115/7		118/19 125/18 125/25 130/7
0	53 [1] 109/2	accusations [1] 25/4
0001 [1] 1/25	-6	act [4] 9/9 9/9 9/10 9/10 action [1] 44/20
08527 [1] 1/25	60 [3] 90/10 97/14 97/16	actively [1] 116/24
08723 [1] 2/7	620 [1] 2/4	acts [1] 93/18
08731 [1] 2/4	63 [4] 49/21 49/24 94/2 94/7 64 [8] 60/16 60/18 61/6 61/12	actually [22] 7/6 21/9 25/12 26/11 27/13 28/6 40/12 55/1
1	61/14 62/18 63/6 94/2	60/22 61/13 63/1 66/20 73/9
10 [1] 4/3	64-year-olds [1] 94/8	73/10 73/23 80/21 94/21 100/21
100 percent [1] 95/9 102 [20] 68/5 69/9 69/13 69/17	65 [6] 62/13 62/16 62/25 63/8 63/9 63/24	113/4 119/23 124/18 125/4
69/18 69/22 69/23 70/4 70/8	66 [5] 71/25 72/5 75/7 75/12	additional [2] 11/9 85/25 address [6] 21/17 122/12
73/4 73/5 73/21 73/22 74/17	75/14	122/14 122/15 122/18 122/19
74/19 74/20 75/3 75/16 76/5 76/10	6:50 [1] 1/8	addressed [1] 56/23
11 [1] 115/2	7	adequate [1] 39/8 adjourned [1] 129/25
11:36 [4] 105/15 106/15 113/17		administration [1] 41/6
113/23 11:37 [3] 105/15 108/5 112/21	732 [1] 1/25	administrative [1] 13/12
11:37 [3] 103/13 108/3 112/21	8	administrator [13] 15/7 15/25 16/8 17/8 26/4 26/23 33/1
11:42 [1] 105/20	8-5-9 [1] 108/23	38/13 39/13 61/18 61/19 65/15
11:56 [5] 106/23 109/16 110/1 112/17 113/23	833-0001 [1] 1/25	65/24
12 [1] 100/21	9	Administrators [1] 45/22 advising [1] 28/18
12:51 [2] 108/25 109/9	9/28 [1] 52/21 9/28/2016 [1] 51/4	affecting [1] 93/14
13 [3] 76/22 77/7 79/22 14 [2] 115/5 118/13	911 [3] 117/19 123/14 123/16	afforded [1] 52/2
15 [2] 4/4 72/15	9:30 [1] 127/6	after [6] 8/1 10/15 13/3 46/25 66/12 117/19
15.1 [1] 98/21	A	afterwards [2] 125/6 125/9
16 miles [1] 98/20 16.1 [1] 98/23	A-63 [2] 49/21 49/24	again [5] 59/8 88/18 97/15 118/7 129/13
17 [1] 2/7	A-64 [7] 60/16 60/18 61/6	against [4] 23/1 35/13 36/19
1970 [1] 81/2	61/12 61/14 62/18 63/6 A-65 [6] 62/13 62/16 62/25	37/17
2	63/8 63/9 63/24	age [1] 94/1 ago [7] 27/9 29/22 29/23 30/12
20 [18] 6/13 15/2 15/2 39/3	A-66 [2] 71/25 72/5	33/8 65/14 115/13
39/5 40/9 64/16 64/17 89/14 106/18 106/24 107/10 107/11	a.m [2] 105/18 105/19 abilities [1] 102/21	agree [9] 13/8 13/15 30/25
109/2 109/3 113/21 114/1 114/4	ability [1] 36/17	35/19 54/7 54/7 98/25 99/20 126/6
20,000 [1] 88/17	able [9] 11/24 23/9 24/1 45/18	Agreed [1] 115/14
20-minute [1] 114/5 2000 [1] 115/7	52/4 79/11 79/12 85/12 87/6 about [85] 13/7 15/15 15/16	agreement [1] 101/15
2007 [3] 115/8 115/8 115/13	21/23 22/20 23/21 25/4 25/24	agrees [1] 98/20 ahead [5] 56/2 56/2 56/3 82/16
2009 [1] 108/25	26/1 27/24 27/25 28/1 30/3 31/6 33/2 34/2 34/20 36/3 39/3	96/5
2011 [10] 30/8 31/16 31/21 91/4 91/8 91/9 91/12 91/14	39/23 40/9 44/6 45/22 46/2	aid [7] 84/19 84/21 106/16
92/25 117/11	46/5 46/7 48/2 48/11 48/14	108/11 113/3 113/6 113/8 alarm [2] 116/16 117/20
2012 [3] 79/5 79/9 91/17	48/19 49/1 54/21 55/7 55/13 55/20 57/9 57/22 58/7 58/9	all [86] 4/4 5/8 6/18 9/11
2013 [3] 79/5 79/9 91/19 2014 [3] 68/21 91/21 92/25	58/15 58/16 63/12 65/14 65/22	11/19 11/20 12/11 12/12 12/18
2015 [5] 31/18 68/23 75/8	66/1 67/11 68/4 68/7 68/13	12/20 12/21 14/1 14/18 14/19 15/3 16/9 17/23 17/23 20/8
75/12 91/23	71/17 71/20 73/16 74/2 74/12 74/15 74/18 74/21 76/20 76/25	21/22 22/3 22/21 24/9 26/20
2016 [8] 1/7 51/4 53/20 68/24 69/5 94/22 116/8 130/16	81/7 81/15 81/16 81/17 82/6	31/1 34/8 35/18 37/9 40/12 41/8 44/1 44/5 48/23 49/11
2021 [1] 130/14	82/7 82/10 82/11 84/13 91/12	51/23 53/16 54/21 55/4 55/24
24/7 [2] 90/24 95/13	94/2 95/18 96/6 96/9 99/13 99/23 103/8 106/18 106/18	57/5 61/1 62/25 63/24 65/4
25 [2] 100/7 100/11 25 miles [1] 100/4	114/3 114/14 114/24 115/2	66/7 66/10 66/16 67/1 67/12 69/1 70/15 70/24 73/12 76/19
26 [1] 130/14	118/15 119/4 127/6	78/8 79/7 82/6 82/19 83/13
27 [1] 130/16 28 [2] 52/21 53/20	Absolute [1] 39/18 absolutely [8] 34/12 34/16	84/6 84/10 84/24 86/3 86/6
28 [2] 52/21 53/20	[0] 54,12 54,10	

Α all... [22] 87/7 87/25 92/3 93/13 93/15 98/10 98/14 99/11 100/2 100/6 101/2 108/13 108/15 110/12 112/16 114/21 117/12 119/3 121/10 123/11 129/16 129/19 allegations [3] 21/12 38/23 39/2 allot [1] 127/5 44/2 44/8 allow [2] allowed [3] 9/16 18/14 115/21 alone [1] 47/9 already [4] 18/25 41/3 72/2 110/6 also [21] 2/11 7/10 10/20 11/25 12/4 29/19 30/3 31/6 38/8 63/8 74/15 74/23 83/6 83/24 84/21 93/24 100/7 100/11 103/9 103/13 104/12 altercation [1] 123/1 always [3] 10/18 22/24 91/3 am [5] 32/22 32/24 44/9 58/21 115/21 amongst [1] 22/25 amount [7] 70/5 73/17 73/18 73/19 81/4 81/5 106/9 annexation [25] 1/5 4/10 12/4 27/24 31/6 31/21 34/10 34/21 35/14 36/3 36/19 37/10 37/17 45/8 48/2 54/22 54/23 55/7 55/11 55/20 55/25 57/23 58/16 59/5 92/11 annotated [10] 3/13 3/14 17/4 17/6 60/15 60/19 62/15 62/17 63/12 65/18 annotations [2] 16/11 16/23 annual [3] 83/21 89/19 89/21 another [8] 37/1 38/9 67/10 77/15 114/24 128/16 128/18 129/3 answer [43] 9/16 9/19 13/11 24/1 32/4 32/5 36/18 36/23 39/7 44/13 44/16 44/21 44/24 45/3 45/4 56/4 59/17 64/2 64/4 66/14 69/19 70/22 71/11 71/12 74/8 76/17 78/8 79/17 79/17 79/18 85/15 85/18 87/7 87/8 87/9 88/19 89/3 89/12 103/3 104/3 107/23 116/7 117/1 answered [6] 16/7 73/13 74/9 87/12 88/6 113/10 answering [3] 24/21 40/1 96/17 answers [9] 8/22 9/22 16/13 24/5 39/11 58/11 59/23 87/11 88/24 any [51] 6/7 10/20 14/9 19/24 20/7 21/18 22/6 22/14 23/1 23/18 34/19 36/23 38/6 46/4 46/10 46/15 46/22 47/1 47/5 47/14 47/15 47/18 47/19 47/22 49/14 54/24 56/23 58/11 60/5 68/12 76/7 80/13 83/9 86/8 87/3 88/14 90/6 93/1 95/8 96/22 98/1 98/6 98/10 101/10 104/22 116/17 117/3 118/21 121/24 126/9 127/14 anybody [11] 4/25 27/22 27/23 33/19 42/12 45/9 45/21 47/12 68/12 121/19 121/24 anybody's [1] 24/20 anyone [4] 45/25 53/21 55/19

anything [9] 23/2 34/4 34/24 74/2 95/14 103/15 115/12 115/25 124/22 anytime [2] 60/9 103/5 Anywhere [2] 81/24 81/25 apologize [1] 12/4 Apparently [1] 115/24 appear [1] 57/7 APPEARANCES [1] 2/2 appeared [1] 16/20 appearing [3] 4/13 4/19 41/11 appears [4] 50/3 50/7 57/8 113/16 applicant [1] 22/7 application [1] 23/2 appointment [1] 54/13 appointments [1] 52/12 appreciate [3] 11/2 11/22 54/6 appropriate [13] 10/8 10/14 11/6 12/19 25/17 37/3 37/4 38/11 39/1 40/17 43/10 43/19 56/10 approximate [2] 85/13 89/7 approximately [5] 86/20 89/5 89/12 89/14 105/23 approximation [1] 89/10 are [90] 4/5 5/13 8/5 8/5 8/15 12/12 12/18 13/11 13/23 14/3 14/5 15/2 17/7 18/17 18/21 18/23 20/25 24/5 35/7 35/21 38/1 38/2 38/7 38/10 38/16 38/25 40/21 42/24 43/3 46/12 50/20 55/6 55/10 55/24 57/22 57/25 58/5 58/12 58/15 59/15 61/2 61/22 65/10 65/12 70/25 73/5 73/10 73/11 73/22 75/5 77/8 78/18 78/19 79/1 83/3 84/3 86/7 86/8 87/16 87/17 88/11 90/12 94/8 95/23 96/23 97/19 98/4 98/6 98/14 99/12 99/13 101/4 101/5 101/9 101/13 101/20 104/7 107/2 110/22 111/4 115/5 115/24 116/12 118/2 121/11 122/15 123/22 124/12 127/8 129/9 area [6] 92/12 93/22 93/24 93/25 124/11 129/5 areas [2] 21/20 85/23 aren't [1] 70/25 arguing [1] 120/1 armed [2] 24/1 24/10 around [5] 31/5 31/21 89/14 97/14 97/16 arrive [1] 109/25 arrived [1] 4/4 as [72] 5/6 5/12 7/2 7/17 7/20 8/13 9/9 9/9 9/10 9/11 10/19 13/5 13/6 13/9 13/10 19/21 21/19 22/11 22/22 23/5 25/18 30/20 32/15 34/15 34/16 35/12 35/21 35/25 36/9 36/13 37/14 38/2 38/15 41/25 43/11 43/14 43/15 49/12 49/12 49/19 49/21 50/16 55/6 58/18 58/21 58/22 60/16 61/6 61/23 62/1 62/13 62/16 67/4 71/23 71/25 72/2 86/2 92/12 93/16 93/18 102/11 105/1 105/2 111/13 116/12 116/12 117/3 121/4 121/6 124/23 126/10 130/7 ask [43] 9/14 9/23 11/5 11/9 15/12 23/4 23/10 24/2 28/12

129/14

29/21 34/18 35/23 35/24 36/1 36/5 37/4 37/6 37/7 37/19 38/14 39/12 39/15 40/20 40/24 40/25 43/8 43/13 44/23 54/15 55/3 56/6 58/13 59/8 59/15 64/5 74/7 74/12 88/25 96/5 102/11 113/20 117/25 127/24 asked [16] 9/15 13/18 22/9 23/13 24/7 24/7 38/13 38/25 41/3 43/14 44/19 107/22 122/13 122/14 122/20 122/20 asking [31] 6/15 6/16 10/2 12/13 12/22 16/18 24/18 32/1 35/9 35/12 36/25 39/15 40/19 40/23 43/18 52/8 53/6 53/10 53/13 54/16 56/11 57/9 69/10 69/18 72/23 73/19 85/10 89/9 95/23 102/20 125/16 assassinate [2] 25/7 25/11 assertion [1] 63/3 assigned [4] 90/13 97/7 101/4 101/13 associated [2] 8/5 104/7 ASSOCIATES [1] 1/23 ASSOCIATION [4] 1/4 4/3 4/20 29/16 assume [9] 16/4 46/8 70/3 70/7 70/17 72/18 73/20 74/6 75/3 assumed [1] 16/2 assuming [3] 73/4 75/12 119/21 assumption [4] 24/12 24/14 24/17 74/7 attached [1] 110/24 attachments [2] 18/20 18/22 attack [1] 105/10 attacking [2] 56/20 56/24 attempt [1] 44/10 attended [1] 27/13 attorney [5] 9/9 47/13 51/23 52/2 84/2 Attorneys [2] 2/5 2/8 August [1] 108/23 authority [3] 54/12 54/14 54/16 available [1] 109/4 Avenue [1] 120/17 average [2] 86/25 94/1 avoid [2] 48/4 48/5 aware [5] 5/13 8/5 12/24 68/17 104/23 away [2] 114/22 129/9 awhile [1] 119/16

Bacchione [2] 1/11 47/24 back [14] 28/7 30/8 38/17 46/18 61/2 61/5 62/2 80/1 80/25 92/1 95/10 115/18 128/18 129/21 backup [1] 129/1 bad [2] 57/15 57/16 badgered [1] 37/24 badgering [1] 37/25 bar [1] 61/14 Barnegat [1] 120/17 based [5] 39/16 69/8 69/11 114/15 124/18 basic [1] 25/3 basically [1] 21/10 basis [3] 69/7 89/20 89/21 bay [21] 120/2 120/3 120/9 120/18 121/1 121/2 121/3 121/4 121/6 121/6 121/12 121/13

В
bay [9] 121/14 122/25 124/1 124/8 124/15 124/25 129/7
129/12 129/17
Bayville [1] 1/7 be [110] 4/2 5/7 7/6 7/7 7/12
10/7 10/14 11/3 12/9 13/9 15/8 16/7 19/8 19/18 20/15 21/1
23/9 23/19 24/1 25/13 25/20
26/2 26/7 26/17 26/23 27/2 30/15 31/20 32/13 33/14 34/5
35/9 37/23 38/9 38/11 41/19 42/9 42/17 44/20 45/2 45/11
45/13 45/18 50/3 50/7 53/24
53/25 55/11 55/12 55/17 55/18 55/21 56/15 56/16 57/7 58/19
63/11 68/14 70/5 70/22 71/5 73/9 73/13 75/15 77/11 78/7
78/24 79/11 79/12 83/22 84/23
85/2 85/12 86/7 87/6 87/12 88/1 88/2 88/6 96/12 96/18
99/2 99/24 101/22 104/8 104/12 105/19 105/23 106/24 110/5
110/13 111/9 112/6 113/8
113/11 116/24 118/1 118/19 120/9 120/18 120/22 123/9
123/10 123/14 125/18 125/19 125/19 127/12 127/15 128/16
beach [13] 28/3 98/7 98/8
120/21 121/1 121/3 121/4 121/5 121/8 124/4 124/9 124/16 129/6
Beachwood [1] 6/24
Beaverson [1] 2/7 because [48] 8/13 9/8 12/14
12/23 13/1 13/17 15/24 16/18 19/4 19/12 19/20 20/20 21/10
21/11 25/1 26/18 26/22 30/11 32/11 32/17 36/20 39/23 41/7
44/11 45/16 54/1 73/10 73/24
76/9 78/17 79/5 80/25 106/2 106/10 106/17 106/22 107/1
107/9 111/7 115/25 119/17 123/9 123/21 125/2 125/19
126/10 126/19 128/3
become [1] 32/11 been [26] 5/18 10/18 11/23
12/6 12/15 16/24 17/10 18/21 26/13 28/2 28/13 29/24 39/2
52/2 52/4 60/20 60/21 61/6
62/10 72/1 76/21 91/3 114/2 117/9 118/6 119/23 before [23] 5/23 7/2 9/9 14/6
before [23] 5/23 7/2 9/9 14/6 14/10 15/14 31/7 31/9 33/13
35/16 46/11 46/22 52/5 60/6 61/8 61/10 63/9 63/16 64/22
91/4 91/12 107/22 130/8
began [4] 5/5 10/11 12/8 57/21 beginning [2] 5/4 105/7
behalf [3] 4/13 4/19 32/14 being [9] 6/4 7/20 11/24 39/3
88/2 97/21 108/23 114/4 114/5
belief [1] 24/22 believe [26] 11/13 12/9 12/16
22/5 30/10 33/21 44/10 44/22 63/6 66/19 67/9 68/16 69/23
79/14 87/24 88/4 91/23 95/17
96/11 100/14 101/2 105/1 106/5 107/1 118/17 123/19
Bell [1] 1/13 belongs [1] 111/7
benefit [1] 74/2
benefits [22] 70/5 70/8 70/13

```
70/14 70/25 71/5 71/10 73/3
 73/8 73/22 74/3 75/4 75/13
 75/15 76/14 76/15 82/24 83/2
 83/3 83/10 88/12 88/18
BERKELEY [20] 1/1 4/10 6/23
 6/24 21/13 21/18 36/11 36/15
58/2 58/18 58/22 84/7 86/12
116/11 123/8 128/5 128/7
 128/13 128/19 128/20
besides [3] 45/9 45/22 103/16
best [11] 15/3 62/22 63/18
64/21 78/7 84/23 96/14 109/15
113/3 114/16 116/5
better [6] 4/16 16/7 70/22
78/24 87/12 88/6
between [8] 4/24 5/14 90/14
90/15 106/15 113/15 113/21
114/3
beyond [1] 102/21
big [3] 87/19 87/25 124/11
bigger [1] 64/12
bills [2] 50/22 50/23
bit [4] 25/8 40/14 41/13 62/2
blank [1] 79/2
Blvd [1] 2/7
board [25] 1/1 2/5 4/13 12/18
22/20 23/8 24/24 42/17 43/2
43/12 43/16 44/20 45/2 46/22
 47/6 47/15 47/18 51/1 51/1
 51/10 59/19 60/6 61/1 66/24
115/20
board's [3] 42/22 43/3 43/18
boards [1] 51/2
body [1] 88/3
book [3] 11/25 12/1 12/2
booklet [4] 16/15 16/17 61/25
62/1
booklets [1] 61/23
born [1]
         30/15
Boro [2]
         29/9 29/9
boss [1]
         84/23
both [2] 125/24 129/9
break [5] 4/4 60/23 89/24
104/19 129/22
breezed [1] 17/25
Brian [2] 1/14 42/5
Brick [1] 2/7
brief [3]
          13/14 59/23 59/23
briefly [1] 10/9
bring [2] 25/25 117/16
broken [3] 70/25 90/1 90/16
brought [4] 34/1 54/25 73/14
73/16
budget [13] 55/9 55/11 55/12
55/16 55/18 70/25 87/15 101/4
101/5 102/8 102/9 102/10
104/18
build [1] 82/14
building [3] 49/11 85/22
101/23
Bureau [2] 115/22 115/23
business [13] 4/2 15/7 15/24
16/8 17/7 24/20 26/4 26/22
39/13 49/11 61/18 61/19 65/24
CAD [9] 105/1 105/3 112/20
118/9 123/7 123/12 124/3 126/1
126/2
calculate [2] 71/10 78/20
```

calculated [3] 71/5 71/6 71/7

call [35] 53/17 93/14 94/17

105/3 105/14 112/10 112/20

118/21 118/24 118/25 119/17 119/19 119/25 120/1 121/10 122/3 122/5 123/13 123/14 124/25 125/12 125/23 125/23 125/24 125/25 126/17 128/3 128/4 128/12 128/15 129/11 Callahan [1] 1/12 called [5] 29/13 117/19 119/15 119/23 122/5 caller [3] 122/11 122/13 122/17 calling [3] 68/8 118/16 125/20 calls [3] 94/17 99/13 113/9 came [19] 14/10 23/21 34/6 73/23 95/19 105/15 105/15 107/10 107/11 113/22 113/22 114/13 123/16 123/17 123/19 124/25 125/12 128/4 128/5 Camera [17] 15/8 15/21 16/9 26/5 27/21 32/7 33/10 33/17 34/20 35/13 36/3 37/9 45/9 45/22 51/25 65/16 65/19 cameras [1] 84/25 can [58] 6/8 8/14 8/23 11/10 12/17 13/9 20/10 21/22 21/23 23/4 24/24 35/5 35/14 35/17 35/20 36/1 36/4 36/18 36/23 37/6 37/7 38/8 48/5 60/13 62/23 64/1 67/13 68/20 68/23 68/24 71/5 78/14 85/13 86/16 86/17 89/12 90/18 94/21 95/22 99/1 99/10 99/21 103/22 103/22 104/3 107/6 107/15 109/16 109/20 110/14 110/18 113/4 113/4 117/25 118/7 125/6 127/15 127/18 can't [12] 4/25 6/18 6/20 30/15 32/4 32/5 39/12 39/12 49/1 63/7 67/15 100/23 cannot [2] 67/16 67/19 cans [1] 41/8 capacities [1] 9/11 capacity [4] 8/16 32/21 59/4 59/10 capital [6] 87/17 87/19 87/21 87/23 87/25 88/1 Captain [8] 77/19 77/21 78/7 78/24 80/5 80/10 95/18 95/21 Captain Santucci [4] 78/7 78/24 80/5 80/10 car [20] 80/19 81/2 81/3 81/8 81/17 82/2 82/9 82/12 82/18 84/15 85/1 85/4 86/9 87/4 89/19 90/7 90/13 103/9 103/13 103/16 cares [1] 45/25 cars [10] 28/3 84/24 85/6 90/3 90/9 96/9 96/18 96/23 96/23 96/25 case [4] 19/13 23/25 37/13 59/7 cases [3] 18/3 34/1 54/25 category [1] 101/10 certain [1] 12/11 certainly [4] 11/10 36/1 102/20 116/10 certified [6] 1/24 72/9 72/11 72/12 76/2 130/5 certify [1] 130/6 CFO [4] 70/23 88/7 88/8 102/11 chain [1] 65/23 chair [7] 23/14 37/21 38/5

113/22 113/22 118/17 118/18

chair... [4] 52/17 56/7 59/20 60/12 chairman [10] 1/11 10/1 21/22 22/1 22/17 25/16 36/7 37/20 38/17 73/2 change [1] 100/8 character [2] 25/7 25/11 characterize [1] 12/12 check [2] 31/18 80/2 CHERKOS [1] 2/3 chief [35] 3/3 4/21 4/22 5/2 5/4 12/8 12/24 13/6 20/12 23/21 25/11 25/24 36/10 36/15 40/15 40/18 42/21 43/11 45/6 51/13 53/1 53/3 53/8 53/12 55/6 58/22 60/18 60/23 61/6 85/7 93/2 107/24 117/7 117/10 118/6 Chief DiMichele [1] 4/22 choice [1] 56/14 Chris [3] 26/25 32/9 32/25 circumstances [2] 114/3 114/16 City [1] 117/23 clarified [1] 85/2 clarify [7] 9/21 9/24 10/3 11/7 28/15 29/8 128/2 class [12] 30/16 30/17 31/14 91/6 91/6 91/10 91/22 91/22 92/4 92/5 92/23 92/24 clear [6] 44/3 44/9 57/13 57/16 57/18 63/11 clearing [1] 109/7 clearly [1] 86/17 clock [1] 118/1 clocks [1] 118/2 close [3] 15/2 56/9 127/8 code [2] 109/2 109/3 coded [4] 61/13 61/13 62/7 62/8 cold [1] 53/22 column [4] 50/15 50/16 50/16 79/1 columns [3] 63/2 79/1 79/6 come [12] 4/22 12/17 25/24 26/1 48/21 49/12 67/14 68/8 77/15 115/16 117/20 126/17 comes [3] 54/8 102/2 112/17 coming [4] 5/20 28/6 39/22 108/9 command [1] 65/24 comment [7] 5/11 11/13 11/22 95/24 96/4 96/15 116/14 comments [1] 60/21 Commission [1] 130/14 committing [2] 94/8 94/11 communication [1] 119/24 communications [1] 100/15 company [2] 102/15 102/24 compared [2] 93/16 93/18 comparing [1] 80/2 complaints [1] 27/4 completely [2] 35/15 44/24 computer [1] 82/15 concern [1] 21/15 concerned [9] 55/7 55/17 55/24 57/22 57/22 57/25 58/5 58/9 106/11 conclusions [1] 67/15 conduct [2] 11/3 11/24 conducted [1] 12/16 confidence [1] 95/9

confused [2] 114/2 128/3 conjunction [1] 45/12 CONNORS [1] 2/3 consider [1] 22/24 construction [1] 101/21 contact [3] 93/1 107/1 111/21 continue [1] 25/22 contract [1] 86/16 contractor [1] 102/2 contractors [1] 101/14 control [1] 102/13 conversation [2] 37/12 125/3 cooperative [2] 56/15 56/19 cop [8] 80/19 81/2 81/8 81/17 82/2 82/9 82/12 86/9 copy [4] 17/22 64/12 86/16 110/4 corner [1] 120/6 correct [161] cost [20] 70/8 70/10 73/21 73/23 75/4 75/13 75/14 76/14 81/5 81/6 81/13 81/15 81/18 82/7 85/6 85/25 86/1 87/3 89/18 104/19 costs [8] 84/11 86/2 86/8 87/16 88/11 101/4 104/7 104/12 could [12] 23/13 29/24 49/18 55/21 71/10 75/10 101/22 104/8 114/2 116/5 118/1 125/12 couldn't [2] 95/9 118/19 council [5] 30/10 46/5 47/25 48/22 88/3 Councilman [2] 1/11 47/24 Counsel [1] 22/5 counselor [1] 9/10 counter [1] 39/1 counting [1] 96/9 county [12] 6/3 6/4 6/7 107/3 108/9 108/13 113/19 118/10 123/14 123/23 125/20 128/17 couple [7] 6/25 15/25 33/13 33/25 51/24 124/8 127/25 court [10] 1/24 6/3 6/3 6/4 6/5 6/22 7/11 35/16 35/18 130/5 courts [1] 6/1 coverage [4] 28/9 29/1 90/24 95/13 covered [1] 129/7 CPA [2] 2/14 75/25 create [1] 77/14 created [6] 77/16 77/17 77/18 77/18 77/21 79/13 crime [6] 8/2 93/11 93/15 93/17 94/3 94/15 crimes [4] 8/4 8/5 94/8 94/11 criminal [1] 93/17 cross [19] 4/9 9/19 10/4 10/14 11/4 11/7 11/8 11/24 13/10 34/13 35/3 35/4 37/2 42/8 43/22 43/23 43/25 52/7 63/4 cross-examination [10] 4/9 9/19 10/4 11/4 11/7 11/8 11/24 13/10 42/8 43/25 cross-examine [7] 10/14 34/13 35/3 35/4 37/2 43/22 43/23 cross-examined [1] crosses [2] 11/25 12/2 crossing [1] 64/3 cruiser [1] 97/3 cruisers [2] 97/1 97/13 Crystal [1] 112/4 current [2] 115/12 116/1

curriculum [4] 3/15 71/24 72/5 72/8 cut [4] 55/11 55/12 55/17 55/18

ם

DASTI [1] 2/3 data [1] 84/25 date [7] 17/13 50/15 62/20 108/23 115/25 118/12 130/9 Dated [1] 130/16 dates [2] 14/16 62/22 day [2] 46/17 99/10 days [5] 26/12 26/14 33/13 51/24 65/14 de [25] 1/5 4/10 12/4 27/24 31/6 31/21 34/10 34/21 35/14 36/3 36/19 37/10 37/17 45/8 48/2 54/22 54/23 55/7 55/11 55/20 55/25 57/23 58/16 59/5 92/11 de-annexation [25] 1/5 4/10 12/4 27/24 31/6 31/21 34/10 34/21 35/14 36/3 36/19 37/10 37/17 45/8 48/2 54/22 54/23 55/7 55/11 55/20 55/25 57/23 58/16 59/5 92/11 deals [2] 63/24 64/3 debating [1] 40/7 decide [1] 38/8 decision [2] 45/5 110/21 defend [2] 26/8 57/13 definitely [2] 10/21 12/1 degree [4] 8/24 67/20 67/23 67/25 deliberative [2] 22/25 22/25 delivery [1] 45/19 demand [1] 92/21 Demographics [1] 94/14 department [22] 4/11 21/13 21/18 26/8 27/5 32/16 39/24 40/15 41/6 45/23 50/25 55/20 55/22 57/13 57/17 71/7 82/14 96/22 101/24 103/1 104/18 118/10 depending [1] 99/22 Depends [1] 90/20 described [2] 61/8 83/10 description [2] 3/11 123/25 determine [4] 70/9 73/9 73/21 determining [2] 70/4 76/13 Dickerson [5] 2/13 48/14 48/15 48/16 48/18 did [114] 9/19 9/23 10/16 13/5 14/9 15/4 15/5 15/5 15/17 15/18 15/22 15/25 17/15 17/23 18/2 18/5 19/23 20/7 22/6 25/5 25/24 26/1 26/7 26/9 26/9 27/1 27/6 28/1 30/2 31/13 33/1 33/2 33/4 33/9 33/19 33/23 34/8 34/19 37/9 39/25 42/12 43/8 46/10 46/21 49/16 51/16 51/17 52/3 53/13 53/16 53/19 54/16 54/19 54/21 60/5 61/12 61/17 61/23 63/8 64/21 65/7 65/21 66/4 66/6 66/7 66/10 66/15 66/15 66/18 68/7 68/8 68/10 69/3 69/4 74/14 74/19 77/13 77/14 77/14 77/20 80/8 80/23 80/24 91/2 91/7 92/7 92/8 92/24 93/3 93/5 93/8 94/20 94/22 96/2 96/8 96/12 106/15

D	doesn't [7] 46/8 52/22 102/9	equips [1] 84/24
D	102/10 102/22 103/1 109/11	Ernest [1] 51/7
did [17] 109/24 114/21 115/16 117/20 118/25 119/6	doing [3] 43/16 54/2 116/25	Ernie [1] 2/12
119/18 119/19 119/19 119/21	Domenick [1] 1/12 Don [1] 46/18	ESQ [2] 2/5 2/8 ESQS [2] 2/3 2/6
121/25 121/25 122/3 122/7	Don Whiteman [1] 46/18	essentially [3] 70/9 72/6
122/9 125/2 129/17	don't [172]	112/14
didn't [44] 9/14 18/1 25/13 36/22 39/15 40/3 40/11 43/13	done [5] 10/18 44/1 47/9 51/23	
46/15 46/19 47/5 47/11 47/15	108/13 door [2] 98/12 122/7	esteemed [1] 11/17 estimate [1] 6/19
49/14 49/16 51/22 53/21 54/15	doubt [1] 119/13	even [5] 39/12 49/10 62/2
61/25 66/11 66/16 66/21 66/25	doubting [1] 107/10	71/17 129/7
67/11 67/12 69/3 74/1 80/6	down [12] 8/23 18/3 18/10 23/6	
91/7 93/6 95/19 96/1 104/5 107/9 107/12 110/10 110/11	89/24 90/1 90/16 120/7 122/25 124/1 124/8 124/8	Eventually [1] 13/1 ever [3] 10/18 69/13 69/18
115/25 121/18 121/23 121/24	downswing [1] 93/12	every [3] 10/18 12/23 92/8
122/11 122/18 123/5	draw [1] 56/8	everybody [4] 68/12 83/4 98/20
died [3] 105/10 105/11 105/12	drive [3] 1/24 98/1 98/11	120/25
difference [2] 5/14 118/1 different [11] 7/16 9/11 12/25	driving [1] 99/16 due [4] 21/22 24/9 55/4 57/5	everyone [2] 81/1 98/8 everything [2] 93/17 97/7
13/5 20/25 21/1 94/12 124/5	dug [1] 101/22	everything [2] 93/17 97/7 evidence [2] 76/23 114/25
124/9 124/12 125/13	during [4] 19/18 20/21 65/25	exact [4] 85/9 85/18 90/11
difficult [1] 99/2	74/3	97/17
DiMICHEL [1] 5/2 DiMICHELE [2] 3/3 4/22	duties [1] 7/17	exactly [4] 18/19 24/14 24/16 52/24
direct [1] 74/3	duty [1] 58/21	52/24 exaggerated [1] 106/10
direction [3] 120/3 120/22	E	examination [11] 4/9 5/3 9/19
124/25	E-b-e-a-n-u [1] 88/9	10/4 11/4 11/7 11/8 11/24
directions [2] 124/9 124/13 disagree [5] 19/15 22/4 36/6	E-b-e-n-a-u [1] 88/10 e-mail [10] 3/17 107/6 107/15	13/10 42/8 43/25 examine [8] 10/14 34/13 35/3
36/7 43/1	109/19 109/21 110/4 111/12	35/4 37/2 43/22 43/23 46/10
disclosing [1] 96/18	111/15 111/23 113/24	examined [1] 52/7
discovery [1] 22/11	e-mailed [1] 107/3	example [2] 39/6 70/3
discrepancy [7] 112/23 113/1 113/15 124/14 124/15 125/11	each [7] 7/1 7/7 7/10 10/15 62/18 84/1 100/23	excellent [7] 25/6 92/17 92/21 92/24 93/3 93/6 93/23
125/22	earlier [1] 107/22	except [1] 73/14
discuss [3] 33/4 33/9 45/17	easier [2] 72/3 123/10	exception [1] 21/10
discussed [3] 30/12 45/8 64/19	east [1] 120/23	excerpts [1] 62/22
discussing [1] 45/15 discussion [3] 26/10 33/12	Ebenau [1] 88/9 educated [1] 72/20	excuse [8] 9/23 28/21 52/9 52/13 52/18 55/2 59/12 63/7
39/3	effective [1] 45/19	exhibit [12] 49/19 52/10 52/10
discussions [1] 33/1	efforts [1] 31/21	52/16 52/20 71/23 72/2 76/22
dispatch [4] 108/10 108/10	eight [3] 13/3 95/11 95/12	76/25 77/7 107/14 111/1
113/2 113/2 dispatched [6] 108/5 112/12	eight-hour [2] 95/11 95/12 either [4] 23/1 48/24 49/17	exhibits [8] 14/3 18/21 18/23 19/17 46/11 46/13 46/14 46/15
113/16 121/14 123/22 123/23	121/7	exists [1] 112/25
dispatcher [3] 128/13 128/16	else [13] 16/25 33/19 34/4	expect [6] 92/10 92/14 92/15
128/16	35/7 45/22 45/25 47/12 77/18	92/16 92/18 92/20
displeasure [1] 30/13 dispute [2] 95/19 95/25	81/11 97/5 97/7 103/16 119/19 embarrass [1] 11/16	expected [1] 10/22 expensive [1] 83/3
disrespectful [1] 113/11	emergency [1] 99/13	experience [4] 72/13 81/12
dissatisfaction [2] 30/20	employed [1] 91/9	81/13 81/14
30/23	employee [5] 32/17 36/9 36/13	experienced [1] 99/11
dissatisfied [1] 29/1 divide [3] 70/9 75/14 86/1	36/15 37/15 employees [6] 68/21 69/2 69/14	expert [5] 45/18 66/4 67/5 67/17 72/17
divided [4] 63/2 73/4 73/24	69/15 69/17 69/18	expert's [1] 67/12
75/16	EMS [1] 83/19	expires [1] 130/14
divvy [1] 45/16	en [1] 112/13	explain [5] 9/24 13/7 52/4
do [153] document [10] 22/25 77/11	en route [1] 112/13 end [1] 127/8	67/13 67/15 explanation [1] 13/14
77/13 77/14 77/15 79/1 80/9	engineer [2] 2/12 53/8	explore [1] 22/3
110/24 114/25 118/8	engineers [1] 54/13	Explorers [1] 98/5
documentation [1] 104/22 documentations [1] 34/3	enough [3] 41/21 41/23 58/7 enter [1] 101/15	exploring [1] 43/25 express [1] 36/22
documenting [1] 113/5	entire [1] 84/16	express [1] 36/22 extent [1] 71/20
documents [7] 13/23 13/24 14/1	entitled [11] 16/6 19/6 19/9	extreme [1] 114/10
14/5 14/9 107/18 110/22	19/11 19/13 19/19 20/17 22/2	eyes [1] 57/17
does [23] 7/21 23/6 39/19 44/21 46/9 50/5 73/13 76/17	22/5 38/14 39/14 entries [1] 123/24	F
81/13 84/1 92/9 96/22 101/12	epidemic [2] 93/13 95/3	face [1] 57/7
102/1 102/7 102/14 103/1	equipment [6] 81/9 84/14 84/14	fact [10] 7/25 8/4 57/14 58/21
103/11 104/18 104/23 108/17	84/19 85/2 87/4	63/23 66/20 82/12 119/3 122/13
109/6 126/18	equipped [1] 89/19	122/17
1	İ	İ

F	Fred [1] 88/9	65/15 65/16 65/19 78/1 84/19
facts [5] 20/24 57/19 58/19	Fred Ebenau [1] 88/9 Frederick [1] 1/13	91/11 106/21 108/8 108/25 109/12 109/16 113/23 116/15
60/1 60/2	front [11] 13/23 13/24 18/13	124/23 127/8
factual [2] 59/7 60/6	19/21 62/1 63/21 110/23 121/23	
failure [1] 7/25	123/4 126/4 129/13	governing [1] 88/3
fair [1] 113/14	fulfill [1] 7/17	gray [1] 61/14
fallen [1] 106/4	full [5] 16/10 61/23 65/10	great [1] 109/21
False [2] 8/10 8/11	65/12 113/5	greater [2] 73/24 75/16
familiar [2] 5/19 72/6 family [1] 119/15	fully [1] 89/19 fund [1] 87/18	Greg [1] 25/8 GREGORY [1] 2/5
far [3] 13/10 25/1 40/14	funny [1] 117/14	quards [1] 64/3
favor [5] 34/10 34/20 35/13	further [4] 22/20 23/6 82/20	quess [6] 71/13 75/1 125/15
36/21 37/10	129/3	125/16 127/11 127/12
fee [3] 101/17 103/11 103/12	future [1] 41/19	guidance [2] 34/6 47/14
feel [2] 56/20 129/3	G	guide [1] 52/2
feet [1] 40/10 female [1] 120/1	gave [13] 7/2 16/9 16/10 19/13	guidelines [1] 84/3
fifteen [1] 127/6	19/16 37/22 38/6 52/6 59/6	guy [4] 63/21 66/3 71/8 71/19
fighting [1] 63/21	61/19 61/23 71/20 107/22	
figure [3] 54/9 54/11 107/8	general [4] 84/2 88/22 88/24	Н
file [1] 117/15	89/1	had [39] 7/6 7/6 7/12 10/13
filled [1] 90/5	generally [7] 93/12 94/3 99/15	
finance [15] 66/3 66/4 66/12 67/14 67/21 71/8 71/9 71/19	99/17 101/7 103/20 121/1 gentleman [1] 87/5	32/9 33/14 34/1 35/12 36/4 40/8 43/5 45/16 46/19 54/15
	gentleman [1] 8//5 get [27] 15/5 16/5 16/5 23/18	55/19 63/15 64/24 68/12 69/9
73/13 76/2	34/19 38/9 41/7 44/10 59/16	69/13 75/9 76/7 93/1 105/10
financial [3] 67/17 72/12	61/12 61/17 72/25 74/3 75/10	105/14 106/4 106/25 106/25
81/18	77/14 83/9 86/16 94/19 95/10	107/22 114/24 119/7 122/25
find [14] 24/17 28/1 72/4	99/10 100/2 102/14 103/15	125/15 125/17
96/12 97/17 104/3 109/20		hadn't [1] 67/1
109/21 111/22 116/5 119/17 119/19 121/18 123/9	gets [6] 83/6 101/24 101/25 102/1 103/7 128/9	Haines [1] 2/14 hairs [1] 129/4
fine [12] 11/20 25/12 25/14	getting [6] 25/7 40/13 41/20	hand [1] 11/13
34/14 35/24 44/2 44/9 60/24	41/21 41/25 56/9	happen [1] 51/16
74/13 75/22 89/13 111/9	Gingrich [4] 1/14 24/5 24/8	happened [1] 40/7
finish [5] 28/21 38/20 43/21	116/14	happy [1] 68/14
52/15 59/12	Girl [1] 63/21 give [19] 5/21 7/21 13/14	has [19] 12/6 17/10 19/20 20/5 28/2 28/13 36/17 40/15 43/20
finished [1] 127/18 first [21] 4/21 5/18 12/4 12/6	20/13 20/16 25/18 32/12 34/14	
16/19 20/9 26/12 27/22 27/23	59/22 61/23 71/12 75/14 84/18	
28/1 32/6 35/17 62/17 84/19	88/23 95/14 96/1 100/17 115/18	
84/21 91/23 106/16 108/11	122/19	have [182]
113/3 113/6 113/8	I	haven't [10] 5/24 46/25 48/6
firsthand [1] 39/25	98/6 114/2 122/20	48/7 48/23 49/9 56/22 79/21 79/23 79/24
five [9] 40/10 79/1 79/5 97/6 99/3 116/21 116/22 117/18	giving [1] 32/13 glasses [1] 63/8	having [6] 7/22 57/6 81/18
127/15	go [29] 23/6 38/2 38/17 39/24	82/7 86/9 118/18
five feet [1] 40/10		he [92] 10/25 13/17 13/18
five-ton [1] 97/6	56/2 56/2 56/3 58/6 64/1 66/11	15/10 16/2 16/4 16/10 18/14
flares [1] 84/22	72/3 82/16 83/13 84/16 92/1	26/7 26/9 26/17 27/1 33/19
flying [1] 34/7	96/5 99/2 99/6 115/18 121/14	33/23 34/4 34/20 36/4 36/19 36/20 36/22 37/10 39/15 39/17
follow [5] 11/4 73/11 73/25 75/17 75/20	121/25 121/25 124/24 129/3 God [1] 7/14	36/20 36/22 3//10 39/15 39/17 39/23 39/24 46/8 46/9 46/19
follow-up [1] 11/4	goes [5] 12/14 35/22 44/11	48/21 51/11 51/17 56/20 56/21
following [2] 70/18 70/19	113/7 115/13	61/22 61/23 66/3 66/4 66/21
foregoing [1] 130/6	going [51] 4/8 4/24 11/1 23/18	66/23 66/25 67/3 67/9 67/14
forget [1] 29/14	23/19 23/23 24/2 25/1 25/20	68/11 68/13 68/15 69/23 70/6
Forked [1] 2/4	28/2 28/12 28/13 29/21 33/16 38/17 41/7 41/8 44/2 44/8	70/7 71/19 72/13 72/15 72/20 72/23 73/1 73/4 73/9 73/20
form [2] 16/15 16/17 format [6] 16/14 17/20 61/7	38/17 41/7 41/8 44/2 44/8 45/17 54/24 59/15 59/19 60/18	72/23 73/1 73/4 73/9 73/20 73/23 73/24 76/10 76/13 76/14
62/3 62/4 62/6	61/5 64/15 66/12 72/1 75/20	77/20 78/1 95/19 95/21 96/11
forth [5] 38/17 79/22 112/9	85/15 86/7 87/6 88/25 96/3	102/12 105/11 105/12 106/3
114/25 130/9	97/14 98/9 99/17 99/24 120/9	106/4 106/4 107/22 107/22
Forty [3] 116/19 116/21 116/22	120/19 120/22 120/22 121/11	107/22 110/6 119/7 120/4 120/6
Forty-five [2] 116/21 116/22	123/9 123/11 124/1 124/8 124/8 126/6 129/9 129/20	120/12 120/16 120/17 121/22
found [3] 21/20 42/8 115/15 four [3] 39/5 98/1 98/11	gone [3] 5/18 80/1 125/13	121/23 121/24 123/4 126/19 126/21 126/22 129/14
four-wheel [2] 98/1 98/11		he's [13] 15/24 22/5 34/25
Fourteen [1] 100/18	92/8 92/9 92/13 103/6 116/12	35/2 36/21 39/22 48/11 48/19
fourth [1] 9/2	117/13 127/22	49/8 51/9 72/9 72/22 129/13
frame [1] 114/5		head [3] 68/22 71/11 86/10
frankly [1] 51/22	48/16 50/15 55/5 64/12 65/15	headed [2] 129/12 129/12

Н	1
headquarters [10] 85/22 97/23	ho Ho
97/24 98/9 98/12 98/15 123/20	НС
128/6 128/12 128/13	2
hear [2] 4/25 96/2 heard [1] 5/1	ho ho
hearing [8] 1/5 5/13 12/6	ho
13/12 20/9 22/12 25/18 39/25	hc
hearings [4] 14/14 16/1 20/8	ho
26/1 heart [2] 12/15 105/10	ho
	9
heavier [2] 94/17 94/17 Heights [1] 100/11	hc
Hello [1] 48/8	1
help [3] 7/14 54/5 103/23 helped [1] 54/3	1 hc
her [77] 10/8 13/6 18/24 19/1	1
19/9 19/16 19/16 19/19 19/21	1
20/16 20/21 21/15 21/25 22/14 22/15 24/3 25/3 25/7 25/11	2
34/13 34/13 34/14 34/14 35/3	4
35/3 35/4 35/4 35/10 35/12	6
35/16 35/21 35/22 35/23 35/24	9
35/24 35/25 36/2 36/2 36/25 37/1 37/2 37/2 37/4 37/6 37/7	1
38/13 38/14 38/15 39/12 39/17	1
39/22 40/15 40/25 41/7 43/2	1
43/13 43/14 43/15 43/18 43/22	Ηι
43/22 43/23 43/23 44/5 44/25 53/10 56/12 60/5 60/7 74/3	hu 1
74/5 74/7 74/12 95/23 102/21	hu
102/21 114/21	Ηι
here [70] 4/24 5/21 6/22 11/20	hι
12/1 12/17 14/14 15/14 16/19 16/20 18/10 21/11 23/22 23/23	1 hu
24/17 25/25 26/2 26/7 26/17	hι
26/18 26/21 26/23 27/2 32/20	hι
33/14 34/7 35/22 36/9 36/12 37/23 39/7 39/7 39/22 41/11	I
41/21 44/18 46/17 47/23 48/12	I'
48/19 49/12 50/18 51/9 52/1	1
55/1 56/8 56/14 57/4 57/12	I,
58/13 58/19 58/21 59/19 60/1 60/7 64/8 68/11 68/14 82/13	Į.
98/11 98/13 99/21 106/20	1
107/16 109/23 112/3 114/13	1
116/15 123/24 129/4	1
hereby [1] 130/6 hereinbefore [1] 130/9	1 2
heroin [1] 93/13	2
herself [2] 24/1 24/10	3
hey [1] 128/17 hiding [1] 22/22	4
high [2] 94/3 95/4	5
highlighted [1] 51/4	5
highly [1] 67/4	5
HILL [2] 1/23 130/4 him [20] 10/21 15/12 15/23	7
20/13 37/19 48/1 48/12 48/20	-
48/21 48/24 49/9 53/16 53/17	8
53/19 54/21 59/23 84/15 85/15	9
96/2 122/3 his [36] 11/2 34/23 36/3 37/12	1
37/14 37/21 39/16 49/1 66/5	1
66/7 66/10 66/16 67/1 67/12	1
67/13 67/14 68/13 68/13 69/10	I'
69/25 74/11 76/8 82/22 82/24 116/15 120/10 121/23 121/25	10
121/25 122/7 122/9 123/4 126/4	8
126/20 126/22 129/13	i
hold [10] 34/11 34/11 34/23 42/18 42/20 52/19 74/1 109/20	ic
12,10 42,20 32,13 14/1 103/20	<u> </u>
	l

```
110/17 110/18
ole [1] 23/6
oliday [1] 117/22
OMEOWNERS [4] 1/4 4/2 4/20
29/15
onest [1] 34/5
onestly [2] 12/19 125/4
onesty [1] 113/5
ostile [1] 56/17
our [6] 40/9 51/14 95/11
95/12 99/1 100/4
ours [5] 50/16 78/21 80/2
95/15 127/6
ouse [8] 116/15 117/18 118/16
120/4 120/10 122/1 126/20
129/10
ow [55] 6/9 11/1 11/3 12/15
12/16 12/18 14/23 15/5 15/10
15/22 16/4 23/5 23/18 23/21
25/24 26/1 27/12 28/7 29/21
30/13 33/1 36/19 38/16 42/14
48/11 48/14 48/19 59/14 64/16
68/20 74/3 75/5 75/8 78/10
90/9 90/12 93/15 94/20 94/22
95/6 95/15 96/18 97/10 97/13
100/15 100/23 102/12 102/14
102/24 103/12 103/18 117/9
125/11 125/21 127/7
ugg [1] 2/12
um [4]
       8/19 14/20 81/20
113/25
umor [1] 41/14
umvees [3] 97/3 97/4 97/13
undred [3] 100/13 104/14
118/19
undred percent [1] 118/19
urricanes [1] 117/12
usband [1] 114/21
'd [5]
       22/19 73/19 75/2 92/1
115/18
'11 [8] 9/3 15/1 38/2 49/23
56/4 59/8 62/13 109/22
```

'm [108] 4/24 5/1 5/13 5/19 6/15 6/16 8/14 9/16 10/2 11/18 11/20 11/22 12/13 12/22 12/23 15/4 16/6 16/18 17/15 18/16 19/6 19/11 19/13 20/3 20/17 22/2 22/22 24/9 24/17 24/18 25/10 32/1 35/11 35/11 37/25 38/14 39/14 39/15 41/17 44/4 44/12 48/8 50/18 51/21 51/25 53/6 53/10 53/13 53/23 53/25 54/2 54/2 54/9 54/16 55/1 56/1 56/1 56/5 56/16 56/24 57/13 58/13 58/13 60/10 60/18 61/5 64/8 64/17 65/7 69/10 70/11 70/18 72/1 72/25 73/19 75/20 75/24 76/1 76/3 80/6 85/1 85/1 85/10 85/15 88/15 88/25 89/9 91/15 96/24 97/14 99/14 100/13 104/14 105/11 107/8 107/10 107/11 110/16 113/10 113/11 117/22 119/21 123/9 123/11 125/16 126/6 128/3 129/20 've [3] 10/18 50/9 83/10 dea [10] 15/13 42/9 42/10 42/19 45/7 76/10 84/18 87/3 88/14 127/23 dentification [5] 49/21 60/16 62/16 71/25 111/13 dentify [1] 49/23

imagine [1] 100/24 impact [3] 55/21 58/16 76/8 important [3] 23/21 28/16 60/2 impression [3] 34/19 39/7 43/2 impressions [6] 35/7 35/21 36/2 37/1 38/15 39/16 improper [1] 38/24 inaccurate [1] 96/13 inappropriate [9] 13/13 34/12 34/17 35/8 38/7 38/18 40/22 43/4 44/23 incident [9] 39/4 117/4 118/11 118/12 118/14 119/13 123/8 123/12 123/13 include [1] 83/3 indicate [4] 12/7 13/16 37/9 72/9 indicated [7] 10/13 10/25 19/24 36/13 83/13 105/14 106/1 indicates [1] 8/15 indicating [1] 18/11 indictable [1] 8/18 individual [5] 90/2 90/3 90/4 102/15 103/18 individuals [1] 101/14 influence [3] 47/11 58/25 59/4 information [12] 24/17 29/18 44/10 79/5 79/22 106/22 117/3 124/20 124/23 125/21 128/14 128/14 infrastructure [3] 85/21 87/15 87/16 infrastructures [1] 82/13 initially [2] 15/18 27/10 initials [2] 107/25 108/18 inquire [2] 15/18 15/22 inquired [2] 15/15 15/16 instance [2] 82/19 94/19 instruct [1] 42/12 instructed [2] 11/3 111/21 insufficient [1] 21/12 intentionally [1] 8/17 interfere [1] 60/5 internet [1] 115/15 interpreted [1] 125/21 interruption [1] 42/8 invitation [2] 68/12 68/18 invoices [3] 3/12 49/20 49/24 involved [2] 10/19 21/16 involves [2] 83/16 83/19 involving [1] 118/15 irrelevant [1] 35/16 is [231] isn't [18] 7/7 7/18 7/23 8/17 56/8 56/8 74/17 74/18 94/13 99/3 104/6 104/13 104/20 122/13 123/5 124/19 125/13 126/5 issue [6] 11/13 59/4 62/7 90/5 93/1 111/3 issued [1] 103/19 issues [4] 30/3 56/23 61/13 64/10 it [248] it's [107] 6/16 9/1 9/2 9/3 9/4 9/25 10/17 11/6 12/5 12/20 13/13 17/11 17/11 18/18 20/13 20/23 22/11 22/25 23/20 23/23 23/25 24/20 24/20 25/8 25/8 25/17 35/7 35/15 35/18 36/8 37/4 38/17 41/8 42/23 43/3 43/10 43/17 44/1 44/7 44/15 44/22 44/24 45/5 50/15 61/13

I	L	looked [6] 14/12 14/19 15/2
it's [62] 64/13 65/3 72/8	Lacey [1] 2/4	17/13 34/2 107/9 looking [8] 16/21 16/22 21/3
74/8 78/10 78/10 80/4 81/1	lack [3] 11/14 25/4 25/5	60/10 72/18 117/15 122/23
81/2 81/2 81/8 81/9 81/9 81/16	LAKEVIEW [1] 1/24	122/24
82/2 82/8 82/11 82/17 87/19	last [8] 20/8 23/22 25/25	looks [4] 63/19 63/20 64/18
87/21 89/14 90/10 90/19 90/21	47/22 49/2 76/23 94/21 105/6	72/20
90/22 93/21 93/24 93/25 94/25 95/2 95/3 95/3 96/16 98/20	later [5] 85/3 105/24 106/18 107/10 107/11	Lorelli [1] 1/12
99/9 99/24 100/3 100/6 102/12	lawyer [1] 10/19	lose [1] 55/14 lot [12] 17/25 34/6 37/11 40/7
102/20 102/24 104/2 106/21	lead [1] 96/18	64/18 64/23 80/16 81/9 81/9
107/1 108/19 108/20 108/25	learn [3] 31/20 31/23 129/17	94/15 94/19 127/12
110/24 111/20 113/19 116/8	least [2] 10/8 116/12	lots [2] 72/13 127/9
117/14 118/25 123/3 124/11	left [7] 52/1 53/22 62/21	loud [1] 64/4
124/17 126/1 126/2 126/3 126/19 128/15 129/7	109/9 112/13 120/7 120/8 legal [4] 43/3 43/12 43/14	loved [2] 106/3 106/11 low [1] 73/23
its [1] 57/6	102/20	lower [2] 28/10 29/2
itself [2] 85/4 111/1	legally [1] 102/24	M
J	lengthy [1] 100/1	
		Mackres [1] 1/13
Jack [1] 1/14 JACKSON [1] 1/25		made [12] 21/19 21/23 21/24
jammed [1] 99/10	let [22] 4/25 10/10 11/6 17/14 18/12 28/21 34/18 43/21 44/9	25/12 38/24 43/5 5//15 68/11 68/17 80/16 102/14 116/14
January [1] 130/14		mail [10] 3/17 107/6 107/15
Jersey [7] 1/7 1/25 2/4 2/7	59/12 62/12 71/15 76/21 85/15	109/19 109/21 110/4 111/12
115/19 130/6 130/13	109/20 123/9 125/20	111/15 111/23 113/24
job [15] 25/3 25/6 55/5 92/7		mailed [1] 107/3
92/8 92/9 92/13 92/17 92/19 92/24 93/3 93/5 93/6 93/8		mainland [2] 94/16 104/8 maintain [2] 90/2 90/6
101/21	125/7 127/10 127/19	maintain [2] 90/2 90/6 maintained [2] 98/14 98/16
John [2] 1/11 65/16	letting [2] 28/4 28/7	maintains [1] 102/12
JOSEPH [3] 2/8 4/13 4/18		maintenance [2] 89/23 90/5
jury [1] 25/19		make [12] 5/1 11/12 24/24 25/1
just [63] 4/24 4/25 10/10 11/12 12/20 13/15 16/12 18/3	license [1] 84/24	44/3 44/9 54/12 80/3 111/6
24/11 24/21 24/25 25/21 28/5	licensed [1] 72/11 lied [1] 114/14	111/10 120/6 120/8 makes [1] 122/18
30/7 31/1 33/23 39/5 40/13		making [2] 19/5 44/9
41/13 42/3 44/2 44/9 52/9 54/9		male [1] 120/1
60/10 64/5 72/25 78/10 79/13	light [1] 125/22	male/female [1] 120/1
79/17 81/1 81/3 81/8 81/17		man [4] 77/19 96/22 105/10
81/23 82/2 82/9 82/10 82/12 82/17 87/8 99/14 99/16 101/7	like [32] 4/7 17/13 17/15 17/21 22/19 23/2 23/17 25/8	106/3 manipulated [1] 17/10
103/8 103/9 107/8 107/12		manner [1] 11/23
107/23 111/2 115/11 117/11		many [28] 6/9 14/23 27/12 28/7
117/15 117/17 117/25 118/1	62/8 63/19 64/18 71/9 73/19	30/13 33/1 38/16 59/15 64/16
119/16 119/16 123/4 127/18	74/5 74/7 75/2 81/2 87/5	68/20 72/14 72/14 74/3 75/5
127/24 128/2 129/11 Justice [2] 115/22 115/23	117/15 122/18 129/3 129/11 liked [1] 28/9	75/8 90/9 90/12 94/8 94/11 94/20 94/22 95/6 96/18 97/10
justify [1] 25/3	liked [1] 28/9 limit [1] 100/3	94/20 94/22 95/6 96/18 97/10 97/13 100/15 100/23 103/18
K		map [1] 46/19
	LINDA [3] 1/23 8/23 130/4	mark [3] 49/18 62/13 90/10
KARIN [1] 3/3		marked [13] 49/21 60/14 60/15
KARYN [1] 5/2 keep [9] 8/22 18/5 37/21 38/4	12/14 40/11 56/8 102/12 listed [1] 72/13	61/6 62/15 62/17 71/23 71/25 72/2 72/2 76/21 111/13 118/7
39/11 40/14 49/11 59/23 113/6		master's [1] 67/25
keeps [1] 84/15	125/6 125/8	matched [1] 118/21
Kelly [1] 2/12	little [7] 25/1 25/8 40/13	matter [19] 1/3 14/7 17/15
kept [3] 96/11 97/20 98/17	62/2 82/20 94/12 98/20	21/16 32/7 33/2 39/19 42/25
Keswick [1] 1/6	live [2] 58/2 79/10	43/19 45/2 45/9 45/18 45/23
kidding [1] 107/23 kind [7] 16/14 30/15 40/12	lives [6] 120/4 120/6 120/12 120/16 120/17 126/21	46/23 47/6 47/19 47/21 47/22 48/13
52/1 53/22 84/14 90/6		matters [3] 40/2 40/5 67/18
kinds [1] 41/8	located [1] 78/18	may [12] 4/11 17/11 20/1 20/4
kit [1] 84/22	log [2] 90/6 96/11	23/15 37/4 38/20 39/2 65/5
knew [2] 5/20 27/25	logs [2] 90/2 90/4	76/7 76/7 127/24
knock [1] 122/7 know [165]	London [1] 112/4 long [6] 28/14 29/22 98/19	maybe [21] 11/14 11/25 17/12
knowledge [15] 15/3 32/6 63/18	10ng [6]	21/1 27/19 29/7 30/23 38/25 41/19 52/3 52/3 54/5 57/7
64/21 71/21 72/23 80/14 96/14	longer [1] 62/2	59/22 62/2 66/23 84/22 88/15
109/15 114/17 116/18 126/10	look [17] 14/9 17/15 21/7	107/15 113/19 128/17
126/14 126/19 126/23		mayor [3] 30/10 46/1 53/18
knows [4] 39/23 71/17 71/18 89/6	67/12 78/14 81/3 92/1 95/10 109/16 109/22 117/5 121/16	McGUCKIN [9] 2/3 2/5 10/20 10/25 20/18 22/16 44/21 46/7
	103/10 103/22 11//3 121/10	10/23 20/10 22/10 44/21 40//

M McGUCKIN... [1] 103/3 me [70] 5/8 8/14 9/23 10/10 10/21 12/10 12/18 12/21 17/6 17/14 18/12 26/23 28/12 28/18 28/21 28/21 29/21 30/9 32/3 32/9 33/16 34/18 36/20 40/19 40/23 43/21 44/2 44/8 44/9 51/3 51/3 51/17 52/4 52/8 52/9 52/13 52/15 52/18 52/23 55/2 58/14 59/12 59/12 60/24 62/1 62/12 63/7 64/5 64/7 64/10 64/12 71/15 72/24 76/21 83/25 84/14 84/16 84/18 85/13 90/19 100/17 106/15 107/4 109/20 115/18 117/15 117/19 117/19 120/16 130/8 mean [22] 14/8 17/9 19/6 22/21 24/12 39/12 40/16 47/20 47/21 79/24 80/24 89/23 93/17 96/25 107/21 107/25 108/17 109/6 110/16 115/12 115/19 129/4 meaning [5] 17/7 33/15 65/1 82/14 98/16 means [1] 109/7 meant [5] 13/8 53/1 53/2 80/25 81/1 meantime [1] 109/22 medical [1] 83/3 medics [1] 113/8 meet [12] 47/15 49/14 53/8 53/13 53/16 53/18 53/19 53/21 54/16 54/19 54/21 68/14 meeting [14] 4/8 5/5 18/19 26/12 26/14 29/8 29/13 30/9 33/14 40/7 53/3 57/7 116/15 129/25 meetings [9] 26/19 26/21 27/12 29/13 32/10 47/25 48/22 53/18 55/19 Melanie [3] 3/17 111/12 111/15 Member [6] 1/12 1/12 1/13 1/13 1/14 1/14 members [7] 4/12 22/21 45/23 46/4 46/22 47/6 61/1 memory [1] 110/2 35/7 37/1 mental [2] met [7] 47/18 47/23 48/7 48/12 48/23 49/9 52/20 methodology [1] 67/14 mic [1] 4/23 MICHELINI [12] 2/6 2/8 4/13 4/18 5/3 13/15 37/21 43/22 59/14 70/11 96/25 127/3 MICU [3] 107/24 108/16 108/17 might [7] 62/10 70/22 81/1 85/2 119/23 122/20 129/14 miles [2] 98/20 100/4 mind [1] 113/6 minds [1] 106/9 mine [1] 22/22 Minimum [1] 93/20 minute [7] 4/4 76/20 100/17 109/21 113/21 114/4 114/5 minutes [20] 13/4 39/4 39/5 39/5 40/9 72/4 72/15 99/21 99/23 105/24 106/18 106/24 107/10 107/11 114/1 115/2 116/17 116/19 117/18 127/16 missed [2] 40/8 70/12 missing [1] 85/2 mistake [1] 25/13

mobile [1] 84/25 moment [3] 18/12 64/1 64/9 money [5] 67/6 67/7 81/16 84/11 91/21 monitor [1] 113/1 Monmouth [1] 67/23 MONOC [7] 107/1 107/2 108/16 111/18 112/7 112/10 113/2 months [1] 27/9 Moore [18] 3/16 66/1 66/1 66/21 66/22 68/4 68/8 69/22 70/4 70/24 71/10 71/14 71/21 71/24 72/17 73/3 75/3 76/4 Moore's [2] 69/7 72/8 more [25] 6/11 6/13 6/16 30/5 31/2 33/5 34/18 64/23 66/13 69/17 73/5 81/13 81/14 85/14 88/17 90/16 94/15 94/25 95/2 100/1 125/18 127/7 127/9 127/12 129/7 morning [3] 119/8 119/9 126/13 most [2] 40/17 45/19 mostly [1] 65/3 motivation [6] 44/11 44/18 57/10 57/12 57/15 57/16 motivations [6] 21/25 35/22 35/24 42/24 43/25 60/2 move [3] 25/22 40/19 60/7 Mr [23] 3/15 5/3 21/22 24/5 24/8 27/6 27/22 33/2 37/20 37/21 45/9 48/7 48/8 66/1 71/24 96/8 96/25 103/3 119/4 119/14 119/14 126/3 127/3 Mr. [70] 10/20 10/25 13/15 15/8 15/21 16/9 20/18 22/1 22/16 22/17 25/16 26/5 27/21 32/7 33/5 33/10 33/17 34/20 35/13 36/3 36/7 37/9 38/17 43/22 44/21 45/9 46/7 48/11 48/12 48/13 48/14 48/18 48/19 51/25 52/11 52/16 52/20 53/14 54/17 54/19 59/14 65/19 65/21 65/22 66/1 68/4 68/8 69/7 69/22 70/4 70/11 70/24 71/10 71/14 71/21 72/8 72/17 73/3 75/3 76/4 95/19 96/7 116/14 120/4 121/22 122/24 123/4 126/3 126/18 129/10 Mr. Camera [15] 15/8 15/21 16/9 26/5 27/21 32/7 33/10 33/17 34/20 35/13 36/3 37/9 45/9 51/25 65/19 Mr. Chairman [5] 22/1 22/17 25/16 36/7 38/17 Mr. Dickerson [2] 48/14 48/18 Mr. Gingrich [1] 116/14 Mr. McGuckin [6] 10/20 10/25 20/18 22/16 44/21 46/7 Mr. Michelini [4] 13/15 43/22 59/14 70/11 Mr. Moore [13] 66/1 68/4 68/8 69/22 70/4 70/24 71/10 71/14 71/21 72/17 73/3 75/3 76/4 Mr. Moore's [2] 69/7 72/8 Mr. Oris [1] 48/19 Mr. Peters [10] 48/11 48/12 48/13 52/11 52/16 52/20 53/14 54/17 54/19 65/21 Mr. Reed [1] 33/5 Mr. Whiteman [7] 95/19 96/7 121/22 122/24 123/4 126/3 126/18

misunderstanding [1] 114/15

Mr. Whiteman's [2] 120/4 129/10 Mr. Wiser [1] 65/22 Ms. [1] 114/2 Ms. Viturello [1] 114/2 much [10] 18/18 23/6 49/12 49/17 66/12 67/3 103/12 127/7 129/5 129/23 municipal [8] 6/3 6/22 67/13 72/10 72/12 72/17 72/21 75/23 municipalities [2] 6/25 7/1 MURPHY [1] 2/3 must [1] 5/17 my [46] 9/21 10/11 11/3 11/6 11/10 11/25 12/2 12/4 12/10 24/11 24/21 30/14 38/1 38/6 38/20 39/7 44/18 50/18 50/21 52/9 55/12 55/18 57/12 57/15 57/16 58/17 58/20 58/21 59/2 59/11 63/7 68/22 71/20 77/19 81/21 84/23 86/10 106/22 109/14 111/19 113/10 115/14 117/1 117/18 127/11 130/14 myself [1] 30/10

Ν

name [9] 3/2 29/14 49/2 50/11 50/12 57/16 105/6 115/17 118/18 national [1] 115/2 nature [3] 67/4 78/21 120/1 necessarily [1] 34/9 necessary [1] 13/14 need [14] 5/12 18/24 20/1 20/4 21/4 21/7 37/19 54/11 73/12 110/4 110/7 110/15 110/20 126/16 needed [2] 19/24 33/24 never [12] 17/4 46/1 46/4 46/7 50/9 69/9 79/11 122/13 122/14 122/15 122/17 122/19 New [7] 1/7 1/25 2/4 2/7 115/19 130/6 130/13 New Jersey [1] 115/19 next [5] 4/1 98/12 108/16 108/22 127/15 Nicholas [1] 2/13 Nick [1] 1/13 115/13 115/24 nine [2] no [115] 5/12 6/8 6/20 9/7 9/18 14/25 15/12 16/12 17/1 17/3 17/9 22/10 23/7 25/19 25/20 29/7 31/12 32/9 34/5 35/11 36/21 37/12 37/22 41/17 42/14 42/19 43/5 44/19 45/7 45/25 46/3 46/6 46/9 46/12 46/17 47/13 48/3 48/10 48/13 48/25 49/16 51/19 53/7 53/21 54/23 56/3 56/4 56/5 58/10 58/18 59/25 65/3 65/23 66/6 66/18 67/16 67/19 67/22 68/10 68/16 68/19 68/22 69/23 70/2 70/2 70/20 71/2 73/16 74/14 74/14 75/20 75/24 76/1 76/3 76/6 76/10 78/15 79/7 79/13 80/8 80/8 83/11 85/20 86/19 87/2 87/8 87/9 87/12 88/6 88/20 90/1 90/8 91/13 94/6 101/11 102/11 104/24 107/18 109/13 111/2 111/19 113/18 117/1 117/5 119/22 121/6 122/2 122/4 122/6 122/8 122/10 123/19 126/14 126/16 128/11

125/20 129/6 129/12 N off [21] 4/15 10/6 43/7 47/4 nobody [3] 51/21 54/3 94/10 47/7 49/22 60/8 62/14 63/8 non [2] 97/1 97/1 67/6 67/7 68/22 77/6 77/12 non-cruisers [1] 79/15 86/10 116/2 117/20 97/1 none [1] 91/13 Nope [4] 47/17 47/17 47/24 48/18 normal [2] 10/22 106/13 normally [1] 127/5 not [185] 130/4 130/13 Notary [2] notation [1] 51/4 note [1] 124/14 noted [1] 42/5 notes [35] 17/7 18/2 18/5 18/8 18/17 18/25 19/2 19/5 19/9 19/19 20/7 20/10 20/16 20/21 21/3 21/5 21/8 21/18 21/24 21/24 22/5 22/7 22/15 22/20 22/21 23/1 23/5 23/8 23/10 23/12 24/3 25/2 25/18 63/13 107/17 nothing [1] 7/14 notice [3] 13/22 49/17 78/25 notified [2] 4/5 51/24 November [2] 1/7 130/16 now [33] 4/8 13/5 13/22 17/16 19/21 23/9 24/2 26/18 30/11 32/6 39/25 44/7 54/1 54/9 55/6 56/22 57/8 65/25 68/4 68/24 68/25 75/11 76/19 78/19 80/16 95/11 110/17 110/20 113/6 114/24 116/25 121/22 129/22 nowadays [1] 83/4 number [45] 3/11 6/10 6/14 6/16 6/17 10/17 13/23 36/23 67/9 68/5 68/8 69/2 69/22 70/1 70/4 73/8 73/10 73/21 73/24 74/6 74/10 75/3 75/10 75/16 76/5 76/11 85/9 85/13 87/22 88/20 88/22 89/1 90/11 92/3 94/24 95/4 97/14 97/17 99/6 102/23 103/21 104/25 109/3 111/4 112/17 numbers [8] 69/5 77/19 78/1 78/19 78/21 79/8 92/2 95/18 numerous [3] 45/10 84/3 84/4 o'clock [3] 119/8 119/9 126/12 O'MALLEY [1] 2/6 02 [2] 84/20 84/21 oath [5] 5/14 5/15 7/16 7/22 8/1 obey [1] 100/3 object [1] 102/19 objected [1] 10/24 objection [4] 10/11 11/11 43/10 102/17 obligations [1] 43/3 observed [1] 92/23 obtained [1] 49/25 obviously [3] 19/5 21/14 114/10

occasion [2] 7/10 33/5

occasions [2] 6/21 7/7

occurs [2] 55/11 57/23

128/11

occur [4] 26/10 52/3 58/8

occurred [2] 92/11 119/14

ocean [11] 108/9 108/13 118/10

121/2 121/3 121/7 121/8 123/23

117/24 120/15 129/18 offense [2] 8/18 8/25 Office [3] 5/14 7/17 123/18 officer [51] 5/15 7/6 7/12 7/18 7/20 9/10 9/12 10/15 70/6 70/9 72/13 73/21 75/4 75/15 76/15 80/18 81/3 81/18 82/8 82/20 82/21 82/21 83/6 84/1 84/7 84/7 84/15 86/1 86/4 86/9 86/12 88/12 92/8 92/18 101/21 101/25 102/1 102/16 102/25 103/9 103/10 103/16 105/20 123/5 123/21 128/15 128/18 128/18 128/20 129/5 129/6 officers [45] 5/9 10/13 11/17 12/13 28/6 28/18 28/23 29/4 30/13 30/17 30/24 31/14 41/24 63/25 64/11 68/5 69/9 69/24 70/8 73/5 73/10 73/17 73/18 73/20 73/22 74/20 75/5 78/17 82/8 86/5 90/12 91/7 91/10 96/10 97/7 101/13 103/1 113/5 116/19 121/13 121/24 123/22 124/17 125/12 126/17 official [2] 8/15 32/20 officials [2] 34/15 38/9 often [2] 25/1 106/9 Oh [4] 48/8 95/2 97/9 111/20 okay [133] old [1] 94/2 olds [1] 94/8 88/18 97/15 100/2 once [3] 5/15 8/9 10/17 11/16 one [47] 17/10 27/18 27/19 30/16 31/14 33/5 39/4 39/5 46/17 51/9 51/14 55/23 58/10 62/18 63/3 63/24 67/9 82/17 82/18 86/4 86/24 88/10 90/14 90/15 90/18 90/19 90/21 91/6 91/10 100/21 104/15 106/3 106/11 107/1 114/4 119/8 119/23 123/13 124/15 124/15 125/19 129/5 129/6 ones [3] 91/22 92/4 92/23 only [17] 13/1 14/5 21/16 39/5 50/25 64/14 66/19 70/4 70/6 71/2 71/3 73/20 76/13 100/3 113/4 115/13 118/21 open [3] 23/3 41/8 50/1 operate [2] 89/19 89/21 operation [1] 95/16 opinion [12] 11/6 34/15 34/24 36/22 37/13 37/14 38/2 38/7 56/12 76/8 93/4 93/11 opinions [7] 58/18 58/20 58/24 59/2 59/9 59/25 60/5 opportunity [2] 10/8 11/16 opposite [2] 120/22 124/24 OPRA [1] 50/1 order [1] 4/1 ordinance [2] 87/22 88/2 oriented [1] 59/7 Oris [1] 48/19 other [33] 6/7 6/25 8/9 12/23 14/9 16/23 22/7 24/20 27/19 27/22 30/3 35/25 37/4 37/23 38/6 41/24 47/19 47/20 51/2 63/3 70/7 83/9 83/24 83/25

86/8 86/9 87/15 87/17 90/6 96/4 101/10 104/9 127/14 otherwise [1] 53/8 our [17] 4/1 4/10 5/1 11/17 49/11 51/23 54/1 57/16 66/4 78/3 78/5 78/10 79/10 91/11 103/23 123/19 125/19 out [25] 12/23 24/17 28/1 52/1 54/10 54/12 60/21 64/4 64/14 70/25 75/5 81/3 86/15 86/23 87/16 87/17 90/5 95/14 97/17 104/19 107/8 111/22 115/25 123/4 126/3 outside [2] 121/23 126/19 over [36] 4/17 28/17 28/23 28/24 30/24 49/11 49/12 54/25 70/8 72/14 80/18 82/2 82/13 90/20 90/24 92/12 93/14 93/15 94/1 94/7 94/10 96/10 96/19 98/6 98/11 98/20 99/1 99/16 99/17 99/20 100/3 102/13 117/15 120/25 128/10 129/5 overall [2] 103/25 116/12 overdoses [3] 94/20 94/20 94/22 overnight [1] 30/15 overtime [11] 67/8 73/16 74/11 74/15 74/16 74/18 74/21 76/19 76/20 77/1 77/8 own [5] 24/21 51/23 91/11 106/9 126/22 owner [1] 102/5

p.m [2] 1/8 105/18 packages [1] 74/2 page [5] 3/2 3/11 17/21 17/22 62/18 pages [5] 17/21 64/16 64/16 64/18 72/14 paid [17] 31/16 41/20 41/22 41/25 70/5 91/14 91/15 91/17 91/19 91/21 93/9 93/10 101/24 101/25 102/1 103/7 103/15 paramedic [1] 107/2 paramedics [18] 106/16 106/17 106/17 106/23 108/1 108/2 108/4 108/10 108/19 108/20 108/22 109/25 111/18 113/7 113/16 113/23 114/4 114/5 PARK [49] 1/4 4/2 4/9 4/20 11/15 23/5 27/4 28/25 29/15 30/21 31/15 31/15 31/16 39/9 77/3 80/18 81/19 81/23 82/1 82/6 82/8 82/11 84/8 90/18 91/10 91/15 91/15 91/16 91/17 91/19 91/22 92/4 92/11 92/13 92/25 93/16 93/18 94/11 95/7 96/10 100/6 103/19 104/6 104/8 104/19 123/21 123/22 128/24 128/25 parked [1] 98/16 Parks [3] 3/17 111/12 111/15 part [7] 30/19 43/24 44/4 77/15 86/6 94/16 111/7 partials [1] 16/11 particularly [1] 81/25 parties [1] 4/4 parts [2] 17/12 45/17 party [1] 44/12 pass [1] 114/21 passed [1] 88/2 pay [9] 50/17 50/22 50/22

pay... [6] 82/22 82/24 83/2 86/11 87/15 103/1 payment [1] 102/14 pays [2] 102/24 102/25 PD [1] 18/1 pension [1] 83/6 people [20] 12/1 23/4 28/19 28/24 28/24 30/4 30/11 30/20 35/25 37/4 37/7 37/7 42/24 44/1 74/3 106/2 106/8 121/11 121/16 122/25 people's [3] 28/5 28/8 96/4 per [7] 70/9 73/21 75/4 75/15 76/15 86/1 88/12 percent [5] 95/9 100/13 103/24 104/14 118/19 perfectly [1] 11/5 perhaps [1] 10/21 period [3] 38/6 40/9 113/21 perjure [1] 8/16 perjury [3] 8/7 8/12 8/13 person [12] 24/21 25/12 25/14 37/1 71/9 73/13 76/2 78/8 82/18 112/2 112/6 122/5 personal [16] 19/9 19/19 25/18 37/13 58/17 58/20 58/24 59/2 59/9 59/11 60/5 80/13 126/9 126/14 126/18 126/23 personally [1] 55/6 pertain [1] 18/1 pertained [1] 18/4 pertaining [4] 27/4 47/2 47/6 95/15 pertains [1] 32/15 pertinent [1] 58/19 Peters [12] 2/12 48/11 48/12 48/13 51/7 52/11 52/16 52/20 53/14 54/17 54/19 65/21 petition [3] 1/5 4/14 4/19 petitioners [4] 2/8 11/23 23/5 36/22 petitioners' [3] 46/14 46/15 63/3 phone [2] 33/21 128/17 physically [1] 97/20 Pinewald [1] place [5] 59/1 124/18 125/13 126/5 130/9 plaintiffs' [2] 46/11 46/12 planner [5] 2/13 2/13 49/8 72/12 72/22 planning [10] 1/1 42/17 42/22 43/3 43/12 44/20 45/2 46/22 47/6 51/1 plate [1] 84/25 plays [1] 13/6 please [4] 23/15 29/11 49/19 52/15 point [6] 4/25 5/8 23/3 38/10 54/24 115/11 pointing [1] 12/23 police [85] 4/11 7/18 7/20 9/10 9/12 10/12 10/15 11/14 11/17 12/16 13/6 21/13 21/18 26/8 27/5 28/9 28/16 28/17 29/1 30/5 31/2 32/15 36/11 36/15 38/24 39/6 39/24 40/15 41/5 42/21 43/11 47/9 50/25 51/13 53/1 53/3 53/8 53/12 55/6 55/9 55/21 57/13 57/17 58/22 63/24 65/1 66/12 68/2

71/7 73/4 82/14 84/15 87/4 88/12 89/19 90/3 90/7 90/9 96/9 96/9 96/22 96/23 96/25 101/3 101/5 101/21 101/24 101/25 102/1 102/25 104/5 104/18 114/4 114/6 114/14 116/17 117/20 119/24 123/5 126/4 policing [3] 93/23 104/7 104/19 politely [1] 12/8 politics [1] 21/16 population [1] 94/3 porch [4] 121/23 123/4 126/4 129/14 portion [2] 61/9 101/3 portions [4] 16/23 60/20 60/22 63/1 POS [6] 78/5 78/6 78/8 78/9 78/20 79/11 position [1] 9/11 Possibility [1] 123/6 possible [12] 49/13 104/6 104/9 104/11 104/13 114/8 123/3 124/17 124/21 124/22 126/2 126/3 possibly [2] 68/7 114/18 preference [1] 36/4 preparation [1] 47/8 prepared [2] 10/23 18/17 presence [1] 31/2 present [2] 2/11 22/7 presentation [2] 5/5 42/7 presented [4] 18/4 18/21 22/6 22/12 presenting [1] 25/6 presumably [3] 41/20 79/4 121/14 presume [1] 12/17 pretty [5] 8/13 18/18 95/4 98/19 99/25 previous [3] 51/13 53/1 53/11 previously [2] 13/24 72/3 print [1] 64/14 prior [7] 26/12 26/14 26/18 26/21 26/22 51/24 98/9 private [5] 100/24 101/1 101/13 102/2 102/15 probably [11] 5/7 10/20 21/19 29/23 68/1 72/15 95/3 96/15 114/15 125/19 127/12 problems [1] 54/1 proceed [5] 4/8 4/11 4/21 44/8 61/3 proceeding [7] 10/18 10/20 12/24 12/25 42/17 43/16 44/5 proceedings [3] 10/12 12/15 130/7 process [7] 5/19 42/14 42/24 52/4 52/8 54/2 58/8 professionals [4] 47/16 47/19 49/15 51/9 proffered [1] 13/11 program [8] 30/14 30/16 30/19 31/13 31/17 91/7 91/11 101/12 programs [1] 30/15 project [1] 87/20 projects [2] 82/13 88/1 proper [1] 11/24 properties [2] 28/5 28/8 property [3] 40/10 40/12 122/9 protected [1] 96/16

68/20 69/2 70/6 70/13 70/25

protection [1] 30/5 provide [4] 22/15 51/22 122/12 122/14 provided [4] 47/13 101/20 107/19 122/18 providing [3] 38/25 39/8 45/12 public [5] 50/1 72/10 72/11 130/5 130/13 pull [1] 103/22 pulled [1] 60/21 punishable [1] 9/5 purpose [4] 19/3 45/14 69/21 70/1 purposes [1] 74/11 put [8] 4/24 16/24 41/23 42/3 42/7 76/22 101/22 128/14

quads [4] 97/8 97/9 97/10 97/12 qualified [1] 72/17 qualify [1] 7/21 question [43] 9/17 9/19 10/2 11/4 13/5 13/15 13/18 13/19 36/18 36/24 37/18 38/18 38/21 39/17 43/9 44/23 44/24 45/3 45/4 50/23 52/9 52/15 53/10 53/13 56/6 59/8 59/13 59/15 64/2 69/19 72/24 74/8 74/10 76/18 84/23 85/16 96/5 96/18 102/20 107/22 113/11 117/1 117/25 questioned [2] 38/10 58/20 questioning [3] 12/14 25/22 127/7 questions [30] 11/10 12/22 13/11 16/7 16/12 21/17 24/1 24/7 24/7 24/18 24/21 37/22 37/23 38/5 38/6 40/1 40/20 40/21 55/3 57/9 58/10 58/12 58/14 58/15 68/13 73/12 78/8 78/23 87/7 127/25 quick [1] 4/3 quite [6] 28/3 34/5 42/9 51/22 114/8 126/3 quote [3] 5/7 11/7 30/9 quoted [1] 119/3

rabbit [1] 23/6 radio [6] 108/9 108/14 113/19 118/10 123/23 125/20 raised [1] 43/9 range [1] 86/11 rate [2] 50/16 50/16 read [18] 17/23 18/10 21/14 21/14 39/4 52/23 63/7 64/5 64/7 66/5 66/7 66/10 66/11 66/16 67/1 67/12 96/8 96/13 reading [2] 29/18 30/3 Ready [1] 60/9 realize [1] 66/21 reallocate [1] 104/9 really [10] 10/15 23/17 27/20 44/15 46/19 47/9 66/11 99/10 118/3 127/8 reason [9] 12/13 19/25 21/11 22/10 22/14 53/7 55/1 70/6 123/20 reasonably [1] 6/19 reasons [1] 10/16 reassign [1] 90/17 recall [17] 5/9 6/8 8/13 9/12

-	research [2] 117/6 119/18	25/13 28/11 30/14 37/5 37/7
R	resident [1] 58/18	37/7 39/17 39/23 39/24 52/5
recall [13] 9/20 10/5 27/8	residential [2] 21/11 38/23	66/21 73/2 80/17 80/21 81/16
29/5 29/18 33/3 33/7 62/10 62/11 68/5 105/3 115/3 125/4	residents [5] 30/9 34/1 39/9 57/15 57/18	87/5 93/8 106/17 106/23 115/1 119/7 122/11 122/15 129/11
recalled [1] 5/2	resources [1] 11/14	salary [5] 71/2 71/3 82/22
receive [2] 15/14 65/7	respect [5] 21/22 24/9 55/4	101/6 101/7
received [6] 65/5 65/13 65/17 111/15 112/10 112/19	55/4 57/5	same [10] 43/17 59/15 61/7
receives [1] 101/17	respectful [1] 12/20 respond [3] 10/9 25/2 116/20	63/6 63/19 65/4 113/8 113/9 123/13 128/15
recently [1] 33/10		Sandy [6] 61/15 62/8 62/9
recertified [1] 83/22	responding [1] 113/9	62/18 62/19 65/1
Recess [2] 4/6 60/25 recognition [1] 84/25	response [14] 11/15 13/7 21/12 25/4 34/2 39/3 66/13 73/1	Santucci [8] 77/19 77/21 78/7 78/24 80/5 80/10 95/18 95/21
recollection [2] 106/22 109/14		
record [29] 4/15 10/6 10/11	116/11	saved [1] 104/12
11/11 38/2 41/4 41/23 43/7	responsibility [1] 92/12	saw [2] 19/5 63/20
44/3 47/4 47/7 49/22 49/24 57/6 60/8 61/5 62/14 77/6	rest [2] 93/19 103/20 result [3] 30/20 88/1 88/2	say [37] 6/12 8/17 19/2 19/2 19/6 32/5 33/23 36/18 40/3
77/12 79/15 87/10 116/2 117/17		49/1 50/5 52/22 55/10 57/21
117/24 120/15 125/17 125/18	retirements [1] 75/9	66/18 67/6 67/7 68/8 75/20
125/19 129/18 recording [1] 125/3	review [7] 49/15 51/12 51/17	77/17 79/17 88/15 90/10 93/16
recording [1] 125/3 records [5] 39/4 50/1 50/2	52/25 53/11 53/15 54/17 reviewed [1] 14/6	94/4 94/5 94/21 94/22 95/9 102/3 113/4 113/14 113/18
50/7 50/14	Richard [1] 1/12	115/22 120/8 125/2 129/20
recross [1] 11/9	right [114] 6/18 7/8 7/18 7/23	
redirect [1] 63/4 Reed [9] 26/25 27/6 27/23 32/9	9/21 10/3 16/9 17/16 17/23 18/10 18/10 19/21 24/15 29/23	11/22 24/9 28/8 30/22 38/2 51/21 54/2 65/1 80/7 93/7
32/25 33/2 33/5 45/9 45/22	30/6 31/1 31/3 32/17 34/8	112/1 121/11 128/17
refer [6] 19/24 20/1 20/4 20/7	41/14 48/17 48/20 48/23 50/15	says [28] 25/8 50/8 50/15 51/7
121/4 121/6	51/8 54/9 62/25 67/15 67/21	51/12 51/20 52/10 52/16 52/20
reference [4] 20/5 53/22 55/8 55/9	68/5 68/24 68/24 69/1 70/15 70/24 72/18 73/18 74/18 74/20	52/25 53/11 53/13 57/6 61/15 62/8 63/3 63/3 108/22 109/3
references [1] 63/24	75/11 75/15 76/19 80/2 81/16	109/4 112/20 112/20 124/3
referencing [1] 82/1	82/4 82/19 83/14 83/17 83/24	124/5 124/15 124/15 124/25
referred [2] 19/17 20/20	84/6 84/10 84/11 85/22 85/23	129/17
referring [1] 64/25 refers [2] 62/19 120/25	86/2 87/6 87/9 91/8 91/17 91/19 92/3 92/14 93/9 93/15	scan [1] 64/9 scenario [1] 103/8
refresh [1] 115/19	93/22 93/24 94/16 95/4 95/21	scene [2] 109/8 112/13
regarding [4] 21/17 39/10	96/12 97/13 98/10 98/12 99/4	schedules [1] 80/3
40/16 74/11 registered [1] 72/10	99/11 100/2 100/18 101/18 101/24 104/20 105/24 108/15	scheduling [3] 78/11 78/12 78/14
regular [2] 16/21 16/22	109/23 110/12 112/2 112/16	school [1] 72/11
related [2] 68/2 78/8	112/21 112/23 113/24 114/21	SEASIDE [50] 1/4 4/2 4/9 4/20
relates [3] 19/12 64/10 87/22	116/1 116/4 116/12 119/3 119/5	11/15 23/4 27/4 28/25 29/15
relevance [1] 42/21 relevant [6] 20/23 36/9 42/23	120/5 120/7 120/21 121/10 121/18 121/21 121/25 122/24	30/21 31/15 31/15 31/16 39/9 77/3 80/18 81/18 81/23 82/1
44/6 44/7 44/11	123/3 123/5 123/11 123/14	82/6 82/8 82/11 84/8 90/18
relied [1] 92/4	123/19 124/19 125/14 126/5	91/10 91/10 91/14 91/15 91/16
relying [1] 80/10 remark [1] 72/3	126/7 129/16 129/19	91/17 91/19 91/21 92/4 92/11
remember [4] 30/11 66/22 80/19	River [3] 2/4 6/5 84/8 road [3] 1/6 2/4 101/22	92/13 92/25 93/16 93/18 94/11 95/7 96/10 100/6 103/19 104/6
108/8	robbed [1] 116/15	104/8 104/19 123/21 123/22
Remington [8] 3/12 49/20 49/24		128/24 128/25
50/4 50/5 50/22 52/14 65/14 report [18] 50/9 66/5 67/12	Rodney [1] 2/14 role [8] 42/16 42/22 43/12	Seaside Park [2] 77/3 84/8 seats [1] 61/2
68/13 69/7 69/10 71/20 105/1	43/14 43/18 44/20 45/1 45/7	second [2] 88/10 115/18
105/3 106/3 107/12 107/25	roles [1] 13/6	secondly [2] 10/24 12/7
115/6 115/9 115/14 118/9	room [6] 108/9 108/14 113/19	secretary [2] 2/12 111/19
123/21 124/3 Reporter [1] 130/5	118/10 123/23 125/20 Roth [1] 87/13	secretary's [1] 111/23 section [1] 55/14
REPORTERS [1] 1/24	rough [1] 84/18	sectors [1] 98/9
reports [6] 85/1 125/23 125/24		see [42] 18/12 19/2 19/6 19/18
125/25 126/1 126/2 represent [8] 9/3 15/1 46/8	route [1] 112/13 ruling [1] 24/24	20/10 20/15 22/14 23/13 24/19 37/8 37/8 46/19 47/24 50/4
50/24 50/25 60/19 65/9 65/13	running [1] 31/18	50/11 50/12 50/14 50/17 51/5
representation [1] 11/15	rush [1] 99/1	51/13 51/14 51/15 53/17 61/1
representative [1] 35/1	Ryan [1] 87/13	61/14 63/4 63/8 64/21 76/23
representatives [1] 4/10 request [3] 23/7 50/1 50/2	S	79/2 80/2 103/22 104/3 106/19 107/5 109/20 121/24 121/24
requested [1] 13/2	safety [1] 84/23	123/5 123/8 124/14 127/10
required [2] 20/14 20/15	said [33] 5/8 12/8 12/11 12/12	seems [3] 58/10 77/11 77/13
requires [1] 101/21	13/16 13/17 13/20 18/19 22/11	seems to [1] 77/13
I .	Ī	į

since [2] 47/22 117/11 S sit [1] 15/25 seen [5] 17/4 50/9 61/9 63/15 site [1] 115/18 129/14 send [2] 124/24 128/18 sent [4] 128/20 128/24 128/25 129/5 separate [2] 74/24 123/24 separately [1] 7/13 September [5] 5/5 26/14 33/13 53/3 53/20 September 28 [1] 53/20 serious [3] 94/15 106/5 106/8 service [3] 39/1 39/8 40/16 services [4] 21/12 25/5 38/24 101/18 set [3] 79/22 112/9 130/9 sets [1] 114/25 shaking [1] 71/11 sharing [1] 4/23 she [87] 12/10 12/24 13/1 13/4 13/5 13/6 13/7 13/8 19/4 19/5 19/13 19/15 19/17 19/20 19/21 19/23 19/24 20/1 20/4 20/5 20/6 20/15 20/20 20/22 20/25 21/5 21/11 21/14 21/16 21/19 21/19 21/23 21/24 23/9 23/23 24/1 24/3 24/10 25/5 25/12 25/13 25/13 25/14 35/5 35/6 35/12 35/14 35/17 35/20 36/2 36/10 36/13 36/17 36/18 36/18 36/23 37/22 38/6 39/10 39/15 39/25 40/25 43/4 43/5 43/20 44/23 63/15 63/16 71/16 71/18 74/1 74/9 74/10 74/14 74/15 76/17 89/6 96/5 96/6 102/22 111/19 111/21 112/2 114/10 114/13 114/14 117/7 she's [13] 18/25 19/12 21/15 22/12 36/9 36/12 36/14 36/15 40/1 60/4 87/10 96/3 111/18 sheet [2] 77/16 90/5 sheriff [1] 128/10 sheriff's [3] 118/9 123/17 123/21 shift [4] 95/11 95/12 95/12 100/23 shifts [2] 80/3 95/15 short [1] 60/23 shot [1] 110/3 should [20] 5/7 12/9 25/21 27/1 37/21 38/4 39/11 40/14 41/19 52/1 54/5 58/19 59/21 59/22 96/15 110/5 110/13 116/24 117/1 128/17 show [20] 17/14 38/25 51/3 60/18 61/6 62/12 72/1 76/21 79/4 101/4 102/7 102/9 102/10 106/16 107/9 107/12 116/17 118/6 121/24 123/11 showed [6] 52/10 105/20 106/18 106/23 114/6 114/14 showing [3] 17/16 32/10 62/1 shows [2] 78/17 108/4 side [3] 17/11 62/21 120/12 sign [1] 40/9 signers [2] 4/14 4/19 significant [2] 8/2 8/13 signs [3] 28/4 28/7 29/14 similar [2] 62/25 63/20 simple [2] 74/8 87/8 simply [6] 7/6 7/21 12/16 13/16 80/10 80/19

situation [5] 38/13 38/23 105/9 106/5 106/8 situations [1] 106/2 six [3] 99/3 105/23 123/15 skill [1] 102/21 Slachetka [3] 49/3 49/5 49/8 small [3] 93/22 93/24 93/25 so [137] software [1] 82/15 solo [1] 34/7 some [17] 4/25 12/1 13/9 20/24 28/3 29/18 30/10 51/1 54/5 62/6 66/7 72/14 87/17 91/21 98/22 104/6 104/11 somebody [15] 11/5 11/7 11/9 35/7 39/23 54/12 77/18 105/2 113/20 118/15 119/14 119/19 121/25 122/3 124/1 somebody's [1] 40/10 somehow [1] 20/25 someone [2] 16/24 66/23 something [18] 8/17 17/7 17/9 17/15 39/23 46/20 60/11 68/1 86/22 86/24 89/15 89/16 101/23 102/12 103/22 104/2 116/16 124/5 sometimes [6] 90/16 90/21 90/21 99/19 99/21 106/2 soon [1] 60/9 sorry [7] 20/3 44/12 48/8 51/25 70/12 91/15 96/24 sound [1] 122/18 SOUTH [34] 1/4 1/24 4/2 4/9 4/19 11/15 23/4 27/4 28/25 29/15 30/21 31/15 39/9 77/3 80/18 81/18 81/23 82/1 82/6 82/8 82/10 90/18 91/9 91/14 92/13 93/16 93/18 94/11 95/6 96/10 103/19 104/6 104/7 104/19 speak [4] 22/23 46/21 47/5 86/17 specific [3] 53/25 69/18 88/20 specifically [5] 10/12 10/25 34/19 78/19 119/25 specifics [3] 28/12 28/13 118/22 spectrum [1] 50/21 speculate [7] 21/23 29/10 29/11 32/3 35/10 88/16 89/2 speculation [1] 39/18 speculations [1] 60/3 speed [1] 100/3 spent [1] 104/12 17/11 17/11 split [2] splitting [1] 129/4 spoke [2] 27/18 112/2 spoken [2] 46/25 48/6 spread [2] 70/8 77/16 staff [3] 45/10 86/3 95/15 staffing [1] 101/2 Stan [4] 49/1 49/7 49/8 49/10 standing [2] 64/8 87/6 4/17 31/13 32/10 start [9] 86/14 86/21 91/2 91/7 91/8 128/15 started [12] 27/10 28/4 30/13 30/19 31/14 31/17 31/21 31/22 31/25 47/23 53/4 54/1 state [7] 9/13 9/15 10/11

107/3 125/18 130/5 130/13 stated [4] 58/22 67/9 67/9 69/23 statement [1] 28/16 statements [1] 80/16 stating [1] 74/19 statistics [3] 115/22 115/23 115/24 statute [1] 8/14 stenographically [1] 130/8 step [2] 22/20 129/3 stood [2] 5/6 12/8 stop [1] 101/21 Storm [1] 62/19 stress [1] 114/11 Stuart [3] 2/13 50/8 50/12 Stuart Wiser [1] stuff [1] 40/13 subject [2] 45/18 72/14 submit [2] 76/12 111/2 submitting [2] 110/5 110/13 subpoenaed [1] 41/16 succession [1] 113/7 succinct [1] 59/23 such [3] 17/10 25/18 43/5 suffer [1] 40/8 sufficient [2] 7/5 7/12 suggested [2] 5/6 5/11 SULLIVAN [2] 1/23 130/4 SULLIVAN-HILL [2] 1/23 130/4 summer [3] 99/1 99/22 99/24 summonses [1] 103/19 Super [1] 62/19 Superior [2] 6/4 7/11 supervise [1] 92/22 supervisor [1] 100/22 supplied [1] 14/2 supposed [3] 13/10 23/19 88/15 sure [16] 5/1 5/13 18/16 24/9 64/17 65/6 65/7 80/3 85/1 88/5 100/13 104/14 105/11 113/10 128/1 129/20 SURMAN [1] 2/6 surprise [3] 31/23 32/2 32/2 surprised [1] 31/20 surveyor [1] 40/11 swear [1] 5/12 swearing [2] 8/10 8/11 5/7 5/9 7/2 7/6 7/7 sworn [14] 7/12 7/13 7/20 12/9 12/12 12/24 13/1 13/4 25/13 synchronized [1] 118/2 system [11] 78/3 78/4 78/5 78/6 78/11 78/12 78/14 78/20 79/11 80/1 103/23

Tahoes [1] 98/5 take [18] 4/3 7/22 8/23 18/2 18/12 21/9 22/19 22/21 25/14 46/21 48/2 64/1 75/13 82/20 92/11 99/21 128/14 129/20 taken [7] 4/6 8/1 60/25 72/4 87/16 87/17 130/8 takes [3] 5/15 5/15 106/10 taking [2] 23/1 63/7 talk [6] 5/6 48/1 65/21 67/11 76/20 81/7 talked [12] 27/21 27/24 45/21 46/1 46/4 46/7 66/1 68/4 84/13 95/17 95/18 119/4 talking [18] 30/4 30/12 31/6 31/8 46/18 63/12 69/5 71/17

```
talking... [10] 81/15 81/16
81/17 82/7 82/10 82/11 99/12
99/13 99/14 103/8
tanks [2] 84/20 84/21
tape [4] 122/12 125/2 125/3
129/17
taxes [3] 28/10 29/2 58/5
technical [1] 67/4
tell [32] 7/13 7/22 8/1 11/1
12/17 12/18 12/18 17/6 26/7
27/1 27/6 33/20 34/4 39/12
 40/4 40/11 42/13 62/23 64/5
 64/10 68/20 68/23 68/24 83/25
 84/14 85/13 90/19 106/15
109/11 117/19 118/7 120/16
telling [3] 8/6 28/23 54/2
ten [8] 6/11 6/16 65/14 72/4
86/5 95/1 95/2 103/24
ten percent [1] 103/24
terms [3] 21/25 24/10 93/17
testified [51] 5/23 6/2 6/9
 6/22 7/11 9/8 10/15 13/25 14/6
 14/10 15/14 18/25 20/8 20/22
20/25 21/5 22/8 23/22 26/15
 30/8 39/10 40/16 43/4 46/11
 46/23 60/4 63/9 63/16 63/25
 64/11 64/22 67/3 67/8 68/15
 69/1 72/15 74/23 76/17 77/1
 77/23 94/2 96/5 96/6 105/1
105/2 109/18 114/24 118/15
118/23 121/22 126/22
testify [21] 5/16 11/1 13/5
 16/19 32/7 33/16 33/24 35/14
 35/21 38/14 38/25 41/25 43/11
 43/14 43/15 45/24 50/18 69/3
 74/2 95/22 96/2
testifying [12] 8/15 16/21
19/21 21/25 23/12 33/4 35/2
37/2 42/25 47/23 53/4 66/20
testimony [66] 5/21 7/2 7/21
 8/6 9/20 12/6 19/12 19/16
19/17 19/18 20/21 22/12 22/13
 25/25 27/3 30/14 32/12 34/13
 35/3 35/4 35/16 35/22 37/3
 37/22 38/5 40/14 43/23 43/23
 45/12 45/19 47/1 47/8 50/19
 51/25 52/6 57/1 57/14 59/6
 60/6 60/7 62/22 63/2 65/25
 66/8 66/10 66/17 67/1 67/13
 68/13 72/15 73/15 74/4 74/11
 74/12 74/15 80/17 96/1 96/4
 96/8 98/22 103/6 106/24 107/11
 109/15 109/22 119/4
than [26] 6/11 6/13 6/16 7/16
 20/25 22/7 24/20 27/22 33/5
 64/17 64/23 69/17 72/3 73/5
 73/9 73/22 75/16 83/10 86/9
 88/17 94/12 95/1 95/2 100/1
 103/24 117/18
Thank [14] 13/22 42/6 44/12
49/6 76/12 79/20 80/9 96/21
103/2 117/21 127/2 129/16
129/22 129/24
Thanks [1]
           117/22
that [504]
that's [123] 7/4 7/9 7/15 7/16
7/19 8/18 8/18 8/24 9/5 10/17
 10/21 10/22 10/22 11/5 11/8
11/19 11/20 12/13 12/19 13/17
13/19 19/13 19/22 23/23 24/11
24/13 24/16 24/21 25/1 25/21
```

```
36/16 37/18 39/6 39/7 39/9
 39/17 40/17 41/7 42/14 43/9
 43/19 44/2 44/3 44/6 44/8
 45/20 46/24 47/2 48/9 51/4
 51/20 52/7 53/4 53/5 53/10
 53/12 57/4 57/15 60/1 60/6
 60/20 60/24 68/1 70/6 71/20
 72/5 72/18 73/5 74/6 74/12
 75/22 76/25 81/21 83/15 83/18
 83/20 83/21 83/23 84/6 85/5
 85/25 86/3 87/6 88/25 89/12
 90/1 92/21 94/2 94/10 97/2
 98/18 98/19 100/24 101/1
 102/23 103/21 104/12 105/22
 106/5 106/12 106/12 106/13
 108/2 108/13 109/16 109/21
 110/22 114/8 114/25 115/13
 117/19 118/11 118/21 121/10
 123/23 127/20 127/22 129/2
their [15] 22/7 23/5 41/25
 45/7 61/2 92/12 92/18 93/2
 98/9 106/2 106/9 106/11 111/22
 115/24 122/19
them [40] 8/23 14/18 14/19
 15/3 15/15 18/6 19/24 20/2
 20/5 20/5 20/13 20/18 23/13
 23/13 26/20 34/2 34/3 40/4
 40/24 46/25 47/20 47/23 62/6
 64/21 65/18 65/19 68/14 73/4
 92/16 92/20 92/22 93/9 93/10
 95/20 98/6 111/21 112/10
 124/24 125/20 125/24
themselves [1] 23/1
then [31] 8/17 9/2 9/4 20/11
 26/18 31/17 32/25 33/9 43/23
 52/6 54/11 60/21 66/17 72/13
 73/8 73/23 82/21 83/9 83/12
 84/13 84/24 85/21 92/10 100/2
 108/25 109/2 109/4 117/8 128/9
 128/16 129/7
there [85] 5/11 5/13 13/8
 14/23 15/1 20/5 21/11 23/7
 27/19 27/19 28/4 28/17 28/23
 28/24 29/8 29/9 29/12 29/19
 30/10 30/24 32/11 33/25 34/5
 37/11 38/23 39/2 40/3 49/12
 54/24 61/8 62/4 68/21 69/18
 73/5 73/5 73/22 75/6 75/8
 75/12 77/8 82/2 84/3 86/4 86/5
 86/8 87/6 87/20 87/22 87/24
 90/20 90/25 91/13 93/23 94/1
 94/7 94/10 94/17 95/8 95/21
 96/19 98/17 98/17 99/1 99/17
 99/20 100/3 103/12 104/22
 106/19 109/12 109/16 112/23
 112/24 113/20 113/23 116/16
 118/18 120/7 120/25 124/15
 125/11 126/11 126/12 126/21
 129/5
there's [32] 8/4 11/4 11/19
 22/10 25/19 25/20 25/20 36/23
 53/7 60/21 60/22 75/5 75/7
 79/5 83/12 83/24 86/4 86/5
 90/4 90/5 93/13 94/10 94/15
 97/9 99/19 109/2 109/3 112/23
 113/15 123/20 125/3 129/4
therefore [1] 125/12
these [17] 10/12 12/15 12/22
 18/16 27/12 63/8 64/20 64/24
 64/25 65/6 65/12 65/13 65/17
 73/12 78/19 106/2 121/16
they [86] 5/15 11/10 12/17
```

28/15 34/12 34/14 34/16 35/24

19/2 19/6 22/8 22/9 28/8 28/8 28/9 28/9 28/20 28/25 29/1 30/2 30/5 30/12 31/1 31/6 31/7 31/14 31/22 31/25 38/10 41/25 50/24 50/25 52/3 59/3 71/1 73/10 83/9 83/13 86/14 86/14 86/15 86/20 86/23 87/17 91/9 92/7 92/8 92/13 92/24 93/3 93/5 93/6 93/8 100/8 101/5 101/9 101/15 103/15 107/3 107/10 107/11 109/9 109/11 109/16 112/10 112/12 112/13 112/19 115/25 121/18 122/7 122/9 122/14 122/14 122/18 122/19 122/20 122/20 122/23 122/24 124/12 124/23 125/21 126/10 128/12 129/11 they're [19] 14/1 39/7 39/8 41/4 41/24 63/2 71/6 71/7 78/18 90/16 97/21 98/16 98/17 101/7 101/9 106/11 109/7 116/3 124/9 thing [8] 40/17 43/18 64/7 66/19 74/24 83/21 113/4 116/5 things [6] 12/18 12/25 63/25 64/24 64/25 78/21 think [118] 4/23 9/16 10/7 10/19 12/9 12/16 12/19 12/20 13/13 13/17 15/1 15/4 16/6 17/1 17/2 19/6 20/13 20/17 21/21 21/23 22/2 23/13 23/20 24/25 25/5 25/7 25/11 25/12 25/14 25/17 25/21 26/11 27/19 29/9 30/8 31/7 31/9 31/10 34/15 34/16 35/9 36/8 36/17 37/3 37/21 38/4 38/10 38/11 38/14 38/19 38/22 39/3 39/6 39/9 39/11 39/20 39/21 40/2 40/4 40/5 40/6 40/13 40/14 41/15 43/8 43/10 43/17 43/19 44/6 44/7 45/25 46/19 48/11 53/2 53/4 54/11 55/12 55/18 58/17 58/19 58/25 59/1 59/3 59/9 59/11 59/20 60/1 66/20 68/7 72/2 73/12 79/10 80/17 80/21 81/1 82/1 89/14 93/21 94/1 96/13 98/20 98/22 100/6 102/19 105/2 105/15 106/17 110/8 114/1 114/13 115/1 116/11 116/15 118/23 118/25 121/23 127/17 127/18 thinking [1] 55/16 thinks [5] 35/6 39/13 39/15 41/1 42/21 third [5] 8/24 9/1 9/2 9/3 9/4 Thirteen [2] 100/19 100/20 Thirty [2] 86/22 100/9 4/23 5/12 5/17 5/19 this [128] 5/19 9/18 10/4 12/4 12/14 12/25 13/12 14/6 17/15 17/20 17/21 17/22 18/10 19/13 21/10 22/11 22/12 23/6 23/8 23/18 25/18 26/10 27/10 28/2 28/13 29/7 32/7 33/7 33/7 34/6 34/12 35/16 36/20 36/20 37/13 37/23 38/12 39/4 40/7 40/17 42/17 42/25 43/16 44/5 44/20 44/23 45/2 45/18 46/23 47/3 47/6 48/13 49/18 50/3 50/9 50/21 51/23 52/2 52/5 53/2 53/11 53/22 53/23 54/3 54/10 55/2 55/3 56/8 56/10 57/6 58/7 59/1

14/3 16/12 16/14 16/15 16/15

Т	68/22 86/10 86/15 86/23
	topic [1] 127/18
this [52] 59/19 60/13 62/1 62/3 62/4 62/8 62/8 63/23 64/7	topics [3] 64/19 65/4 12 total [1] 75/13
64/15 64/23 71/22 72/4 78/25	totally [1] 110/2
79/13 80/9 82/6 82/20 84/22	tough [1] 55/5
92/12 94/20 94/22 98/12 105/9	toward [5] 120/9 120/18
106/3 107/1 107/24 107/24	121/11 122/25
108/4 108/8 108/15 108/16 109/11 110/4 110/5 110/13	towards [4] 120/2 124/4 129/12
111/23 112/2 112/9 113/7 115/5	town [6] 55/15 100/4 102
115/6 115/9 115/12 115/14	102/25 103/1 103/7
115/14 116/25 121/10 123/12	towns [1] 99/3
124/7 126/17 128/3	township [54] 1/1 4/11 6
those [40] 6/21 7/1 7/7 11/2 12/10 13/23 14/5 15/6 15/14	6/24 11/1 21/13 21/18 32
16/7 18/5 18/8 19/20 20/21	32/18 34/9 34/15 34/16 3 36/9 36/11 36/13 36/14 3
21/20 30/14 40/20 46/16 61/22	38/9 38/13 41/6 51/22 57
63/13 65/10 71/10 73/20 77/8	58/3 58/18 58/23 63/4 76
78/20 78/23 83/2 85/6 86/2	77/7 79/22 86/12 93/12 9
87/7 95/6 97/19 98/4 98/10	94/16 101/12 101/16 101/
101/4 101/18 104/11 107/25 118/22 129/9	103/11 103/20 104/25 111 111/7 111/7 111/11 111/1
though [2] 11/13 126/7	111/14 112/20 115/5 116/
thought [10] 10/13 37/5 42/14	118/7 123/12 123/13 128/
50/18 52/5 52/7 57/3 66/23	128/13
73/4 118/24	Township's [1] 94/12
three [13] 26/11 26/14 27/14 27/15 77/7 80/17 80/21 97/11	Township-13 [3] 76/22 77 79/22
97/12 97/13 104/25 119/8	Township-14 [1] 115/5
126/12	Township-3 [3] 111/7 111
through [30] 5/18 17/25 21/19	112/20
23/14 37/20 38/5 40/8 52/2 52/17 54/17 54/20 56/7 58/20	Township-3A [3] 111/11 1
59/20 60/12 64/1 64/15 65/23	111/14 Township-5 [1] 123/12
66/11 83/13 84/16 92/25 99/3	Township-6 [2] 118/7 123
99/6 108/13 113/7 115/7 115/8	track [3] 78/10 79/11 79
115/17 123/17	traffic [5] 84/23 99/7 9
Thursday [1] 1/7 thus [1] 36/21	99/22 101/22
tickets [1] 103/25	training [10] 81/10 83/1 83/13 83/16 83/17 83/19
till [1] 4/4	84/1 84/10 85/23
time [39] 5/18 11/15 16/20	trainings [1] 84/5
21/13 25/5 27/22 27/23 28/3	transcript [19] 3/13 3/1
28/14 30/11 31/5 32/11 39/3 40/7 40/17 41/21 41/25 44/1	17/10 17/14 19/16 21/6 2 40/8 54/25 60/15 60/19 6
49/25 50/7 50/14 55/2 55/3	60/20 61/7 61/9 62/15 62
57/6 76/23 99/9 106/9 109/24	63/1 130/7
112/19 113/22 114/3 114/5	transcripts [41] 14/11 1
115/1 115/2 117/12 118/1 119/7 127/7 130/8	14/14 14/17 15/2 15/6 15
times [14] 6/9 23/22 34/2	15/14 15/19 16/3 16/5 16 16/6 16/10 16/10 16/21 1
38/16 59/15 80/17 80/22 111/22	16/24 17/5 17/6 17/24 21
112/1 112/9 113/3 113/15 116/6	21/20 22/14 49/15 51/13
116/11	53/1 53/2 53/12 53/15 54
timing [1] 117/13 to his [1] 121/25	54/18 54/20 61/22 64/20 65/10 65/12 65/18 65/22
today [6] 23/22 25/25 57/4	transferred [1] 128/10
87/1 116/4 116/8	treated [1] 11/23
together [1] 16/24	Tri [2] 29/9 29/9
told [19] 26/2 26/3 26/5 26/17	Tri-Boro [2] 29/9 29/9
26/23 28/16 29/4 30/7 32/3 32/7 32/9 33/14 33/17 35/25	trial [5] 13/12 22/11 25 25/20 56/14
36/20 58/14 80/10 88/23 112/10	tried [1] 17/25
Toms [2] 6/5 84/8	trip [3] 99/1 99/2 99/20
ton [2] 85/2 97/6	true [5] 8/17 24/10 30/7
tone [1] 12/11	130/7
tonight [1] 60/7 too [9] 11/13 21/10 25/1 25/8	truly [1] 104/3 trunk [1] 84/17
40/14 66/12 89/13 94/8 104/13	truth [6] 7/13 7/13 7/14
took [4] 7/17 73/3 116/16	8/1 8/6
119/16	try [3] 49/11 49/12 113/
top [8] 50/4 50/6 61/14 62/19	trying [11] 9/13 9/14 25
	ĺ

```
opic [1] 127/18
opics [3] 64/19 65/4 127/15
otal [1] 75/13
otally [1] 110/2
ough [1] 55/5
oward [5] 120/9 120/18 120/21
121/11 122/25
owards [4] 120/2 124/4 129/12
129/12
own [6] 55/15 100/4 102/25
102/25 103/1 103/7
owns [1] 99/3
ownship [54] 1/1 4/11 6/23
6/24 11/1 21/13 21/18 32/14
32/18 34/9 34/15 34/16 34/25
36/9 36/11 36/13 36/14 37/15
38/9 38/13 41/6 51/22 57/18
58/3 58/18 58/23 63/4 76/22
77/7 79/22 86/12 93/12 93/19
94/16 101/12 101/16 101/17
103/11 103/20 104/25 111/5
111/7 111/7 111/11 111/13
111/14 112/20 115/5 116/11
118/7 123/12 123/13 128/6
128/13
ownship's [1] 94/12
ownship-13 [3] 76/22 77/7
79/22
ownship-14 [1] 115/5
ownship-3 [3] 111/7 111/7
112/20
ownship-3A [3] 111/11 111/13
111/14
ownship-5 [1] 123/12
ownship-6 [2] 118/7 123/13
rack [3] 78/10 79/11 79/12
raffic [5] 84/23 99/7 99/19
99/22 101/22
raining [10]
             81/10 83/12
83/13 83/16 83/17 83/19 83/25
84/1 84/10 85/23
rainings [1] 84/5
ranscript [19] 3/13 3/14
17/10 17/14 19/16 21/6 22/13
40/8 54/25 60/15 60/19 60/20
60/20 61/7 61/9 62/15 62/17
63/1 130/7
ranscripts [41] 14/11 14/12
14/14 14/17 15/2 15/6 15/11
15/14 15/19 16/3 16/5 16/5
16/6 16/10 16/10 16/21 16/22
16/24 17/5 17/6 17/24 21/15
21/20 22/14 49/15 51/13 51/17
53/1 53/2 53/12 53/15 54/17
54/18 54/20 61/22 64/20 65/8
65/10 65/12 65/18 65/22
ransferred [1] 128/10
reated [1] 11/23
ri [2] 29/9 29/9
ri-Boro [2] 29/9 29/9
rial [5] 13/12 22/11 25/9
25/20 56/14
ried [1] 17/25
rip [3]
        99/1 99/2 99/20
rue [5] 8/17 24/10 30/7 84/6
130/7
ruly [1] 104/3
runk [1] 84/17
ruth [6] 7/13 7/13 7/14 7/22
8/1 8/6
ry [3] 49/11 49/12 113/3
rying [11] 9/13 9/14 25/10
```

44/4 53/23 53/25 54/9 56/16 72/25 107/8 113/11 turned [2] 5/8 12/10 turns [1] 75/5 64/17 64/18 Twelve [2] Twenty [1] 89/16 twice [1] 76/17 two [32] 8/4 8/5 10/16 17/21 20/8 23/22 25/25 26/11 26/13 27/14 27/15 27/19 30/17 40/9 63/2 64/20 79/1 90/14 90/15 90/18 90/19 90/22 91/6 102/23 113/15 118/2 123/24 125/23 125/23 125/23 127/5 127/6 two-hour [1] 40/9 twos [3] 91/22 92/5 92/24 type [1] 63/1 types [2] 83/25 83/25 typically [1] 90/12 typing [1] 87/11

Uh [4] 8/19 14/20 81/20 113/25 Uh-hum [4] 8/19 14/20 81/20 113/25 ULAKY [1] 2/3 under [5] 8/6 11/7 101/6 101/7 101/10 understand [12] 19/9 30/2 34/9 40/19 42/16 45/1 54/4 54/4 54/6 57/9 72/16 73/1 understanding [5] 35/12 36/3 43/15 44/5 81/21 understated [2] 76/14 116/23 understood [4] 36/2 36/19 39/16 44/19 unfortunately [4] 64/13 105/10 114/22 127/13 uniform [2] 32/23 58/21 unit [1] 85/1 units [1] 107/2 unresponsive [1] 106/4 until [3] 59/16 91/8 91/10 unusual [1] 42/9 up [46] 4/22 5/6 9/25 11/4 12/8 20/13 25/18 31/17 32/10 34/1 44/15 44/24 45/16 46/20 55/1 58/6 62/19 73/14 73/16 73/23 86/1 95/19 99/10 99/21 101/4 101/22 102/7 102/9 102/10 103/22 105/20 106/16 106/18 106/23 109/17 111/4 113/20 114/6 114/14 116/17 117/6 121/24 122/9 126/19 127/15 128/18 up if [1] 109/17 upon [5] 39/16 80/10 92/4 99/22 114/15 upset [1] 30/3 upswing [1] 93/12 us [21] 4/24 4/25 12/11 12/12 12/18 12/20 12/21 18/4 23/18 28/4 28/7 40/11 51/22 52/2 52/7 54/3 57/15 67/13 68/20 68/23 118/7 74/15 use [1] used [13] 67/14 70/4 70/6 70/7 73/20 74/6 74/10 75/3 76/5 76/10 76/13 104/8 107/2 using [3] 69/22 70/1 74/7 utilized [2] 87/14 97/21

valuable [1] 81/14

v	We'd [2] 4/7 89/24	120/16 123/7 123/8 124/24
variances [1] 23/2	we'll [7] 4/3 4/21 5/1 37/8 37/8 97/17 104/3	126/10 128/4 where they [1] 101/9
vehicle [3] 89/23 97/6 98/11	we're [15] 4/8 4/23 5/8 23/19	whether [15] 34/20 35/12 36/4
vehicles [4] 97/19 98/2 98/10	30/12 34/6 40/6 40/13 42/3	37/10 39/8 40/10 58/8 64/5
98/14	52/1 54/24 56/9 81/15 113/4	84/6 90/19 113/7 113/16 124/7
verbal [2] 8/22 71/12	129/4	125/24 128/15
verified [3] 79/21 79/23 79/24 Vernick [8] 3/12 49/21 49/25	we've [5] 5/18 13/4 69/9 75/9 99/11	which [27] 5/8 7/10 8/17 11/23 12/6 12/10 17/18 29/4 31/17
50/4 50/5 50/22 52/14 65/14	weapons [1] 83/16	57/6 60/19 61/6 63/24 65/24
version [1] 63/12	wearing [1] 32/23	72/5 72/9 72/14 76/22 76/25
versus [1] 103/20	website [3] 29/12 29/17 30/4	83/3 83/12 93/14 98/4 106/24
very [18] 12/8 12/15 25/12 28/14 36/9 53/24 53/25 57/6	welcome [1] 103/4 well [44] 10/2 10/10 12/3	125/15 125/18 129/6 while [1] 64/8
57/13 59/6 59/7 60/2 63/11	16/18 20/10 21/4 21/21 23/5	Whiteman [9] 46/18 95/19 96/7
72/20 74/8 99/2 103/6 129/22	23/20 24/23 32/4 34/18 36/8	118/15 121/22 122/24 123/4
vitae [4] 3/15 71/24 72/5 72/9	38/12 42/1 42/5 52/23 53/5	126/3 126/18
Viturello [3] 105/3 105/6	53/9 53/25 54/11 57/2 59/18	Whiteman's [5] 96/8 119/4
114/2 voices [1] 5/1	61/24 67/7 67/11 70/24 73/14 81/15 84/18 86/2 86/4 93/13	119/14 120/4 129/10 who [26] 15/8 15/18 26/3 26/3
volume [1] 93/14	95/17 96/2 98/22 100/21 102/22	26/24 28/11 33/17 45/17 45/17
volumes [1] 94/18	108/8 114/19 116/24 118/20	45/18 45/23 49/10 54/12 66/1
voluntarily [1] 41/11	124/21 124/22	66/21 66/21 66/25 71/14 71/17
VOTERS [4] 1/4 4/3 4/20 29/16	went [12] 17/13 18/9 21/19	73/1 84/24 98/8 119/18 119/22
W	42/15 58/20 65/23 79/10 117/20 124/18 126/4 126/10 127/6	122/5 122/25 who's [4] 37/1 49/7 88/8 90/20
waited [1] 121/22	were [87] 5/20 7/2 9/14 10/14	whoever [1] 33/16
waivers [1] 23/2	11/2 12/10 12/25 14/24 16/12	whole [7] 7/13 34/6 34/16
walk [1] 122/9	16/14 16/14 16/15 16/20 16/20	37/11 38/22 64/7 100/4
walking [3] 120/2 122/25 124/4 want [31] 11/12 19/2 19/5 24/2	16/22 21/11 21/24 21/25 23/12 24/2 25/25 26/18 26/19 26/21	whom [1] 33/15 whose [3] 15/13 40/12 42/9
28/15 29/10 34/13 34/14 34/14	28/4 28/6 28/7 28/8 28/17	why [31] 18/24 19/8 19/13
35/3 35/23 37/2 43/22 44/3	28/18 28/23 28/25 29/1 30/2	19/18 19/22 20/15 20/19 21/23
44/15 44/17 44/21 53/24 55/14	30/24 31/6 31/7 32/6 33/25	24/20 26/7 26/7 26/21 27/1
56/14 64/7 64/9 74/12 84/16 96/4 103/22 104/3 107/6 117/20	36/2 38/15 38/24 39/4 39/6	38/15 39/6 50/23 53/10 55/1
122/19 129/3	39/16 45/24 47/13 49/25 51/24 53/22 54/25 57/4 57/21 62/6	57/9 76/10 78/16 93/21 105/11 106/21 111/2 111/6 112/25
wanted [8] 21/17 23/12 28/9	63/21 66/20 68/11 68/14 68/21	113/14 118/4 123/24 127/20
28/10 29/2 30/5 31/1 127/20	69/5 73/5 75/8 75/12 75/13	Wiegartner [1] 1/14
wants [3] 11/5 11/9 44/24	79/9 81/16 81/17 82/1 82/7	will [26] 10/5 12/12 13/9 23/9
was [169] wasn't [9] 7/5 11/1 34/5 37/11	86/1 92/11 95/6 95/8 96/19 103/8 103/19 108/4 112/12	29/8 32/11 32/11 55/11 55/12 55/17 58/6 60/19 65/9 65/13
57/8 67/21 74/17 74/21 82/10	113/16 121/13 122/14 122/19	85/12 95/10 95/10 109/18 113/8
wasting [1] 40/6	122/20 122/24 122/25 127/11	123/9 125/8 128/11 128/12
watching [1] 16/19	129/11	128/13 128/16 129/22
way [14] 10/17 10/22 25/15 45/19 49/25 50/1 57/8 60/5	weren't [4] 22/9 68/17 122/23 126/10	winter [2] 100/1 100/8
63/7 64/14 90/1 92/21 98/19	west [3] 120/9 120/12 120/19	Winward [1] 1/11 wise [1] 94/14
109/3	what [178]	Wiser [6] 2/13 48/7 48/8 50/8
ways [1] 36/23	what's [8] 29/13 34/23 42/20	50/12 65/22
we [103] 5/18 10/11 21/22 21/23 22/21 22/22 23/3 23/4	61/6 72/1 76/21 118/6 118/11	wish [1] 20/12
25/1 25/21 30/13 31/16 31/17	whatever [4] 59/25 65/15 98/23 109/18	within [1] 55/20 without [6] 7/22 21/2 42/8
33/14 33/15 33/24 34/2 38/8	whatsoever [2] 34/19 76/8	63/7 64/15 118/18
38/16 38/25 39/11 40/3 40/11	wheel [2] 98/1 98/11	witness [18] 3/2 5/7 5/12 7/3
40/14 45/16 47/13 48/3 48/5 49/10 49/12 49/16 49/16 51/23	when [47] 5/15 10/11 10/24	12/9 13/9 13/13 22/6 23/8
51/23 52/1 52/6 53/17 53/17	12/7 13/25 16/18 20/8 25/13 26/9 26/13 26/14 27/6 27/10	25/17 34/12 37/23 44/12 44/23 56/15 56/18 56/20 76/16
53/22 56/8 56/22 57/4 58/20	27/21 28/1 31/13 31/22 31/25	witnesses [2] 22/6 23/12
60/13 64/19 65/13 69/17 74/19	32/7 32/9 33/12 34/6 41/25	wondering [1] 127/7
77/16 77/17 78/10 79/10 79/11	43/9 53/17 54/7 56/8 59/6	word [3] 18/9 18/9 28/6
82/13 82/13 87/5 90/17 91/10 93/1 93/1 93/10 95/14 95/15	66/20 68/11 68/15 69/1 72/15 77/17 81/16 91/2 91/9 96/13	word-for-word [1] 18/9 wording [1] 63/19
97/4 97/6 98/5 98/5 103/8	97/21 106/15 107/9 109/11	words [6] 11/2 12/10 16/23
103/22 103/22 104/3 105/11	112/13 114/14 119/4 120/8	70/7 87/15 104/9
105/11 108/9 108/10 109/16	124/25	work [2] 100/23 101/13
109/17 109/20 110/8 110/10 110/10 111/3 111/4 113/1 113/1	where [38] 16/5 17/9 23/18 23/23 24/3 31/16 32/11 33/19	worked [1] 80/3 workers [1] 100/16
113/2 113/3 113/4 113/1 113/1	38/13 50/14 53/3 54/24 57/3	workers [1] 100/16 working [2] 78/18 102/24
113/23 115/15 116/3 116/7	57/4 61/12 61/17 62/8 67/8	works [1] 98/8
118/20 124/7 125/6 125/19	68/8 77/13 78/1 78/17 97/19	worms [1] 41/8
126/16 127/5 127/18 129/5 129/22	101/5 101/9 101/13 102/7 105/9	worried [2] 55/10 55/13
123/22	106/21 112/16 115/16 120/4	would [110] 4/2 4/22 6/12 10/7

96/14 105/20 106/23 107/10 W 107/17 109/14 109/15 109/22 would... [106] 10/14 11/2 11/3 111/23 114/16 116/11 124/3 12/7 13/8 15/8 15/13 16/2 16/4 yourself [3] 8/16 64/5 79/23 16/4 16/7 18/24 19/8 19/15 19/18 20/15 21/1 22/4 23/17 zoning [1] 51/1 26/13 28/25 31/18 31/20 32/1 32/2 32/13 38/11 39/21 39/21 45/11 45/13 45/18 52/4 53/2 53/4 55/18 57/7 58/8 58/25 60/23 64/14 65/18 67/4 67/6 68/14 70/5 72/4 72/9 72/16 72/18 72/23 73/9 73/9 74/5 74/7 75/14 75/15 76/12 78/7 78/23 79/4 79/11 83/3 84/23 87/12 88/1 88/1 88/6 88/15 90/10 92/10 92/13 92/14 92/15 92/16 92/18 92/20 93/1 94/6 96/17 98/25 99/20 100/14 102/11 103/23 104/12 105/19 105/23 106/24 111/9 112/6 112/9 113/18 116/10 117/5 117/15 120/9 120/18 120/22 123/8 123/14 124/24 125/18 125/18 125/19 127/12 wouldn't [5] 31/23 66/18 79/12 94/4 94/5 wrapped [1] 127/15 write [1] 88/10 wrong [8] 8/14 54/2 99/9 119/7 124/18 124/23 125/13 126/4 wrote [2] 18/3 18/10 Y yeah [16] 18/18 24/6 26/20 27/16 33/25 40/25 48/5 51/18 56/21 69/16 92/23 99/24 110/18 115/5 124/12 127/22 year [9] 68/21 69/7 69/10 84/1 91/24 94/8 94/21 94/21 94/22 years [11] 10/19 29/23 30/12 33/8 77/8 77/8 92/4 94/2 115/6 115/13 115/25 Yep [1] 8/8 yes [177] yet [2] 12/25 20/6 you [652] 15/12 35/9 86/1 you'd [3] you'll [1] 61/14 you're [53] 9/2 9/18 13/10 20/14 24/9 25/7 28/12 29/21 30/22 32/17 32/20 32/23 36/25 40/19 40/23 41/7 41/11 41/16 41/20 43/18 44/1 44/8 52/8 54/1 55/13 55/16 55/17 56/11 56/13 58/9 59/18 60/1 61/25 63/12 65/6 65/11 67/17 69/18 70/19 71/11 71/17 72/6 72/23 75/22 75/25 80/9 84/7 88/5 93/7 102/20 103/4 104/23 129/20 you've [5] 5/23 8/1 17/4 55/5 84/19 your [61] 5/4 5/11 7/17 8/22 9/11 13/4 15/3 20/7 20/10 23/10 24/13 24/16 32/20 32/23 38/4 41/21 42/10 45/5 45/14 45/23 47/1 47/8 55/9 55/11 55/16 56/6 58/2 58/5 58/12 58/15 58/24 59/9 59/23 63/18 63/25 64/11 64/21 65/25 67/20

71/11 73/15 78/4 80/17 85/22 86/6 88/8 89/1 93/3 93/11